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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules’) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com
for a minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website at www.cafgroup.
hk.
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Corporate Information
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Financial Summary

=

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+-HLEFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tF| ZT—RE —FHF —UE —EBE-—=%F
RMB’000| RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR| ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT
RESULTS E
Revenue Wz 16,350 676,123 26,066 18,836 16,316
Other income HA g A 21,256 59,508 7,048 2,051 3,296
Gain on bargain purchase REBAKZ - 254,040 61,113 — —
Selling expenses HERX (2,501)] (599,489 - - -
Administrative and operating  1TH{ R & @RI X
expenses (381,052)]  (229,828) (48,834) (25,269) (23,650)
Finance costs B 7 AR (43,413) (38,538) (18,640) (6,042) (1,863)
Equity-settled share-based AR AEER K
payment expenses (ABRAEH) AL (448) (68,136) (68,469) (17,001) (2,515)
Fair value changes in REMEATEEZY
investment properties 2,405 19,741 - - -
Fair value changes in derivative 744 B E A F{EE
financial assets (3,550) (10,314) (2,326) - -
Share of (losses)/profits of FEfB B & AR (5 8),/
associates ikl (659) (312) 1,054 - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax A S & Al (&5 18),/ % 7 (391,612) 62,795 (42,988) (27,425) (8,416)
Income tax credit/expense) iR R /(%) 46,940 27,812 (3,850) (2,758) (2,696)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(BR),/ & (344,672) 90,607 (46,838) (30,183) (1,112)
(Loss)/profit for the year RIEAFRE(ER )/
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company PN/NSE RN (222,649) 116,084 (47,671) (30,516) (11,172)
Non-controlling interests JE 5 i o (122,023) (25,477) 833 333 60
(344,672) 90,607 (46,838) (30,183) (11,112)
As at 31 December
R+=ZHA=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tEF| ZT-RF ZT—hF —mE ZE-=F
RMB’000| RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR| ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2ERER
Total assets BEE 1,321,491 | 1,824,783 851,325 358,260 291,134
Total liabilities BreE (648,727)]  (884,890) (402,168) (149,692) (81,428)
Net assets BEFE 672,764 939,893 449,157 208,568 209,706
Non-controlling interests I3 R i = (246,149) (368,172) (56,991) (7,416) (7,083)
Fquity attributable to owners AR A A FE{f # 25
of the Company 426,615 571,721 392,166 201,152 202,623
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Financial Summary
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
to all our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the public the
annual report of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Global economic activity continued to firm up. Since the pickup in
economic growth has been broad based with a notable upswing
in Asia and Europe, global recovery is expected to continue
into 2018. The People's Republic of China’s (“China” or “PRC”)
economy has also made steady progress. Gross domestic product
(“GDP”) for 2017 amounted to RMB82.7 trillion, representing a
year-on-year growth of 6.9%, which was above the expected
6.5%. In particular, the import and export of the trade of goods
rebounded after declining for two years, with the total volume
registered at RMB27.79 ftrillion, growing by 14.2% from the
previous year. The economic recovery has led to a turnaround
in fiscal revenue, household income and corporate efficiency as
well as a smooth and healthy development in China, creating
favourable conditions to the Group’s business expansion.

Coupled with the proactive promotion on the “The Belt and Road
Initiative”, stable demand of foreign trade in China managed to
consolidate the Group’s bulk commodities exchange business in
The Association of Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN”) countries.
The Group became the major shareholder of Nanning (China-
ASEAN) Commodity Exchange Company Limited (“NCCE”)
in 2016 by increasing its investment and stepped into the
business of bulk commodities spot delivery and trading since
then. The Group also obtained 100% of the shareholding in PT.
Asia Pacific Commodity Market (formerly known as “PT. Asia
Pacific Commodity Exchange”) (“APCM”) in 2017 through debt
conversion and plans to set up bulk commodities exchange or
affiliated agency in Malaysia, Myanmar, Thailand and Vietnam
step by step. The online exchange platform has been used for
carrying on domestic trading within PRC and cross-border trading
between ASEAN and PRC simultaneously. To this end, the Group
focuses on the bulk commodities trading in farming, grains, animal
husbandry, side line of business, fishery and forestry utilising the
advantages of NCCE in geographical position, human relations
and policies of Guangxi province.
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The Group has also continuously developed diversified trading
platforms. The Group has set to make contribution for 25% of the
registered capital of Zhong Ke (Shenzhen) Satellite Commercial
Application Company Limited (“ZK (Shenzhen) Satellite”).
Advanced and timely technological means can be provided for
the abovementioned bulk commodities trading, e.g. ascertaining
the ownership, rating and source of the bulk commodities subject
matter of a specific transaction, and its yield estimation. Both
buyers and sellers on the trading platform of the Group can be
provided with further detailed, specific and authentic scientific
evidence to gradually form standardised and scientific quotations
and indexes in the relevant industry of the subject matter listed
for sale on such trading platform for market players to use.

The cooperation can gradually integrate the logistics, product
flow and cash flow of bulk commodities subject matters into
the exchange platform, which is a significant step towards the
NCCE becoming the authority in pricing specific bulk commodities
subject matter. Moreover, the trading platform incorporating
product flow and physical tracking information can provide
information on trading and quotations of better quality for financing
by bulk commodities trading, which can facilitate the entry of social
financing into the real economy and provide an effective channel
for using social funds.

Looking forward to 2018, which serves as the first year of 19th
National Congress of the Communist Party of China, is also a
crucial year implementing the “13th Five-Year Plan”. While the
market is optimistic, deleverage, risk prevention and stringent
supervision remain the major targets in 2018 macroeconomic
policies. In the meantime, the U.S. Federal Reserve’s proposal on
three rate hikes, new taxation policies or strong U.S. dollar will
increase the downside risk in the stock market. The Group will
continue to monitor the changes in the external environment and
strictly control the risks brought by the market changes, to ensure
the business development to go forward steadily.

Chairman’s Statement

EREHE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the &% @ KAAENLAAEE EE EEE
Group’s directors, management team and staff members for their B & B T gt £ 25 Bf & 3 45 BUA R0 Bt
dedication and hard work, our customers for their confidence and A AEBEEEH A EBEK 2L
support for our business, and our business partners, investors, & XxiF G URAEEFESYE - BEE -
Shareholders and professional parties for their trust and support. ERBEA T ZEEEIEHRERHE -

Pang Man Kin Nixon FiE
Chairman WX
26 March 2018 —E-N\F=ZRA=+H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The Group is engaged in the business of providing financial
guarantee services and the relevant consultancy services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group obtained
control of Beijing Jin Dian Pai Technology Limited (“JDP”) by
holding 60% of its equity interest upon completion of the capital
injection in May 2015 and obtained control of NCCE by holding
approximately 52.63% of its equity interest upon completion of
the capital injection in January 2016. The principal activities of
JDP are provision of software development services and online
trading platform services, and the principal activity of NCCE
is provision of electronic market for transaction of commodity
including nonferrous metal, ferrous metal, agricultural products,
energy products, chemical materials, machineries and equipment.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
100% of the issued share capital of APCM and its wholly owned
subsidiary (together referred to as “APCM Group”). APCM Group
is principally engaged in the provision of electronic market platform
for trading commodities. The Directors expect that APCM will
commence its business in 2018.

The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) have been listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange since 6 January 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group commenced its commodity exchange business in
China since 2015 when the Group acquired a majority stake in
JDP and continued to expand in 2016 when it acquired a majority
stake in NCCE.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

Since the second half of 2016, the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the “CSRC”), in conjunction with the local provincial
governments, commenced a series of informal reviews in the entire
commodity exchange industry, i.e. all commodities exchanges
(some 1200 nos), in China. The purpose of the review is to
ensure that the various types of trading modes practiced in the
commodities exchanges were appropriate. On-site inspections
were carried out. Contracts, financial and accounting records
and all relevant documentary evidence of proper carrying out of
procedures were checked. Computer and trading records were
examined, and internal controls practices were checked to see
whether they were executed accordingly. All operations carried
out by JDP and NCCE were found acceptable by the respective
local provincial government authorities.

Unfortunately, despite the fact that there were quite some
commodities exchanges (including JDP and NCCE)
operating appropriately, CSRC still found that a formal nation-
wide mandatory review, together with respective local provincial
government was necessary. Such mandatory review commenced
during 2017.

were

This mandatory review carried the unfortunate request that
ALL commodity exchanges should wind down ALL its business
operations, pending for the conclusion of the mandatory review.
The mandatory review would repeat the work of the previous
informal review, irrespective of whether the commodity exchanges’
trading practices had been found appropriate and satisfactory
previously. Accordingly, JDP and NCCE complied and started to
wind down during 2017.

The Group has also taken the opportunity to review its focus of
efforts and considered that it should consolidate its manpower,
expertise and resources in JDP and NCCE to minimise duplication
of efforts. This was in preparation for the revival of businesses in
NCCE after the CSRC and Guangxi government mandatory review.
This shall allow the Group to focus all its strength in developing
the commodities exchanges network in ASEAN countries which
shall bring in more revenue in due time. As such, the Group made
a provision of impairment loss on intangible assets of JDP in the
consolidated accounts. This shall make the Group’s accounts
more trim and tidy in future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During 2017, the Group and NCCE had been liaising closely with
the Guangxi government authorities to conduct the mandatory
exercise, with a view to revive the business activities as soon as
practicable. NCCE had been reassured repeatedly that its trading
practices carried out in the past had been in compliance with
the government policies and its proposed business and trading
operations in China and in the ASEAN countries are appropriate
and that its revival of business should be endorsed at the time
when the mandatory review for Guangxi is completed.

However, the purpose and target of the mandatory review was
for the entire commodities exchange industry in Guangxi and
NOT for individual institution per se e.g. NCCE. It was noted that,
subject to the findings of the mandatory review for certain relevant
commodities exchanges, some might be requested to merge or
cease operation. NCCE is not required to undergo merger and
closure.

Regrettably, the mandatory review of Guangxi has not been
completed as at the date of this report. It should be noted that
the time taken in Guangxi is longer than it is expected and
intended. Other provinces, such as Shandong, already completed
the mandatory review in September 2017.

It is not a practice for the Guangxi government authority to issue
any official sanction to any relevant individual institution e.g.
NCCE per se before such overall mandatory review is completed,
with proper follow up rectification actions on other unsuccessful
commodities exchanges are put in place. Unfortunately, the
completion time is not a subject that the Group and NCCE could
exert any more efforts to expedite the process as it had already
been done so.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

As a recognised national commodities exchange, NCCE has
many intrinsic advantages over any other commercial institutions.
During the current year, although the Group has made a provision
for impairment loss on amounts due from related parties totaled
RMB52.74 million, the management of the Group is confident that
once the business of NCCE is reinstated after the mandatory
review, the amount shall be recovered. The Group should continue
to press the Guangxi government authority to expedite the
entire completion of the mandatory review process and, if not,
to sanction, in stages, to those who are satisfactory as partial
completion of the process. Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, the chairman
of the Board, had already taken this matter, in his personal
capacity of Guangxi government Consultative Member (which he
assumed in January 2018), to represent the entire commodity
exchange industry in Guangxi to press for a more satisfactory
resolution of this matter. Hopefully, this added political pressure
would make a difference.

Nonetheless, the uncertain situation of NCCE remains and is, of
course, unsatisfactory.

It should be noted that all businesses, contacts and operations
had been originally designed and organised around the setting of
NCCE, such as centralised clearing and settlement system with
banks. It takes extra time, negotiation and efforts to re-model the
operation while maintaining the original set up intact, with a view
to fully utilise the full capability of NCCE in due time. That said, the
Group had contemplated and assessed the fluidity of the situation
and had taken any suitable remedial and stop gap measures, as
necessary.

The Group had started in 2017 contemplating Dong Xing Zhong
Yong Bao Cross-border Trade Services Limited* (3R E A FI{RIEEE
ZFZSREHIR AR (‘DXZYB’), the subsidiary of the Company,
to be a general trading agent and foreign exchange settlement
company in Dong Xing, Guangxi, a place adjacent to Vietham
border. Dong Xing is the most active venue for China-Vietnam
border trade, amongst the 26 designated sites in Guangxi.
DXZYB in conjunction with NCCE, could utilise the special trade
and foreign exchange policies (only specifically allowed for the
designated border residences) to carry out cross border trade
and foreign exchange settlement in Dong Xing, Guangxi. The
Group has renegotiated and made necessary arrangements with
other commercial institutions such that this cross-border trading
operations could commence without the involvement of NCCE for
the time being. It is expected that such business activities could
commence before mid-2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Likewise, the Group has re-prioritise its attention to the
development of other commodities exchanges in the ASEAN
countries. APCM was originally intended to take a complementary
role of NCCE. Given the uncertainty of NCCE, in 2017, the Group
has now taken a view that the operation of NCCE and APCM
should be independent of each other, each with different focus.
APCM has the advantage of close contact with the global Muslim
population and there is a distinct demand on halal food. This is a
large niche market of which no institution had taken any serious
efforts aggregate the supply of food ingredients. APCM is making
an effort to assume this super connector and conductor role of
halal food in the world. The Group is vigorously pursue this matter
and hopefully to realise this potential in the second half of 2018.

The Group has continued to take actions to establish commodities
and future exchanges in ASEAN countries such as Myanmar,
Malaysia, Vietnam, Thailand and Cambodia and the like, subject
to maturity of opportunities. The progress in this front has been
encouraging (please refer to the relevant announcement of the
Company dated 8 March 2018).

The Group has also taken steps to enhance the value of trading
in the commodities exchange by providing dynamic information
and intelligence (space, movement, climatic and soil) related to
the individual commodity concerned. These information might
form a definitive evidence to indicate property rights, estimation
of production volume, tracing of origin and quality grading of the
commodity. When utilised together with the trading history and
trends of this individual commodity of concerned in the commodity
exchange, a creditable commodity index could be made to serve
the traders therein. The Group has been taking steps in realising
this goal (please refer to the relevant announcement of the
Company dated 12 February 2018).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

At the same time, the Group recognised that with the many
enrolled members registered in JDP, NCCE, APCM and many
other commodities exchanges to be established in the ASEAN
countries, there is a potential investment service that it can offer as
Hong Kong is one of the most active financial center in the world.
These members have a strong demand to invest into financial
products to either hedge or to manage their wealth. Given this
exclusive access to this group of investors, the Group entered
into the sales and purchases agreement to acquire approximately
102.5 million ordinary shares of Great Wall Securities Limited
(“Great Wall Securities”), representing approximately 63.97% of
the issued shares in Great Wall Securities in 2017 to realise this
potential (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
11 April 2017). Written approval for the acquisition has been issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) on 28 February
2018. Upon completion, the Group will be the largest shareholder
of Great Wall Securities. Great Wall Securities is licensed under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, may carry out Type 1 (dealing
in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities. The acquisition will provide
diversified investment channels for its members. It will also benefit
the business structure of the Group and diversify business risks.

It is envisaged that with these two arms of operations (physical
commodities and financial products) comes into full operation, they
would produce much synergy in realising the untapped potential
of these enrolled members into material benefit to the Group. The
Group’s current business setting has been fully in line with the
Belt and Road Strategy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group pays attention to spot delivery and are devoting great
efforts to develop local and cross-border trading in farming, grains,
animal husbandry, side line of business, fishery, forestry and
frozen goods. In order to develop its online trading platform for
agricultural products, the Group has entered into a cooperation
agreement with Shinonghui Agricultural Industry Company
Limited (“Shinonghui”) pursuant to which all-dimensional
cooperation will be rolled out by the parties on the online trading
platform for agricultural products of the Group taking advantage
of the development and marketing of agricultural products
implemented by Shinonghui and its related services. Shinonghui
was established under the approval of State Administration for
Industry & Commerce of the PRC. Relying on direct supply from
agricultural industrial park and place of origin with the assistance
from integrated online service platform, Shinonghui strives to
create a comprehensive industrial chain for its agricultural industry.
According to the agreement, both parties will set up a Sino-foreign
enterprise in Guangxi and integrate resources in order to set up
a large-scale platform for the integration of cross-border trade,
finance and Internet big data in the ASEAN countries and create
a small currency foreign exchange settlement ecosystem.

During the year, the Group has also cooperated with Guangxi
Sumaotong Business Services Company Limited (“Guangxi
Sumaotong”) to conduct cross-border electronic trading,
pursuant to which all-dimensional cooperation will be rolled out
by the parties for cross-border electronic trading of Guangxi
specialty agricultural products on the online trading platform of
the Group taking advantage of the integrated services for foreign
trade import and export business implemented by Guangxi
Sumaotong. Guangxi Sumaotong foreign trade comprehensive
services platform (www. sumaotong.cn) has been on trial run.
It is the only authorised professional institution to develop
and operate Guangxi-ASEAN Region (Nanning) Foreign Trade
Integration Complex Clearance Acceleration Project. According to
the Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group is responsible
for providing necessary resources and technical support such
as online trading platform. Guangxi Sumaotong is responsible
for integrating customs clearance, tallying, financing, insurance,
exchange settlement, tax refund of foreign trade import and
export business into one platform, i.e. providing “onestop” foreign
trade services to market participants. The pilot site is in Nanning
city. Loan platforms for small and medium-sized enterprises
(“SME”) from Nanning City SME Business Centre (a department
of Nanning city municipal government) will be actively introduced
and favourable policies for SME financing will be brought in.
By implementing this cooperation, the Group will build a large
platform based on cross-border trade in the China — ASEAN
region, incorporating the three areas of cross-border trade, finance
and internet technology big data to open up the China — ASEAN
regional cross-border trade.
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Management Discussion
BEENRR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB16.35 million (2016: approximately RMB676.12
million), representing a significant decrease as compared to 2016.
It was mainly due to that the commodity exchange platform
business of the Group is affected by the rectification actions taken
by the CSRC on all the commodity exchange venues in China
during the current year. Before the completion of the rectification
actions taken on commodity exchange venues in China, the Group
will make every effort to commence its commodity exchange
business in the countries of ASEAN. Approximately RMB5.24
million (2016: approximately RMB658.13 million) was derived
from provision of online trading platform services, approximately
RMB10.44 million (2016: approximately RMB14.45 million) was
derived from provision of financial guarantee and consultancy
services and approximately RMB0.67 million (2016: approximately
RMB3.55 million) was derived from provision of software
development services.

Online Trading Platform Services

Revenue from online trading platform services of the Group
represented
transaction of commodity including non-ferrous metal, ferrous
metal, agricultural products, energy products, chemical materials,
machineries and equipment from NCCE and online trading
platform services from JDP.

income from provision of electronic market for

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from online
trading platform services of the Group was approximately
RMB5.24 million (2016: approximately RMB658.13 million),
representing a significant decrease as compared to 2016 due to
the rectification action taken by the CSRC as mentioned above.

and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Guarantee

Revenue from financial guarantee of the Group represented
revenue from the provision of financial guarantee services and the
relevant consultancy services.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from financial
guarantee of the Group was approximately RMB10.44 million
(2016: approximately RMB14.45 million), representing a decrease
of approximately 27.8% as compared to 2016. Approximately
RMB10.23 million (2016: approximately RMB13.04 million)
derived from the provision of financial guarantee services and
approximately RMBO0.21 million (2016: approximately RMB1.41
million) derived from the provision of the relevant consultancy
services.

The number of new contracts regarding financial guarantee
entered into for the year ended 31 December 2017 was 45
(2016: 56), representing a decrease of approximately 19.6% as
compared to 2016. Given the decrease in the average contract
price of financial this kind of revenue
decreased by approximately 27.8% as compared to 2016.

guarantee services,

Software Development Services

Revenue from software development services of the Group
represented income from provision of development and sales
of computer application software systems and provision of
maintenance services.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from software
development services of the Group was approximately RMBO0.67
million (2016: approximately RMB3.55 million),
a decrease of approximately 81.1% as compared to 2016.
Approximately RMBO0.07 million (2016: approximately RMB1.76
million) derived from the provision of development and sales
of computer application software systems and approximately
RMBO0.60 million (2016: approximately RMB1.79 million) derived
from the provision of maintenance services.

representing
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

Other Income

The Group’s other income and gain mainly included bank interest
income and reversal of impairment loss on other receivables. The
Group’s other income for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately RMB21.26 million (2016: approximately RMB59.51
million), representing a decrease by approximately 64.3% as
compared to 2016. It is mainly due to the decrease in gain on
disposal of properties held for sale and bank interest income
by RMB21.92 million and RMB7.46 million respectively and the
absence of one-off membership fee and management fee income
for the current year (2016: approximately RMB22.39 million).

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses primarily consist of commissions paid to
individual agents and operating centers in respect of the handling
charges of trading earned by NCCE.

Administrative and Operating Expenses

Administrative and operating expenses primarily consist of
(i) salary and welfare expenses for management and administrative
personnel; (ii) depreciation and amortisation; (iii) rental expenses;
(iv) business tax; (v) legal and professional fees; and (vi) provision
of impairment losses. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group’s administrative and operating expenses amounted
to approximately RMB381.05 million (2016: approximately
RMB229.83 million). The increase was mainly due to that the
impairment losses were recognised for intangible assets, interests
in associates, investments,
from related parties and goodwill amounted to approximately
RMB181.41 million (2016: nil) in total. Also, write-off of property,
plant and equipment, prepayments, accounts receivable and other
receivables amounted to RMB68.24 million was recognised for the
current year (2016: nil). Generally, other types of administrative and
operating expenses decreased as compare to 2016 due to the
cost-saving measures adapted by the Group during the current
year.

available-for-sale amounts due
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Cost

The finance cost was mainly incurred from (i) a long-term loan
of HK$80 million, equivalent to approximately RMB66.60 million,
from a related company. The loan is unsecured and bears an
interest rate of 2% per month; (i) the convertible bond with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$149,500,000 issued on
24 December 2015. Interest is charged on these bonds at an
interest rate of 8% per annum which is repayable semi-annually in
arrears; and (i) a short-term loan of HK$25 million, equivalent to
approximately RMB20.81 million, from an independent third party.
The principal was guaranteed by a director and a related party
of the Company in personal guarantee. On 27 February 2018, an
extension agreement was signed where the loan is now repayable
on 2 January 2019 and subject to the interest rate of 15% per
annum.

Loss Before Income Tax and Losses Attributable
to Shareholders

Loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately RMB391.61 (2016: profit of
approximately RMB62.80 million). Loss attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately RMB222.65 million (2016: profit of RMB116.08
million). Such change was mainly due to (i) the absence of gain on
bargain purchase arising from acquisition of NCCE; (i) a significant
decline in the income from online trading platform services
comparing to the corresponding period in 2016 as mentioned in
the section “Revenue” above; and (i) recognition of impairment
losses as mentioned in the section “Administrative and Operating
Expenses” above.
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BEENWmE oM

@& B A

MERATBEELB(®N A—HEBARE
"z REAEEEBBTHERNARK
66.608 BJT) °c ZEEAEERE  EFF
E2%ETE () RZFE—RAF+T-A=+@
A3 174 51 A4 58 5149,500,000/%8 7T .2 7]
BmRES - ZEFEZBRRMFERFHE
8% @ BHFIEE LEARIE : Ki) BB
Fo-HESZEHEELEESTHER
MARBE2081BETT) - AeHEER—F
BT ERER RZTE—NFZA=++t
B BRI BLERIHEWHE  EFR
ER-_T—NF—A_BEE BEANX
15% 58 o

FEBaEERRREGER

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—-HBItEEZ>
FTERAIEBENAARKE3161BEL(Z
T—RF mAARKG280HET) - #HE
—ZE—+E+-A=t+—HIFEE XD
BB ARMNEBHARE22656E T
(ZE—RF  H5MNAREE116.088ET) °
SBEETEHA() R WBREAZ SRR
FrEA 2 BRERE AW (i) 20 £
—fifTil - RERBRZFERBAOWA
BT RNFREEZER D Ki) in EX
[T REERS ] —&A - BRAEE
BFTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 % 6
¢ €



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Capital Structure
and Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB33.85
million (2016: approximately RMB55.12 million) and approximately
RMB64.43 million (2016: approximately RMB15.81 million)
respectively, representing a decrease in pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB21.27 million and an increase in cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB48.62 million compared with
31 December 2016. The Group generated negative cash flows of
approximately RMB6.53 million from operating activities during the
year which was attributable to, amongst others, the settlements
of accounts and other payables in substantial amount.

On 21 November 2017, a placement of 60,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at a price of HK$1.0 per share was made,
and the Group raised a total amount of, after deduction of relevant
expenses, approximately HK$58.55 million (the “Placing”). The net
proceeds from the Placing is intended to apply as to approximately
HK$40 million for repayment of borrowings of the Group and as
to approximately HK$18.55 million for general working capital
of the Group. The completion of the Placing took place on
14 December 2017. The net proceeds were actually used as to
approximately HK$40.52 million for repayment of borrowings and
as to approximately HK$18.03 million for general working capital
of the Group.

Issue of 6,250,000 Shares upon exercise of share options are set
out in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not have
any borrowings which bore floating interest rates. The Group’s
interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest-bearing bank
balances and pledged bank deposits. The Group did not hedge
its exposure to interest rates during the year, but may enter
into interest rate-hedging instruments in the future to hedge any
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total debts (i.e.
other borrowings, finance lease liabilities and convertible bonds)
by equity attributable to the owner of the Company, was 45.5%
as at 31 December 2016 and 55.6% as at 31 December 2017.
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Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Affiliated Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into an agreement with two independent third parties, to dispose
of 60% equity interest in IREEEKEEAXZFREER AT,
which is engaged in provision of online trading platform services
in the PRC, at zero consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
100% of the issued share capital of APCM Group pursuant to
debt conversion of USD2,520,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB16,473,000). APCM Group is principally engaged in the
provision of electronic market platform for trading commodities.
The details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
2 January 2018.

On 11 April 2017, Mr. Vong Kuoc Meng (the “Vendor”) and
China Assets Group Management Limited (the “Purchaser”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) in relation
to the purchase of 102.5 million ordinary shares of Great Wall
Securities (represent approximately 63.97% of the issued shares
of Great Wall Securities) at the consideration of HK$9,000,000. On
28 February 2018, the written approval regarding the application
of the Purchaser to become a substantial shareholder of Great
Wall Securities has been issued by SFC, and the parties agreed
to extend the long stop date of the Agreement to 31 March 2018.
The details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
11 April 2017 and 28 February 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

Significant Investment and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed above in this report, there were no significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Grant of Share Options

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did not
grant any share options under the share option scheme adopted
by the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on
1 December 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details and
movements relating to the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the paragraph headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” below.

Outlook

The global economy continued to recovery in 2018 and China’s
economy maintains steady growth. The International Monetary
Fund (IMF) forecasts a global economic growth of 3.9%, while
growth in emerging and developing economies in Asia is about
6.5%. The global economic center gradually moved eastward
which Asia is the main power source of global economic growth.
Under the “The Belt and Road Initiative” strategy, the economic
and trade relations between China and ASEAN continued to
deepen. Regional integration was promoted and cross-border
e-commerce also developed rapidly. In 2017, through the cross-
border e-commerce management platform, the total import
and export volume of retail sales reached RMB90,240 million
representing an increase of 80.6% over the same period of last
year. The Group believes that cross-border e-commerce will bring
new opportunities to more countries, enterprises and groups.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to expand commodity
spot delivery trading business to Indonesia as the first stop of the
ASEAN 10 and gradually developed markets such as ASEAN and
Muslims. APCM, a subsidiary of the Group, has obtained all the
operating licenses from the relevant authorities of the Indonesian
government that formally launched the online commodity spot and
medium to long term delivery and trading business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

APCM also can carry out financial futures business after fulfilment
of further legal and compliance requirements imposed by the
local government and regulatory authorities. To this end, the
Directors view that APCM, together with the Group’s other
related businesses, can not only create a spot commodity
trading network, but also develop trading of futures business at
the same time. Market shares constantly rising. With the Group
focuses on the bulk commodities trading in farming, grains, animal
husbandry, side line of business, fishery and forestry utilising the
advantages of NCCE in geographical position, human relations
and policies of Guangxi province. In addition, the Group has
obtained the approval from SFC for the acquisition of Great
Wall Securities. Upon completion of the transaction, Great Wall
Securities will become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. The acquisition helps the Group to develop a more
diversified investment pipeline in order to establish itself as a
financial industry solution provider.

In addition, the Group also cooperated with Guangxi Sumaotong
and Shinonghui. As the Group gradually build a large platform
based on cross-border trade in the China-ASEAN region which
promotes cross-border trade, finance and internet technology with
deep integration. On the basis of mutual benefit and reciprocity,
we will integrate our respective advantages and resources to
create greater commercial value. By carrying out physical cross-
border business, financing platforms specifically supporting cross-
border transactions will be built up step by step by cooperating
with financial institutions and investment companies home and
abroad. Such platforms will be responsible for providing flexible
trade financing to legitimate trade organisations. Financing will
be provided to domestic and international trade based on credit
demands of different trade organisations and trade forms to solve
the problem of funds shortage in entity enterprises and circulation
enterprises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

In order to enhance the competitiveness of the diversified platform,
the Group aggressively looks for strategic partners. The Group
will invest Zhong Ke (Shenzhen) Satellite Commercial Application
Company Limited (“ZK (Shenzhen) Satellite”) 25% registered
capital and China RS (Shenzhen) Satellite Application Innovation
Institute Company Limited (“China RS (Shenzhen)”) cooperate in
the areas of commodities or etc. The Company provides a spot
trading platform utilising satellite technologies to track the sources
for its bulk commodities to ZK (Shenzhen) Satellite, while ZK
(Shenzhen) Satellite provides information service to the Company.
The parties will collaborate comprehensively to provide credible
and fair public data relating to the circulation and traceability for
domestic and cross-border bulk commodities trading so as to
assure the authenticity of goods and safety in logistics. So that
both parties to the transaction and all relevant service providers
such as trade finance and logistics, can more effectively and
accurately grasp the market conditions and market conditions. The
cooperation can gradually integrate the logistics, product flow and
cash flow of bulk commodities subject matters into the exchange
platform which is a significant step.

Capital Commitments and Capital Expenditure

The capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2017
not provided for in the financial statements were approximately
RMB3.5 million (2016: approximately RMB3.50 million) and
RMB0.94 million (2016: approximately RMB0.25 million) for capital
injection for the acquisition of an associate and intangible assets
respectively.

The increment in capital expenditure of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was approximately RMB2.01 million
(2016: approximately RMB15.76 million). Such increment was
principally attributable to the increase in expenditure in leasehold
improvements and motor vehicles.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 99 employees
(2016: 194 employees). The Group’s total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB17.88 million
(2016: approximately RMB20.56 million). The remuneration policy is
determined with reference to market condition, performance and
qualification.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did not
grant any share options (2016: 265,000,000 share options) to
the eligible persons under the Share Option Scheme. Equity-
settled share-based payments recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017 were approximately RMBO0.45 million (2016:
approximately RMB68.14 million). The Group participates in the
PRC government-sponsored social security system as required
under the relevant PRC laws and regulations. The social security
system in the PRC includes retirement, work injury, medical care,
unemployment and other insurance coverage for the employees.
The Group also maintains the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
and insurance for its employees in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by itself
to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Charge on Group Assets

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s certain property, plant
and equipment and bank deposits with carrying amount of
approximately RMB4.41 million and RMB33.85 million respectively
were pledged to secure finance lease liabilities and for
providing financial guarantee services to the Group’s customers
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s main operations are in the PRC. Most of the assets,
income, payments and cash balances are denominated in RMB.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging
arrangement. The Directors consider that exchange rate fluctuation
has no significant impact on the Company’s performance.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Change of Directorship

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam resigned as an executive Director, the chief
executive officer and the vice chairman of the Company with
effect from 28 September 2017. Further details of the change of
directorship are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
28 September 2017.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 February 2018, the Group has established a subsidiary
which was called “Assurance Satellite Technology Investment
Limited” (“Assurance Satellite”). On 11 February 2018,
Assurance Satellite entered into a capital increase agreement with
China RS (Shenzhen) and a third party natural person, pursuant
to which Assurance Satellite will inject capital of RMB3,000,000 in
ZK (Shenzhen) Satellite for acquiring 25% equity interests. Upon
completion, ZK (Shenzhen) Satellite will become an associate of
the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon, aged 49, was appointed as
an executive director, the vice chairman, a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee and an
authorised representative of the Company on 1 December 2011,
and was appointed as a director and chief executive officer
of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company on 14 September 2012 and
20 November 2013 respectively. He was re-designated from the
vice chairman to the chairman of the Company on 20 January
2016. On 9 January 2017, Mr. Pang was appointed as the
Chairman and legal representative of Nanning (China-Asian)
Commodity Exchange Company Limited, an indirect subsidiary
of the Company (approximately 52.63% equity interest owned)
of the Company. Mr. Pang is one of the founders of the Group.
He is responsible for overall strategy formulation and planning
of the Group. Mr. Pang was an executive director of Aurora
Global Investment Holdings Limited (now known as “Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited”) (stock code:
353) from August 2005 to July 2007 and had participated in
various mergers and acquisitions and company restructuring.

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, aged 53, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 11 September 2015. Mr. Chan
obtained the degree of bachelor of business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1988. He further obtained
the postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from
The Manchester Metropolitan University in 2002. Mr. Chan had
previously worked for The Wharf (Holdings) Limited and Caltex
Oil Hong Kong Limited. He had also previously served as an
administrative officer of the Hong Kong Government. He is also
an individual investor and has investments in the automotive
diagnostic industry in the PRC. He has extensive experience in
the fields of investment, business operation and networking.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSHREEAEERE

Mr. Law Fei Shing, aged 58, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 31 December 2015. Mr. Law is a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), USA
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 28 years of
experience in the audit and accounting services. Currently, Mr.
Law is an executive director, deputy chief executive officer and
the company secretary of Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited
(stock code: 922), and a non-executive director of each of Pak
Tak International Limited (stock code: 2668) (He was re-designated
from an executive director to a non-executive director of Pak
Tak International Limited on 16 December 2014) and S. Culture
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1255). Mr. Law was an
executive director and a non-executive director of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code:
1355) from November 2014 to April 2016 and from April 2016 to
December 2016 respectively. He was a non-executive director
of Beautiful China Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 706)
from January 2014 to December 2017. He was also the company
secretary of Orient Securities International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8001) from February 2009 to May 2016.

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu, a Malaysian citizen, aged 48, was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 13 May
2016. He is a shareholder of the Company and holds 6.33%
interest in the Company. He is also a well-known individual investor
and has investments in the stock markets in various countries.
He started his career by setting up a company in Malaysia which
engaged in the wholesale of poultry. He then diversified his
business into the plantation, cold storage, shipping and property
investment industries by founding the Joinland Group in 1990. He
has strong network and influence in Malaysia, particularly in East
Malaysia. The property investment business of Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing
Siu has expanded to the Asia Pacific region, including Singapore,
Australia and Papua New Guinea.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENCE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, chairman of the audit committee and
the remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chan
obtained a bachelor degree of economics from Macquarie
University in Sydney, Australia in April 1986. He is a fellow
member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is currently the managing
director and founder of Mandarin Capital Enterprise Limited, a
company specialised in provision of financial advisory, merger and
acquisition and fund raising for both listed and private companies
in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is also an independent non-
executive director of each of China Conch Venture Holdings
Limited (stock code: 586), Bisu Technology Group International
Limited (stock code: 1372), Sino Golf Holdings Limited (stock
code: 361) and Nanfang Communication Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1617). He founded Mandarin Capital Enterprise Limited in
2004 and started to provide financial advisory services to a wide
range of industries, such as real estate development industry and
dairy industry. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department of Ernst
& Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to 1991. He was also a director
and the financial controller of Shenzhen China Bicycle Company
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in the PRC from 1991 to
1999.

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 52, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company on
1 December 2011. Mr. Lam graduated from the Victoria University
of Melbourne, Australia, with a Bachelor of Business Degree
majoring in banking and finance. He also earned a Master Degree
in Applied Finance from Macquarie University of Australia. Mr. Lam
is currently an executive director of Chinese Food and Beverage
Group Limited (stock code: 8272) (He was re-designated from
an independent non-executive director to an executive director
of that company on 17 April 2013). Mr. Lam is an independent
non-executive director of each of Yin He Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8260), Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (stock code:
8089) and Kakiko Group Limited (stock code: 2225). He was an
independent non-executive director of The Hong Kong Building
and Loan Agency Limited (stock code: 145) from February 2012
to June 2014. He resigned as the deputy chief executive officer of
China Eco-Farming Limited (stock code: 8166) on 17 April 2013.
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EERSHREEAEERE

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chow holds a
master degree in professional accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is
currently an independent non-executive director of Dingyi Group
Investment Limited (stock code: 508). He was an independent
non-executive director of China Oriental Culture Group Limited
(now known as “China Chuanglian Education Group Limited”)
(stock code: 2371) from January 2008 to May 2011 and the chief
financial officer of Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited
(stock code: 8272) from February 2008 to December 2012.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bai Xiang, aged 72, joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Li is currently the chief risk control officer of the Group,
responsible for new guarantee product development and business
expansion strategy formulation. He is also the supply chain finance
specialist of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from the
radio and automatic control system faculty of Huanan Polytechnic
majoring in water acoustics engineering in July 1969. Mr. Li is
currently a consultant of the FE¥) R EE R EFH LD (China
Logistics Productivity Promotion Centre*). From 1990 to 2005,
he was the general manager of China National Materials Storage
and Transportation Guangzhou Corp, a subsidiary of a state-
owned enterprise which is engaged in securitisation management
of pledged assets for various financial institutions in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) since 1999. During the period, Mr.
Li conducted extensive researches on and has gained extensive
experience in (i) logistics management and project guarantee
businesses; and (i) securitisation of relevant assets along the chain
of logistics management for financial investments.
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Furthermore, Mr. Li has been conducting researches on mixed
application of “supply chain” and “capital chain application”. He
also published various academic articles relating to “logistics
bank and risk management”. In 2007, as the expert of the logistic
productivity center in the PRC and the editor of the {47 £ i)
(Logistics Technology®), Mr. Li has participated in examination
and approval of the national standards which are issued by the
National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC,
such as{MRtEEFWEEFHRE) (Assessment on the
Satisfactory Level of the Logistic Enterprises), & &5 #k &
& 18 Tsk) (Management Requirement of the Automatic Sorting
Facilities®) and <%t 7& = 78 8/ 3& BI]) (General Specification for
Logistics Quantitative Forecast®) of the logistics industry standard
in the PRC.

Mr. An Xiaochun, aged 52, joined the Group in September 2006.
Mr. An is currently the chief business supervisor of Ja[db X B 17
ERBR A7 (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited*), an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for market
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He
graduated from Hebei Radio and TV University with a diploma
in financial accounting in July 1988. Mr. An also graduated
from Central Party School of the Communist Party of China
majoring in management in party administration in December
1992. Furthermore, he completed and passed an advanced-level
course in risk investment and corporate finance organised by the
Continuing Education Department of Tsinghua University in March
2011.

Mr. Chen Yi Ping, aged 55, joined the Group in November
2009. Mr. Chen is currently the chief business supervisor of
ABET(EMERER QA (Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty
Company Limited*), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and
is responsible for market development, sales and preliminary
approval of new projects. He obtained a diploma in economic from
Xiamen University in June 1984.

Mr. Xu Gao Sen, aged 40, joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Xu is currently the chief financial controller of the Group.
He obtained a graduation certificate in construction finance
accounting from BERZESFFERZ/K (Fujian Construction
Vocational School®) in July 1998. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Xu worked as the accounts manager of a property developer in

Xiamen City for 5 years.
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EERSHREEAEERE

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 38, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr.
Zhang is currently the marketing manager of the Group and is
responsible for marketing affairs of the Group. He has more than
four years of experience in marketing area. Mr. Zhang obtained a
diploma in construction engineering and pricing management from
Hebei Institute of Architecture Civil Engineering in January 2008.

Mr. Yu Hong Bin, aged 43, joined the Group in July 2014. Mr.
Yu is currently a joint executive officer of Assurance Finance
Services Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Yu is also the founder, controlling shareholder and
chairman of Beijing Jin Dian Pai Information Technology Limited
(dDP”), graduated from Peking University with major in information
management and holds master degree. Mr. Yu has over 15 years
of experience in design and development of software systems
for bulk commodity exchanges and electronic exchanges, and
witnesses the growth of the industry. The majority of senior
management of JDP’s development and operation team are also
graduates of Peking University with bachelor or master degree in
computer software and/or business administration, and has all-
round techniques, business acumen and experiences.

Mr. Wei Jinghang, aged 55, has obtained postgraduate
qualification. He was a master degree graduate student and
research associate in investment economics at Guangxi Normal
University. Mr. Wei joined the Group in January 2016 and is
currently the president of Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity
Exchange Company Limited. He took the positions of deputy
director of Data Analysis and Testing Centre and deputy
heads of Personnel Department and Industries Department at
Guangxi Normal University. He was also the general manager
of Guangxi Site Technology Company (& /8 B 5 R A 7)),
chairman and general manager of Guangxi Haite Technology
Company Limited (& /8% 8% B R A7) and general manager
of Guangxi Ducheng Investment Group (& F#BH 1% & &£ E).
He has extensive experience in administrative management,
personnel management, business operation management and
investment projects. He has successfully completed several
dozens of computer network engineering projects and real estate
development projects at the provincial level. In early 2006, Mr.
Wei participated in the establishment of Nanning (China-ASEAN)
Commodity Exchange Company Limited, and took the positions
of executive vice-president and subsequently the president until
today. During his tenure, he led the staff through ten years
of struggle, in which he insisted in business innovation and
created leading performance in a number of areas amongst the
competitors, and helped the continuous growth of the exchange
towards international development. The commodity exchange
has also been awarded a number of honors including “Guangxi
e-Commerce Model Enterprise” and “Top Ten Professional Market
in Nanning City”, etc.

REEE 3HE R_TZT/N\FLAMA
RERE - RELRMB/RER 2L HLIE -
BEAKBEZEHER - RREHAEHE
EBRMFLR - REER-_ZTTNF—H
Bt TRSREETRTETE
SR e

Ftw kL 435 R-ZE—MF L AN
AREE - TEARABREHREAR
AR(RRBZ2EEE2EWNB AR 2B E
HITE - TREMAILRSHASERM
BRAR(EEEER ) BIEA -~ AR
HREBEER NUEFRAREEEEERZE
BETERF - TEEEATERRSIR
BEFRGMBUHRARTRAZER 15
FRE - BITEHARE - t RS BHZH
EREEEBRSENZAILR KRBT
/K IEEEARNRBLIEXE B
BERAZEMMEENZNER -

BEMSAE 555 CEUSIHIRAERE -
DRETMEABRELERLIHRE
BIEE - BRAR-_T—REF-AMA
AEE  RAME(FE - RE)BRXS
FIBRAR 2 BE - RAREEERE X
BHEIMARAPLEIEE AFRERE
REER EAREMRARALE &
FEBMXAERAFESRMFAKLE &
PEBREEEAKESER  AEEER
TREE AFEE CELLEELR
MERKELR  TEIHTHRETEER
BHERIEREEMNEEMERSE - —
TENREY)  2HEANHE(PE — RB)
BmRXHABRAR  LEREERISZM
FIREAY  BENRERBES o EB
Hif wEEREIELTFEM  BiF
XGaF - BETZERERITHES -
ER B ERAANL E L ERBEBRL
HRER BERNTREEAETES
RELE| [EEMHEEXHSIFZH
§$M o

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Bi Songmei, aged 61, joined the Group in January 2016 and
she is currently a director of Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity
Exchange Company Limited. She has served in the finance sector
since her graduation from Shandong Province Bank and Finance
College (LUIERARITEIEEBT) with university qualification. She
took the positions of unit head, section head and branch manager
in Agricultural Bank of China at Shandong Qingdao from July 1982
to June 1996. She was the general manager of China Xinhua
Chengxin (Shenzhen) Company Limited (FFEI# ZE#{=E CRIDAH
FR/AE]) from July 1996 to August 2005 and the general manager
in the sales department of China Xinhua Trust (Shandong) from
September 2005 to May 2011. She has been the chairman of
Shanghai Quanfu Industrial Company Limited (private enterprise).
During her tenure with the banks, she contributed in a number of
areas including substantial growth in various types of deposits,
continuous reinforcement of financial strengths, standardisation of
credit management, optimisation of loan portfolios, rapid growth of
the deposit and lending business, expansion of business scope,
continuous improvement of the business situation and year over
year improvements on economic efficiency. No bad loan has been
associated with her loan portfolios of Xinhua Trust and she was
awarded as the “Model Worker in the National Finance System”
for three consecutive years.

Mr. Peng Peishan, graduated from Beijing University of
Information Science and Technology, and is currently the vice
president of Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity Exchange
Company Limited (F2% (FE — HE)HMERSHIARAT]), which
he has served for more than 10 years. He has been involved in
the development of exchange management rules and business
models in Guangxi Autonomous Region. He is an intermediate
accountant, an asset appraiser, a real estate valuer and a land
valuer. He has served as manager of the operations department
of China Construction Bank’s Qinzhou Branch, manager of the
evaluation department of Guangdong National Publicity Evaluation
Consulting Group (&5 BIRE 5T {4742 5]), a manager of Media
Operations Department of GroupM (B2 M%&) in Guangzhou.
He is one of the few experts who is familiar with the trading
business of exchanges in the PRC.
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EERSHREEAEERE

Mr. Zhang Yongqiang, graduated from the South China
Agricultural University. Currently he is the chief financial officer
of Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity Exchange Company
Limited. He has successfully worked in Shenzhen City Tefa Group
Company Limited (RIIITH 4 SRE B R AF]) (formerly Shenzhen
Special Economic Region Development (Group) Company (4 Il
MEEFEREREBEBR2AF) and Shenzhen Branch of China
Ping An Insurance Group Co., Ltd., where he was engaged
in personnel, underwriting, and management work of a risk
management team. He also served successively as the vice
president of Shenzhen Sanwei Investment Limited (£JI= A& E
BR /A7), as well as the general manager and legal representative
of Shenzhen Dongze Supply Chain Management Co., Limited (%%
JImRBHEEEIEFRAF]). He has a solid financial strategic
background, risks management capability, and extensive legal
knowledge. He is able to make good use of various financial
instruments (banks, trusts, funds, leasing, etc.), and has a wealth
of management skills and practical experience in investment and
finance management.

* For identification purpose only
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012 (the
“Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing
financial and the relevant consultancy services to small and
medium-sized enterprises in Hebei Province and Xiamen City of
the PRC and online trading platform in Nanning and Guangzhou
City of the PRC. Details of the principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 49
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 90
to 244.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017. (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Group’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
2017, and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Notes to the Financial Statements”
sections of this report and are set out specially in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our commitment to protecting the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. Our Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

Our Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation of our Group’s businesses and enhance
environmental sustainability.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of our Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Our Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term
goals. Accordingly, our senior management have kept good
communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the year, there was
no material and significant dispute between our Group and its
business partners.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB147.41 million (2016: approximately RMB42.27 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements,
is set out on page 6. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements in this report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donations of approximately HK$178,000
were made by the Group (2016: approximately HK$240,000).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

=M% E

AEBEBRENEAVRERE 2REREE -
BEMEERES(REEKELEAM
BRELHERER)ANF6H - WHET
BRAREEECMBEHRR 281D -

-
38
B

gﬁﬁmgmaaz

RE-F—tF+-A=+—AILFE &
ARNEEANBATNEERE - HER
BEARFEM ETES -

HEBX

AY

TR AREBEERZEZBFA178,0007% T
(ZZF— 7 : 49240,000/8 7T) °

EHEFREMRX

REZSRMR SNESAERETS
W SERIT RS M A g B B B A
WHEE BRI BEETRARREETF
EREE ARAFRERTEEEERER
BERBEEENEZRSMABEETRR
tERIRIE ©

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



Report of the Directors

EEEWE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS PR HE A8 4 17 =

Save for the share option scheme of the Company and the BORIRTITXIEERARNFZTERER
Convertible Bonds as disclosed in the below sections headed A% fn M AHBE I (0 2 A2 KA B | Ko [ B8 A% 1
“INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL &T&1 /35 - ANAF Z BB #E T 81 A KAl
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND MfEHIN FAREBEBET L FEMT
UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” IR #E B E sk o

respectively no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEF

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s major #HE-ZT—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE &
customers are set out below: EEZEEEFHIBMT:

Percentage of total sales

HEFEEEEI
Sales HE®
— the largest customer — BAEP 2.59%
— the five largest customers combined — AREF&H 12.45%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which #iEEE « HEZB B ASEARE(GHE
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the SEFTAIER AR R AR IB5%) RALE
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five TAZFHEEET AR -

largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up
to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Kim Leung

Mr. Law Fei Shing

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Wing
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Pang Man Kin
Nixon, Mr. Chan Kim Leung and Mr. Law Fei Shing will retire
as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”).

CHANGE OF DIRECTORSHIP

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam resigned as an executive Director, the chief
executive officer and the vice chairman of the Company with
effect from 28 September 2017. Further details of the change of
directorship are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
28 September 2017.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year and all independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 29 to 36 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term
of three years from 6 January 2012 (renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year unless terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreement).

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2015 (renewable automatically
for successive terms of one year unless terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreement).

Mr. Law Fei Shing, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 31 December 2017.

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three
years from 13 May 2016 (renewable automatically for successive
terms of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms
of the service agreement).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term with effect
from 1 December 2017 until 30 November 2018.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to
the Articles.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

in note 43 to the financial
arrangements or contracts of

Save as disclosed above and
statements,
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which any of
the Company’s subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
any time during the year or at the end of the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

no transactions,

Remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, and the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The Company has conditionally adopted the
Share Option Scheme. The details of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in the paragraph headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
below.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

- RPHEHNZ
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of listed issuer as referred to in rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of Dealings”) were as
follows:

Report of the Directors

EEREAATRSTHRAE
RS B 3, ELAE A A B o
2B HEKRDREEE
ZEERKXE

R-ZF—+EFFTZA=+t—H EFEA

RAEHITBAB(RBITRABDRA
&Tiﬁlﬁﬂmﬂawil(rﬁ%i 7 N
= {5k B BEXVER) 2 Bt ~ HE B8 Ak 10 fo (B
E o BEAARERARRRIERE 7 KB
‘bﬂﬂﬂ(f%#&ﬁﬂhﬂ%ﬁj)%%ﬂmﬁaz
Erefl - skZERIZEGEM £ A7 Bl £5.461%
Pt EHBETAEFTETRIZLTIRE
(RELFREDAMEARE LB
Bz MORRIT:
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[I

(@) Long positions in the ordinary Shares of (a) EREENNBITZZER
HK$0.01 each and the underlying Shares REERBZHR
Total
Number of Shares Equity number of Approximate
R BAE derivatives Shares and percentage
Personal Corporate (share underlying of the issued
Name of Director interest interest options) Shares share capital
BRAESTETRE RORMEE HERITRAE
EEnE PN B R (B8 IR ) RHOBE Z2BOBDTL
(Note 3) (Note 4)
(B 7E3) (B 5E4)
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon 283,278,000 659,716,000 140,000,000 1,082,994,000 61.61%
(“Mr. Pang”) (Note 1)
ZXBERE(ERE]D (Mg3E1)
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu 90,600,000 5,696,000 15,000,000 111,296,000 6.33%
(“Dato’ Sri Hah”) (Note 2)
EEEEMEERMLEL (Kt 5E2)
(F-B:%i:0)
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

Notes:

These Shares were registered in the name of Team King Limited (“Team
King”), which was wholly owned by Capital Gain Investments Holdings
Limited (“Capital Gain”). Capital Gain was wholly owned by Mr. Pang.
Under the SFO, Mr. Pang was deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Team King by virtue of Team King being controlled by Mr. Pang
through Capital Gain.

These Shares were held by Jarmata Profits Limited, which was owned
as to 50% by Dato’ Sri Hah. Thus, he was deemed to be interested in
the 5,696,000 Shares held by Jarmata Profits Limited pursuant to the
SFO.

The interests in the share options (being regarded as unlisted physically
settled equity derivatives) are detailed under the paragraph headed
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report.

The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,757,810,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2017.

B &

3.

ZERDARBDERABRD(RE)ZEE
o RARBEEREERERAR(HE
END2BERE -AENOTRLERER
B REE %&%fhﬂ ESp7 il R
ERBEEES  WEZEEBRR RN
%hﬁ%@$%ﬁ$ﬂ°

Z % B fp Jarmata Profits Limited 5 & -

ZABREBY EHahBEA50% © it 0 1R
BEAFRBEBD - KEE RN Jarmata
Profits Limited Ff #§ / 2 5,696,000/% A% 17
mEER -

R e 22 CIRYESE L B B SRR AT A
TR AR (MR R B — B AR -

FZEALDBRR-FE—tF+-A=+—H
2 BT ) 8B 1,757,810,000 % & £ 25t
o
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Report of the Directors

(b) Long positions in the shares of associated
corporation

EEERE
(b) RIEBEEBRGZHFA

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held of interest in

Name of associated in associated associated

Name of Director corporation Capacity corporation corporation

FrisEE2®E MEBLZEERZ

EENA B EE S B 5% B & H i E SN

Mr. Pang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 50,000 100%

corporation
TRt AN A (BT 53 ZESEE R
Note: Team King was wholly owned by Capital Gain. Capital Gain was wholly iz : FEmEEE2EHEAE - BEmEZLEs 4
owned by Mr. Pang. WA -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the B LEXEEEIN NWZZE—+FE+-_A=

Directors or Chief Executives had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Required Standard of
Dealings.

T—B BEEFAZRSTHRAEBRAR
AREEMEREIE(EERIEFLHE
ERPIFEXVED) 2 Bty ~ HHER 0 B =E
A R BN R IBRE 75 M B B R P 5352
GRAGFEZERMhzBmaR A R
BRXZUTIRERAMEGARNT KRB TZ
EAmIRE -
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Report of the Directors

EEEWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF THE

gOMPASNY IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
HARE

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and
Chief Executives and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations
(other than the Directors and Chief Executives) in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

R-ZE—tHF+A=+—H BEFK
RE{TBRABMM  WREEZAEMT
EZARTHERARRFRZRHE  RE
EREBITHRAEIN TIALTIOEER
Bein sk AR B I A R SRR B 78 75 S
EGRPIFEIB6IHRAFE 2 EMz#ERE M

T

S
5

X
i

Total number Approximate
of Shares/ percentage
underlying of the issued

Name of substantial shareholder Capacity Shares share capital
B3 HHE HERTREZ
FTERRER g4 B% 17 #8 & BHOES
(Note 4)
(Bt 3E4)
Team King Beneficial owner 659,716,000 (L) 37.53%
7 1 Em#EAA
Capital Gain Through a controlled 659,716,000 (L) 37.53%
corporation (Note 1)
Bz REGEE S (MF3E1)
Prosperous International Beneficial owner 785,000,000 (L) 44.66%
Finance Limited (Note 2)
(“Prosperous International”)
EEBHRUBERAR(EEEE]) Em#EAA (Bt 5E2)
Mr. Chan Ting Lai (“Mr. Chan”) Beneficial owner and interest 820,240,000 (L) 46.66%
of controlled corporation (Note 3)
REEEE(REE]D BEnEaARZEGDEE#E R (Mg 7E3)

L) denotes long position

L &KREFE
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Notes:

1. These Shares were registered in the name of Team King, which was
wholly owned by Capital Gain. Capital Gain was wholly owned by Mr.
Pang. Under the SFO, Mr. Pang was deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Team King by virtue of Team King being controlled by
Mr. Pang through Capital Gain.

2. Prosperous International was issued the guaranteed and secured
convertible bonds in aggregate principal amount of HK$149,500,000
by the Company. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds at
the conversion price of HK$1.15 per conversion share, a total of
130,000,000 conversion shares will be issued. Moreover, the share
charge entered into between Team King as chargor and Prosperous
International as chargee pursuant to which 655,000,000 Shares held
by Team King was charged in favour of Prosperous International.
Therefore, 785,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares were held by
and in favour of Prosperous International.

3. Out of these 820,240,000 Shares and underlying Shares, 35,240,000
Shares were beneficially owned by Mr. Chan. The sole legal and
beneficial owner of Prosperous International was Mr. Chan. Under
the SFO, Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested in 785,000,000
Shares and underlying Shares held by and in favour of Prosperous
International.

4. The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,757,810,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, there was
no person or corporation (other than the Directors and Chief
Executives) who had any interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

B &

1. ZEBROUNAEHREL ZARHET
2EBR HERAL2EHRE - BREE
FRBAEGRG  AAMAZEEBREE
ZH - MEZEERE BN A RN
hHEAREG -
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EEEWE

OTHER INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE
SFO

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there
was no other person who had interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares that is discloseable under section
336 of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
in this report, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2017 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2017 had the Directors and the Chief Executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) any
interest in, or been granted, or exercised any rights to subscribe
for the Shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the SFO).

N 72
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 1 December
2011 whereby the Board was authorised, at its absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to the Eligible Persons (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme) to subscribe for the Shares as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
from the Company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on
6 January 2012 (the “Listing Date”). Movements relating to the
share options granted during the year ended 31 December 2017
were as follows:

Number of share options

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

BREE

ARAR=_F——F+-_A—BRMABER
At E - B EEEREEERABHE
B KRBERE S 2 HGEAREARE
BhzBEETEERAL(EERBK
Eata))  FERERFHAKEMERR &
BiskElk - BEREASHHARTNR_-F
——F—ARB(LEwHH ) EH 3 PTGEM
EHETFHN—BERRREN - BREC
REBEBRERBE_T—EF+-_A=1
—ALFEZEHMT:

BREHA
At At Exercise
Date of grant Owners/Grantees 1 Jan 2017 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 31 Dec 2017 Exercise period price
RZB-tf RZB-t%#
REAH BEA/REA -B-8 BRI B BANM ER# t=A=t+-H cd: ke
HKS
BT
25 Jun 2015 Employees 37,070,000 - - 37,070,000 - — 25 Jun 2015 to 24 Jun 2017 2.582
ZE-1f EE ZZ-RENAZTRAZE
~AZTEE ZE-t§RAZTEA
Consultants 21,000,000 - — 21,000,000 - — 25 Jun 2015 to 24 Jun 2017 2.582
B ZE-RERAZTRREZE
“E-+FRAZTRA
2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 - — 25 Jun 2016 to 24 Jun 2017 2.582
ZE-A¥~AZtTRAZ
ZE-tFNAZTER
2,500,000 - - - — 2,500,000 25 Jun 2017 to 24 Jun 2018 2.582
ZE—tERAZTHRE
-/ \&~AZTEA
12 Nov 2015 Director
—EI-1F g2
+—HA+=H  — LawFei Shing 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 - — 12 Nov 2015 to 11 Nov 2017 1.03
- BB E-RET-ATZHE
ZE-tET-At-H
Employees 51,000,000 — 6,250,000 44,750,000 - — 12 Nov 2015 to 11 Nov 2017 1.03
B2 “E-RET-ATZHE
ZZ-t5+-A1-H
Consultants 70,000,000 - — 70,000,000 - — 12 Nov 2015 to 11 Nov 2017 1.03
L “E-RE+-ATZRE
e o B =
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Number of share options

BREHA
At At Exercise
Date of grant Owners/Grantees 1 Jan 2017 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 31 Dec 2017 Exercise period price
it 3 RZB-t#
REAH BEA/REA -A-H BRi [REiE:d BRA BH# t-A=t-8 s ke
HKS
B
17 Dec 2015 Employees 100,000 - - 100,000 - — 17 Dec 2016 to 16 Dec 2017 0.97
—E-1f B2 ZE-RETZATLRE
TZATtH ZE-t+EtZATA
Consultants 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 17 Dec 2015 to 16 Dec 2018 0.97
Bl “E-RFtZFTtRZ
ZE-\ETZAFRA
21 Jan 2016 Director
ZE-RF g3
-A=t+-8 — Pang Man 140,000,000 - - - — 140,000,000 21 Jan 2016 to 20 Jan 2021 0.852
Kin Nixon
(‘Mr. Pang’)
- PNR(wEE]) “Z-RE-AZt-BZ
—E--F-f-1H
Ex-Director
AIfES
— Chang Hoi Nam 100,000,000 - — 100,000,000 - — 21 Jan 2016 to 20 Jan 2021 0.852
(‘Mr. Chang’)
- R E(REE] ZE-RE-AZt-BZ
ZBRI-E-fC
13 May 2016 Director
ZE-RF g3
nA+=H — Dato’ Sri Hah 15,000,000 - - - — 15,000,000 13 May 2016 to 12 May 2019 1.020
Tiing Siu
- ERE ZE-R¥RAt=HE
“Z-NAFRATZA
456,170,000 - 6,250,000 290,420,000 — 159,500,000
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The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to grant options to the
Eligible Persons as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
Group. The Company conditionally adopted a Share Option Scheme on
1 December 2011 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to subscribe for the Shares of the Company to the Eligible Persons.
The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing from the Listing Date.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Person shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. The Option will be
offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the date on which the
Option is granted. The subscription price for the Shares subject to Options
will be a price determined by the Board and notified to each participant and
shall be the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Options,
which must be a day on which trading of Shares take place on the Stock
Exchange (the “Trading Day”); (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the Options; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share. For the purpose of calculating the subscription price, in the
event that on the date of grant, the Company has been listed on the Stock
Exchange for less than 5 Trading Days, the issue price shall be used as the
closing price for any Trading Day falling within the period before the Listing
Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during
a period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
has complied with the requirements in compliance with the
requirements of the Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the substantial
Shareholders and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
EMPLOYEES WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees are set out in note 11 of the notes to the financial
statements in this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient
public float in compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages
56 to 69 in this report.
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AUDITOR % ELED

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended #HE-ZT—+HF+_-_A=+—HIFEZ
31 December 2017 have been audited by the Company’s auditor, #AMEBRERCHARAR ZXHBEIE B L
BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves ZEZ @t ESAER AT EZ - ®iG
for re-appointment at the AGM. The Company has not changed EETUWHABRAENKRAFAE LE
its external auditor since the Listing Date and up to the date of R#ET - AQBE LM HBEZEAKFERH
this report. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as ~ Ef 117 R T SN ER 4% B F  BREE B3
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM. EREMEBMERARAARRAZE
MzRERBRABRRBFAELIRE -

By order of the Board REEG W
China Assurance Finance Group Limited TERMREHEEERAR
Pang Man Kin Nixon FEERHTEEF
Chairman and Executive Director EXR
Hong Kong, 26 March 2018 BEE T N\F=ZA=+<AH
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
Shareholders and enhance its corporate value. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code”).

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code with the following exception:

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Since 28 September 2017, the Company did
not have any officer with the title of Chief Executive Officer. The
overall responsibility of supervising and ensuring that the Group
functions in line with the order of the Board in terms of day-to-day
operations and execution is vested in the Board itself. The Board
is of the view that there exists a balance of power and authority
and will review the current practice from time to time and make
appropriate changes if necessary.

Code provisions A.5.3, B.1.3 and C.3.4 require that the terms
of reference of each of the nomination committee, remuneration
committee and audit committee of the Company should be made
available in the Company’s website. The Company’s website
is renewed, therefore the terms of reference are not available
temporarily. These terms of reference will be uploaded to the
Company’s website by the end of April 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors (the “Required Standard of
Dealings”). The Company has confirmed, having made specific
enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have complied with
the Required Standard of Dealings throughout the year ended
31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors and their
respective roles are set out as follows:

Executive Director and Chairman
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon
Mr. Chan Kim Leung
Mr. Law Fei Shing

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu

Mr. Chan Kai Wing Independent non-executive

Director
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Independent non-executive
Cheung Director
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Independent non-executive
Director

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
published at the GEM website and the Company’s website
(www.cafgroup.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication to determine overall strategic direction and
objectives and approve quarterly, interim and annual results, and
other significant matters. The Board held 9 meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of
each Director at the respective Board and committee meetings
are set out in the table on page 65 of this report.

Notices with agenda of the Board meeting are duly given to each
Director. Minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the Company
Secretary and is open for inspection by any Directors.

If a Director has an interest in the resolutions to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Board will ensure the resolutions will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than written resolutions and the board
will also ensure that an adequate number of independent non-
executive Directors are involved in the consideration of the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors are encouraged
to take an active role in Board meetings.

The Board and the Management of the Company

The Board and the management of the Company (the
“Management”) work together toward synergy in order to strive
for excellent performance of the Company. The Company is
governed by the Board, which is responsible for overseeing the
overall strategy and development of the Company, as well as
monitoring the risk management and internal control systems and
evaluating the financial performance of the Group. The Board sets
the overall strategies and directions for the Group with a view to
developing its business and enhancing the Shareholders’ value.
The day to day management, administration, operation of the
Group and adoption of the Company’s strategies and policies are
delegated to the Management. The clear responsibilities division
between the Board and the Management ensured the power and
authority are balanced and not concentrated in any one individual.
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Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors which representing more than one-third
of the Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Independent non-executive Directors,
together with the executive Directors, ensure that the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with the relevant standards. The Company has
received an annual confirmation of independence from each of
the Independent non-executive Directors and believes that their
independence is in compliance the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Relationships between the Board

Saved as disclosed in the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” section of this report, there are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Continuous Professional Development of the
Directors

Each Director receives comprehensive and formal induction and
orientation to ensure he/she adequately understand the operations
and business of the Group. The Company also provided
detailed director’s responsibilities and obligations statement
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules for the Director to review and
study. In addition, materials in relation to regularly update on
latest development in relation to the GEM Listing Rules, other
applicable regulatory requirements and the Group’s business and
governance policies (the “Reading Materials in relation to
Continuous Professional Developments”) were circulated to
the Directors. Continuing briefings and seminars for the Directors
will be arranged as necessary. The Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional developments to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skKills periodically.
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BHE_ZT—+tF+-_A=1+—HIFE"
EE2ETIERRFBEERERZFE:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments in the
following manner:

Attending Seminars/Courses/
Conferences/In-house
Briefings in Relation to
Continuous Professional

Reading Materials in
Relation to Continuous
Professional

Name Developments Developments
ERREEX LEERRESXREL

£ BRZMEME EUE/RE/EE/ABEHR

Executive Directors HiTEFE

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon TXBEE v

Mr. Chan Kim Leung BRRIRTE v

Mr. Law Fei Shing BRERTE v v

Dato’Sri Hah Tiing Siu EESEMEE AR %L v

Independent non-executive ~ BV HHTEE

Directors

Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRERTE v v

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung  #Jk 8% 4% v

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FERELE v v

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon is currently the Chairman of the Board.
The position of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. Chang
Hoi Nam during the period from 1 January 2017 to 28 September
2017. Since then, the Company has not had any officer with
the title of Chief Executive Officer. The overall responsibility of
supervising and ensuring that the Group functions in line with the
order of the Board in terms of day-to-day operations and execution
is vested in the Board itself.

The Board is of the view that there exists a balance of power and
authority and will review the current practice from time to time
and make appropriate changes if necessary.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has taken primary
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term
of three years from 6 January 2012 (renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year unless terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreement).

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2015 (renewable automatically
for successive terms of one year unless terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreement).

Mr. Law Fei Shing, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing
from 31 December 2017.

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of three
years from 13 May 2016 (renewable automatically for successive
terms of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms
of the service agreement).

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term with effect
from 1 December 2017 until 30 November 2018.

In accordance with the article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third shall retire from the office and being
eligible offer themselves for re-election provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who
have been longest in office since their last appointment or re-
appointment.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in order to maintain high level of corporate
governance standard of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Pang
Man Kin Nixon, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management, to
review performance based remuneration and to ensure none of
the Directors determine their own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the
policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed
the performance of executive Directors and approved the terms
of executive Director’'s services contracts. The Remuneration
Committee adopted the model which is described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code, it makes recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table
on page 65 of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with code provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Pang
Man Kin Nixon, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
(chairman of the Nomination Committee).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis;
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
to access the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors.

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee determined
the policy for the nomination of Directors. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for identifying potential directors,
reviewing the credentials of the potential director base on his/her
qualifications, skills, experience, credibility and reputation. Once
the Nomination Committee confirmed the potential director(s) is/are
qualified to be the Director(s) and his/her appointments are in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, it will
make recommendations to the Board for approval. The director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting after his/her appointment and shall
be subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject to
re-election by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of each
member of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on
page 65 of this report.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of
the CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung and
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor, to approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement, to review and monitor
the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, to review the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting; and oversee financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has met its responsibilities to review the
Group’s quarterly reports for the three months and nine months
ended 31 March 2017 and 30 September 2017 respectively,
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and the
Group’s audited annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017 and provided advice and comments thereon. The Audit
Committee also made recommendations to the Board and the
Management in respect of the Group’s financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page 65 of
this report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of
the Board and its respective committees during the year ended
31 December 2017 are as follows:

SRERRE

ETERLERLE

HE-_Z—t&+-A=+—HBLEFE"
EERNEFERENERZE G 2@E
FERBMT

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Committee Committee Committee  Annual General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Exg REZEE yMzeg ENZEg BRREF
Ezg gE EE EE EE -1
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon YXBEE 99 N/A 11 N/A 11
Mr. Chan Kim Leung BRI EE 8/9 N/A N/A N/A 11
Mr. Law Fei Shing ERE KA 8/9 N/A N/A N/A 11
Dato'Sri Hah Tiing Siu EESEBNERRALAE 4/9 N/A N/A N/A 0
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam Kl mEE 5/7 0/2 N/A N/A 0N
(resigned on (R=Z—t#F
28 September 2017) NAZFNBEE)
Independent Non-executive BUF¥#HTEE
Directors
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRELEE 9/9 2/2 11 5/5 11
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung #%Jk & %t & 99 2/2 11 5/5 11
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEELE 7/9 N/A N/A 4/5 1

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties in accordance with code provision D.3.1 to the CG Code
which are included to develop and review the Company policies
and practices on corporate governance, to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management of the Company, the issuer’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and reviewing the issuer’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, remuneration paid
and payable to the auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) are
approximately HK$1,880,000 for audit services and nil for non-
audit services respectively.

Directors’ Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this report.

Financial Reporting

The Management has provided to all Directors quarterly updates
with quarterly consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details during the
regular Board meetings. In addition, the management has provided
all members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any
material changes to the performance, position and prospects of
the Company and sufficient information for matters brought before
the Board. The management will spare no effort to provide all
members of the board with more detailed and promptly monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail in
coming future.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group has been conducted at least annually,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and ensuring adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited with
professional staff in possession of relevant expertise to conduct an
independent review of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2017, in order to ensure and enhance (i) proper process used to
identify, evaluate and manage significant risks; (i) main features of
the risk management and internal control systems were identified;
(i) the systems were designed to manage the risks to achieve
business objectives and provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss; (iv) appropriate process to resolve
material internal control defects; and (v) effective procedures and
internal controls for inside information management.

The Company has an internal audit function. The Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group annually and considered
that the systems were effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Po Ling Pauline is engaged and appointed by the
Company from an external secretarial services provider as its
Company Secretary. The primary corporate contact person of the
Company is Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and
the chairman of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Wong
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put their
enquiries to the Board

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@cafgroup.hk or by mail to the principle
address of the Company at Units 03-05, 17/F., K. Wah Centre,
191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt
with in timely manner. The Shareholders are also encouraged to
attend the AGM and extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”)
of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board directly.
Notices are duly being circulated to the Shareholders in order to
ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM and the
EGM. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and the
senior Management attend the aforesaid meetings and respond
to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the proxy forms
and will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and EGM orally
in the beginning of the aforesaid meetings.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may include a resolution to be considered at an
EGM. The requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Procedures for the Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed
to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate information
to its Shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of
the Company (www.cafgroup.hk) has provided an effective
communication platform to the public and the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there had not been
any changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS dgRERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report is the second Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) issued by China Assurance Finance Group
Limited (the “Company”) reporting on the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) in the
environmental, social and governance aspects.

This report is prepared in Chinese and English and has
been uploaded to the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company at
www.cafgroup.hk.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report focuses on the operations of the online trading
platform services and financing guarantee and advisory services
businesses of China Assurance Finance Group Limited from
January 2017 to December 2017 (the “Year”). The scope of this
Report covers our principal place of business in Hong Kong (a
head office), as well as each head office in Zhangjiakou and
Nanning in the PRC (the “Points of Business”). The Group will
continuously improve our internal data collection procedures as
we progressively expand our scope of disclosure.

A complete index is appended to the last chapter of this Report
for the convenience of readers in navigating this Report with the
Index.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

The information disclosed in this Report are taken from the
Group’s internal documents and statistical data. The Report has
been confirmed and approved by the Board of the Group on
26 March 2018.

FEEDBACK

The Group values feedback from our stakeholders. If you have any
questions or suggestions on the content or the form of reporting
of this Report, you are welcome to contact the Group via the
following:

Address: Units 1703—05, 17th Floor, K. Wah Centre,
191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong

Email: info@cafgroup.hk

Telephone:  852-31570001

Fax: 852-31570002

" Public Building Operators (Enterprises) Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting
Method and Reporting Guidebook (Pilot)
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental sustainability is a focus issue of concern in the
Group’s fulfilment of our corporate social responsibility. The Group
has complied with relevant environmental laws and regulations
in our Points of Business, and has formulated our Environmental
Protection Policies Declaration to demonstrate our resolve in
committing to protect the environment.

EMISSIONS

The Group undertakes:

° to minimise the production of air pollutants and greenhouse
gas emissions produced in our business operations;

o to use internationally recognised or equivalent local
standards in assessing and externally disclosing greenhouse
gas emissions in our business operations;

° to prevent and minimise the production of waste.

As the business scope involved in this report is mainly office
operations, no emissions of significant impact to the environment
was produced. The main emissions include: air emissions
produced in using gasoline-powered vehicles, greenhouse gases
indirectly produced in consuming electricity, and sewage and solid
waste. The sewage and solid waste discharged by the Group’s
Points of Business arise from domestic activities of our employees,
and no industrial wastewater or industrial waste was produced.
The domestic sewage produced the the Group are discharged via
local pipelines and treated at sewage treatment plants. In order
to reduce the production of emissions, the Group has issued
our Environmental Protection Measures and Guidelines, providing
guidance to employees in reducing routine emissions production.

During the Year, the Group engaged a consultancy to conduct
a carbon assessment to quantify our greenhouse gas emissions
(otherwise know as “carbon emissions”) produced in our
operations; reference was made to the guidebook issued by the
PRC National Development and Reform Commission' and the
guidelines prepared by Hong Kong's Environmental Protection
Department and Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
in the quantification process.

2 Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals
for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong
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HERERRE

The Group’s carbon emissions arise mainly from usage of
externally purchased electricity in Aspect 2 and business air
travel in Aspect 3. Regarding our main sources of carbon
emissions, the Group will continue to evaluate, record and make
annual disclosures on our greenhouse gas emissions and other
environmental data. We will also use present year data as the basis
for comparison with past data, thereby reviewing the effectiveness
of prevailing measures, which will aid in formulating emissions
reduction targets in future.

An index is appended to the penultimate chapter of this report to
provide relevant data on environmental performance indicators.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is deeply aware that fair use of resources is an
indispensable aspect of sustainable development. The Group
undertakes:

° to adopt principles of reduce, reuse and recycle, increasing
usage efficiency in energy, paper, water, as well as other
resources in our daily operations;

° to inculcate within the Group a culture of environmental
protection, raising eco-friendly awareness among our
employees;

° to formulate practical
environmental protection;

° to ensure sustained communication with employees on
environmental protection policies;

o to inspect the implementation of the policies declaration on
a regular basis to ensure its effective implementation.

and measurable targets in

A number of our Points of Business have through channels such
as internal guidelines and internal communications continuously
promoted water saving habits to our employees. For instance,
in the event of a discovery of leakage in bathroom facilities,
the relevant department is promptly informed to arrange for
maintenance.
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Electricity is the Group’s most consumed energy, stemming mainly
from the operation of air conditioning, office lighting and electrical
appliances. The Group is committed to urging our employees
to practice energy saving measures in areas such as lighting,
computer usage and paper.

RE B RERERE

BENRAEERARZNER T2XE

* Switching off unnecessary lighting in shared areas (such as
reception and pantry areas) when there is less people around (for
instance, during lunch hours and outside office hours)

* Switching off some lighting in areas where there is sufficient sunlight

illuminating indoor areas

Switching off lighting in areas where there is no one around

Lighting
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* Changing computer settings and activating standby or sleep modes
which automatically switches off displays or enters into power saving
mode upon prolonged idling of computers

Switching off displays during lunch hours or leaving the workstation
for meetings, even if it is for a short period of time

Computers |G
%

FUBMRE  RBBMOSHIAEES  ZEEHER )
B BRRSEDRENE A BER

TEF RIS TR 7 KPA G - ENEREERE
BT

g

J

* Using recycled paper or paper produced from sustainable resources
(such as FSC paper)

* Reusing envelopes and files in despatching internal documents and
correspondences

® Using electronic communication and electronic archival
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® Using refrigerators reasonably, formulating energy saving solutions
* Sorting waste into recycling bins
* Maintaining/replacing underperforming equipment
® Giving priority consideration to environmentally friendly
products or materials in procurement processes
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The Group plans to adopt more energy saving and emissions
reduction measures in the next year, such as installation of
motion sensors or light sensors in office rooms, conference
room, pantries, washrooms, etc. in order to regulate lighting and
instill eco-friendly awareness among employees, and encouraging
employees to take the stairs for movement between one to two
floors in the office instead of the elevator.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, daily operations of our
businesses have no significant adverse impact on the environment.
The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations
and did not find any cases of breach of regulations relating to
emissions and the environment. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue to assess environmental risks in our business operations
to formulate responsive measures and regularly review and update
our environmental protection policies.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group has complied with all applicable laws and regulations of
our Points of Business, and have formulated the Employment and
Labour Practices Declaration with respect to the circumstances
of the Group’s operations, in our commitment to provide all
employees with a diversified working environment which cares for
health and safety and is free of discrimination and harassment.

Employment

The Group sees talent as key to corporate success and
sustainable development. The Group has complied with
employment laws and regulations in our Points of Business, and
have provided in our Employment Measures and Guidelines:

o standardised selection criteria and neutral terminology is to
be used in recruitment advertisements;

o a work evaluation system is to be established which ensures
that employees are treated equally in aspects such as
promotion, reassignment, training, career development,
dismissal and retrenchment;

o evaluation criteria is to be reviewed from time to time to
ensure that the criteria adopted do not include discriminatory
elements;

° a diversified employee talent pool is to be built to provide
fair opportunity for employees of different backgrounds.

During the reporting year, the Group did not find any cases of
breach of regulations relating to employment.

In future, the Group will promote information relating to equal
opportunity, discrimination and harassment to our employees
through internal communication, and establish a complaint
mechanism to promptly handle and respond to complaints and
feedback relating to employment.

Health and Safety

In order to build a healthy and safe working environment, the
Group provides appropriate and adequate personal safety
equipment to minimise the risks of employees sustaining injuries or
contracting diseases at the workplace or encounter occupational
hazards. During the reporting year, the Group did not find any
cases of breach of regulations relating to health and safety.
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In future, the Group will endeavour to formulate a occupational
health and safety management system, organising occupational
health training to raise health awareness among employees and
build a positive working environment and atmosphere.

Development and Training

The organisation arranges a variety of employee training, not
only to help them increase their work skills and raise operational
efficiency, but also to provide personal development opportunities
for them. While the Group is yet to have a complete training
solution and scheme, we plan to invest resources in the training
and career development of employees in the next year, identifying
training needs of employees and providing them with adequate
training opportunities.

Labour Standards

The Group has complied with relevant labour laws and
regulations in our Points of Business, prohibiting child labour
and forced labour. The Group has expressedly provided for a
minimum working age, and conducts thorough review of relevant
documentation and verifies age and identity to avoid employment
of child labour and forced, bonded (including debt bonded) or
contract labour, involuntary prison labour, trafficked labour or slave
labour. The Group has formulated employment policies in writing
and specified documentation verification requirements during
recruitment in our Employment Measures and Guidelines, as well
as measures to safeguard employee rights.

During the reporting year, the Group did not find any cases of
breach of law relating to child labour or forced labour.

In future, the Group will establish a risk assessment process to
identify risks in misemployment of child labour and occurrence of
forced labour cases, and monitor the implementation of measures
preventing child labour and forced labour to ensure their effective
execution.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group has complied with all applicable laws and regulations
of our Points of Business, and have formulated the Supply Chain
Management, Product Responsibility and Anti-corruption Policy
Declaration in our commitment to properly manage the relevant
environmental and social risks in our daily operations.

Supply Chain Management

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is vital to properly manage
the supply chain. The Group undertakes:

° to conduct stringent selection of suppliers and conduct
regular review of their performances;

° to identify environmental and social risks of suppliers and
formulate corresponding measures;

o to incorporate environmental and social performance of
suppliers into assessment criteria;

° to ensure sustained communication with and timely provision
of support to suppliers.

In future, the Group will establish a risk assessment process to
identify environmental and social risks of suppliers, and formulate
a Supplier Code of Conduct to drive the fulfilment of corporate
social responsibility of suppliers.

Product Responsibility

The Group provides our clients with online trading platform
services and financing guarantee and advisory services.
The Group values each and every client and is dedicated to
provide satisfactory services for our clients through sustained
improvements in the quality of our services. The Group
undertakes:

° to provide healthy and safe services for our clients;

° to respect statutory privacy rights of our clients in collecting,
storing, using and transmitting their personal data;

° to take sufficient measures in properly safeguarding the
personal data of our clients;

o to formulate remedies to timely and effectively respond in
case of client data leakage events;

° to take sufficient measures in maintaining and protecting
intellectual property rights.
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Currently, the Group’s operations relating to the online trading
platform services and financing guarantee and advisory services
businesses do not involve product labelling matters. During the
reporting year, the Group did not find any cases of breach of law
relating to product responsibility.

The Group plans to sustain improvements in management relating
to product responsibility, paying attention to amendments to
regulations in product safety and follow up in a timely manner,
and provide balanced, accurate, honest and fair information in our
various marketing and communication channels.

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment and prevent any form of corrupt conduct,
the Group undertakes:

° to create an anti-corruption atmosphere within the Group
and raise anti-corruption awareness among employees;

° to ensure sustained communication with our employees
and clients with regard to anti-corruption policies and
implementation;

° to take measures in preventing the appearance of behaviour
such as bribery, blackmail, fraud and laundering from
occurring in our business operations.

During the reporting year, the Group did not find any cases in
breach of the law relating to corruption.

In future, the Group will establish a complaint mechanism to
promptly handle and respond to complaints and feedback relating
to corruption.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - tERERBE

Community Investment HERE

The Group has formulated the Community Investment Policy ZHNEEBEG|FE(HRBEEHREEZER) LB
Declaration in our commitment to fulfilling our corporate BT ESTE  ALEEMAERIEHERE -
responsibilities to make contributions to the community in which A @ MIRHE A EEBE - NEE A
we operate in and to create value for society and the environment.

The Group undertakes:

o to actively invest resources dedicated to supporting schemes o BiRERER SR Feeesde

and activities which positively impact social development; HRER FEERNTEMES
o to internally promote a corporate culture of responsibility; o EAEERNSEEGETHNNLEX
1t
o to encourage and arrange employees to participate in e SRR LTHET2EETIREMEE
volunteer services and charity events; SEB)
o to capitalise on our technology/service advantages in making e BEOIHRRMN/REEDR AL E
contributions to the community in which we operate in. FrEt mEHERL ©

In future, the Group will progressively seek to understand — 7K£ [k 2K 15 & 2 BE R 1~ [ 2 48 Bh P e 4
the needs of the communities in which our different Points RMZEZE AT AEEESRTHEHE
of Business are in, in order to determine the areas in which [ : R /EL B - BEIMiBEle A1t e
the Group should focus our contributions. We will also make ZEA R IFEFZEZT2IMEH WKL
provisions for sponsorships and donations for schemes and events (B ETIE/NE - BE B AL EZERE
which positively impact social development. We will establish a )& EIF 0 °

community investment working group, which will be responsible

for coordinating the execution of our community investment

measures.

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (RE HERERBEIE
Content Index SIYRAREG

4 Subject areas
FTEHE

Statistics
Content for the year Page index

A& FEGITHT EWBREI

A. Environmental

A. R
A1 Emissions
Al HE

Generall
Disclosure

—REE

Al
Al

Al1.2
A1.2

A1.3

A1.3

Information on: - 69-70
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
ERERKAERBHER  MAKRTHHEES BERE
FEEVHNELESH
@ XX
) BIFHETABEAZENHEBEEZLBROINELR -
The types of emissions and respective emission data. - —

i/ R R CUNEIE) i - §

Sulphur oxides ("000 g). 0.68 -
ety (Fr)

Nitrogen oxides (‘000 g). 4.57 —
AREey(T=)

Particulate matter (000 g). 0.38 —
Ry (Tx)

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (tonnes). 147 —
BEREE BN E ()

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity (CO,e tonnes/m?). 0.004 -
BERBHEREE(M _S/{HEE/FAR)

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes) — 0.505 —

(Hong Kong and Zhangjiakou).

FEEEEEEYBEME) - (BEREKERA)

Intensity of hazardous waste produced (tonnes/m?) 0.00005 —
— (Hong Kong and Zhangjiakou).

MEEEEREYNEREMFAR) - (EBEERKRRA)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - tERERBE

Subject areasContent

TEER
Al.4
Al.4

A1.5

A1.5
A1.6

A1.6

R&
Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) — (Zhangjiakou).
FRELABEEZEDHES (W) - CRKA)

Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes/m?)

— (Zhangjiakou).

FREABREEZEYNEE W/ FHR) - (RKXH)
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.

HIURESRENEEEAEKER -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIEBREERBZTEEYN L HEELESNEREK
FRGECR o

A2 Use of Resources

A2 EiREH

General
Disclosure
— MR
A2.1

A2

A2.2

A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BERERERBIERIR - KR EAM RV BB -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (000 kWh).
REMNESNEER, /SEEER(NE - RH)BES
(FEF )

Direct energy

HiERR

Indirect energy

fE 3% B2 IR

Intensity of direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) (000 kWh/m?)
REMESHNEER SHEERWE  KR3Uh)OEE
(FETFTEEFAR)

Water consumption in total (tonnes) — (Nanning and
Zhangjiakou).

mrEKkEMm) - (BERKRKA)

Water consumption intensity (tonnes/m? — (Nanning and
Zhangjiakou).

FARBEM,/ FHR) - (MEREKRRA)

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

it B2 IR 2 A A s AT &I R PR AS BC R ©

Statistics
for the year

REZGTET

312

m

201

0.009

775

0.025
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRSE

Statistics
Subject areasContent for the year Page index

FTRER AE rEGRITHET BB RS

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water - 70-71
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
A2.4 SR EUGE A KR ER BER B E - A RB A RK G
EIRFRIGAR ©
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (tonnes). - —
A2.5 X BAABEMENGAE )

Total packaging material used for finished products per unit - —
produced (tonnes/unit).

HEmAAEEMHNEGEESUGEE W FEBA)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 RERRXARER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the - 71
Disclosure environment and natural resources.

— R EE BMEBTAHRERRARERERKERZENEEK -

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the - 71

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

A3.1 B EBEHHRERRABERNEAZERDKINE R
FETENTH -

B. Social

B. #&

B1 Employment

B1 E{&

General Information on: — 72
Disclosure (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— R EE ML RE BEREA ITERH - R TSK

g Zib - RIBAE A R E MR E R AE A

@ xR

() BFHBETAREAZENHEBEZLRRAANER -
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RIE - HERERRE

Statistics
Subject areasContent for the year Page index

TEHRE AR TERITHTF BERZES
B2 Health and Safety

B2 BEHEZZE
General Information on: — 72-73
Disclosure (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

— R EE ERRERMZE2THEREAMREEEHEBELEEN:
(@ BE: &
() BEFTHETABEAZENHBEZELAONER -

B3 Development and Training
B3 R RiEI

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for - 73
Disclosure discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
— R EE ERRAEEBITIEBENMB R EENBUR - fil s

FEE o

B4 Labour Standards

B4 & T %8|
General Information on: - 73
Disclosure (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
— MR EEBLEETSAHETH:
@@ BX: &
(o) BFTHBETABEAZENHBEZERAONER -

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 fit fE g8 EE

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the - 74
Disclosure supply chain.
— R EE ERHEENREREERARBEK -
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Statistics
Subject areasContent for the year Page index

TEHER AES REGTHF ER RS
B6 Product Responsibility
B6 EmE

General Information on: - 74-75
Disclosure (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
— R EE FRAMRHERMRENRERELZS  BE  REILE
EENARER A -
(@) BUR : &
(o) BFTHBETABEAZENHBEZERAGNER -

B7 Anti-corruption

B7 R&ES
General Information on: - 75
Disclosure (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— R EE BREAMEEE 9R HFEMERERN:

(@) B}

(o) BEFTHETABEAZENHBEZERLRAONER -

B8 Community Investment
B8 HE®RE

General Policies on community engagement to understand the - 76
Disclosure needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

—REE BENHR2ERTREENEHEFTENBREXERE
BEEEMEMNBEHEEK o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN 2 BEN RS

IBDO

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
90 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and whether the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

BEATHEPI5R
KRHD2548

BHERRARTHEEARAARR
(REAEFHSTME L2 HRLA])

RER2EERY

AEBEATEBIESF)EEEZIAR
FEAU4EZFTFERREREEARA
Al((ERARADEAMEAR (AHIERE])
ZREAMBHRE  MEMBREREBER
E—tFFT A=+ RHZEEHHMRR
REBEZHLEFEZGAEEEARER
RERDEDRIGEEAITRER UK
RaBHRRME(BREIEeREM

£)-

EEITTY BEENGFEMBHRRER
BER -BARABRE[REEHELE| R
MEENEEN  BEARENGEENEE
MEAZBARBEERZS R MBHRE
MEABENEE ULMBEAVBHRRE
GEEBRBEARGINBNERETLER
8 o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1.

Scope limitation — impairment assessment on
trade name and business license
(the “Intangible Assets”)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the
Intangible Assets acquired and the deferred tax liabilities
arising from the acquisition of Nanning (China-ASEAN)
Commodity Exchange Company Limited (‘NCCE”) amounted
to approximately RMB864,321,000 and RMB215,906,000
respectively. NCCE is a 52.63% owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As disclosed in the unaudited interim report of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2017, the spot trading
business of NCCE has been temporarily suspended since
June 2017 due to the rectification actions taken by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”). As
at 31 December 2017, in assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the Intangible
Assets belonged, the directors of the Company have
referenced to a valuation report prepared by an independent
professional qualified valuer based on a cash flow forecast
prepared by the directors of the Company on the assumption
that the Group will be able to resume the spot trading
business of NCCE in 2018. The directors of the Company
concluded that no impairment loss on the Intangible Assets
is required to be recognised.

As we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to assess the likelihood and timing of the Group
to resume the spot trading business of NCCE, we are
not able to satisfy ourselves of the appropriateness of the
assumptions made by the directors of the Company in
assessing the recoverable amount and carrying amount of
the Intangible Assets as at 31 December 2017, whether any
impairment of the Intangible Assets should be recognised,
and whether any further adjustment to the Intangible Assets
related liability should be made.

%

B2 AR E

EEHEE

05 [3] PR ) — 39 7 55 2 75 €
g%ﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ(ﬁm wE

RZE—tF+ZA=+—H Bz
WEmE(FE-RBE)AmXSME
RARI((RERBRDEEELER
HBE DR A A R%864,321,000
7T K A R #215,906,0007C ° R B %
SR ARBHEAES2.63% BERNT A
ajo

an RAEEZZT—t+tFA=T
Elﬂ:/\flﬂZﬁii‘“gﬂ‘?‘:’:‘ﬁﬁ#ﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬂi

CEZE—LEFANAR RERS
FIRERSGEBERTHESEEE
BZEg((PERERETERE
ETEERFRLE RZTE—EF+=
A=+—H8' ZQREFEFHE
FEEMBReEXEM(REELE
BuDHAI KB SRR B2 EHE
VEESERGEMBER AR

HERE BEAFEEREMNRE
ERARZKAEE BTN —/\FIRE
HEEENRERSHEK - HRQA
EERE BERRBEEEENR
BE1E -

MR EEEEZNEEHANEE =
B ART A %@Iﬁfﬁiﬁiéx%%%

mT%ﬁ&%ﬁ WMESEEEITHE
& BRAREFAMELMBRRAETHE
BEEER-_ZT—tH&+_A=1+—
AR e B R EEER - 25k
BRELEERENRRLREE—S
AEEFEERNEEERGEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 % @
¢ €



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZEMRE

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

1.

Scope limitation — impairment assessment on
trade name and business license
(the “Intangible Assets”) (continued)

Any adjustments to the assets and liabilities as described
above might have a significant consequential direct effect on
the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2017, and of its
loss for the year then ended and the related note disclosures
to the consolidated financial statements.

Together with the matter described under the heading
“Material uncertainty relating to going concern” below, in
relation to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017, we did not express
an opinion thereon.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

As shown in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had incurred a loss for the year of RMB344,672,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: profit for
the year of RMB90,607,000) and had net current liabilities
of RMB24,078,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: net
current assets of RMB9,373,000). In addition, the future
liquidity and performance of the Group depends on the
successful resumption of the spot trading business of NCCE
as assumed by the directors of the Company, as disclosed
in Note 2(b)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
The foregoing matters indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

REBHEE )
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continueq)

2.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely
depends upon the outcome of the underlying assumptions,
as detailed in Note 2(b)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements, and in particular, whether the Group would be
able to resume its spot trading business of NCCE in 2018.

The appropriateness of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis depends
on whether the assumptions taken into account by the
directors of the Company in the going concern assessment
as disclosed in Note 2(b)(i) to the consolidated financial
statement are reasonable and whether the plans and
measures can be implemented successfully.

However, we are unable to determine whether it is
appropriate for the directors of the Company to adopt
these assumptions in preparing the consolidated financial
statements on the going concern basis. There were no
alternative audit procedures that we could perform in this
regard. Should the going concern basis be determined to
be not appropriate, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
to their realisable value, to provide for any further liabilities
that might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZEMRE

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

REBHEE )
BEPGSESVMBRRAKRKE
ZEE

BERREFRARAEREEL GG (E
BESRMAE)RMH 2B BH B REER
LEBRAGPIIZEBERTE ®EEEM
RFMRRIEA AP BRER  MEE
HRRURUG AV RRBLEZEH
NEEE  UWERFHEEMBRRI FE
MR FFRBRME B 2 EAFRRA -

EREFEYBHRRE EFXARENT
fh BERERELEZEN  UWREER
BREAMZERER) - IRIFEEH
# BERBEFERAELEE SR ZIH
I & E M ERRAIITZ 0% - BRIZARAINA

FERERERZGE -
EENAEEE S5BZUMBHRER
Boplltins  BRLZEQHPHEFET
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continueq)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew
Practising Certificate Number P04092
Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meETHWER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZE—_ZE—+HF+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF | ZE—XRF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARS®TR | AR®TT
Revenue I 5 8 16,350 676,123
Other income H A A 8 21,256 59,508
Gain on bargain purchase BREBAKZ — 254,040
Selling expenses & F SE (2,501) (599,489)
Administrative and operating expenses 17 & & 8 & (381,052) (229,828)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 10 (43,413) (38,538)
Equity-settled shared-based payment — BARR {7 & 5= 2 45 2k (BA A%
expenses KEHE)FAX 37(vi) (448) (68,136)
Fair value changes in investment KREWMELNTEES
properties 16 2,405 19,741
Fair value changes in derivative financial #74 % &b & & A F 8 & F
assets 34 (3,550) (10,314)
Share of losses of associates i iR/ =] 22 (659) (312)
(Loss)/profit before income tax FTiS AT (&18), % 7 9 (391,612) 62,795
Income tax credit AR 12 46,940 27,812
(Loss)/profit for the year NEE(FE8B), & (344,672) 90,607
Other comprehensive income, net of tax H 2wk © R T8
ltems that will be reclassified to profit AR EH] A B
or loss subsequently
Exchange loss on translation of HIROIE NS E TG B
financial statements of foreign WRIEREE
operations 22,379 (13,805)
Other comprehensive income for the — ANFE H 2@ Uk =S
year, net of tax MR IE 22,379 (13,805)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZNFJE & MU %5 4258 (322,293) 76,802
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: &5 AN4FE (E518),
i A
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE =N (222,649) 116,084
Non-controlling interests PR (122,023) (25,477)
(344,672) 90,607
Total comprehensive income JEREEUR B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE P =WN (200,270) 102,279
Non-controlling interests FE 17 IR (122,023) (25,477)
(322,293) 76,802
(Loss)/earnings per share TR (E8),/ B
— Basic (RMB cents) — EXR(ARED) 13 (13.11) 6.90
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EE) EF
— Diluted (RMB cents) - BHARED) 13 (13.11) 6.76

China Assurance Finance Group

Limited F B R R € @& E AR R A



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR AR &

As at 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+_-_F=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR Tt | AREFTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WERFEE 15 26,651 30,981
Investment properties wWEYHE 16 95,480 132,900
Land use rights + b {55 FA A 17 3,757 3,946
Intangible assets EmEE 18 866,429 1,050,686
Deposits paid BEffZ& 19 - 23,500
Prepayments SEENEA O 20 - 37,784
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 24 - 1,000
Interests in associates Bt & N A 2 B 22 - 2,142
Deferred tax assets RIETRRTEE E 40 40 —
992,357 1,282,939
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale BIEHEME 23 - 1,859
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 24 - 600
Accounts and other receivables JE L R 3R I L Ath B LUK
A 25 169,055 175,494
Amounts due from related parties & Uk 78 3&E 5 FRIE 26 29,013 105,535
Derivative financial assets PTEemMEE 34 10,290 14,741
Pledged bank deposits EEHIRITHER 27 33,853 55,120
Restricted bank deposits PR BIER 1T K 28 11,750 19,197
Cash and cash equivalents HeReEFHEEE
— held on behalf of customers - REEFPEEB 29 10,739 153,486
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEZEER
— general accounts — —mERP 30 64,434 15,812
329,134 541,844
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and other payables &S SR IE K H A FE AT
A 31 172,741 335,095
Other borrowings HiEE 32 54,189 53,714
Convertible bonds Al % (& 5 34 113,192 130,156
Finance lease liabilities REHESRE 33 1,270 855
Current tax liabilities BNEAf B & & 11,820 12,651
353,212 532,471
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EEFHE (24,078) 9,373
Total assets less current liabilities REERABEE 968,279 1,292,312
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other borrowings Hifg g 32 66,598 73,588
Finance lease liabilities mEHEAR 33 1,834 1,895
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 40 227,083 276,936
295,515 352,419
Net assets EEFE 672,764 939,893
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2017 R—ZE—+F+-F=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt 5 ARBTR | ARETT

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ARBEEAELEES
the Company

Share capital & 7 35 14,331 13,757
Reserves & 36 412,284 557,964
426,615 571,721

Non-controlling interests FERESR 246,149 368,172
Total equity 2 672,764 939,893

On behalf of the Board

REESE
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon & X B %4 Mr. Chan Kim Leung FR &8 5% &£
Director &% Director £ %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZE—_ZE—+HF+-_A=+—HILFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
FNTREAELER FERER  BREE
Convertible  Property (Accumulated
Share Share Share bonds equity revaluation  Statutory loss)/
capital  premium  Exchange option reserve reserve reserve retained
(Note 35) (Note 36(a))  reserve  reserve (Note 36(b)) (Note 36(c)) (Note 36(d)) profits Total
TERES
RE  RGEE EREE NEEMEE 1EOEE (BHER)/
(Wsk3s) (Witsee) [EXGE BREGE (W6b) (WHE6() (K iFss() RERA Ch
RMB'000  RMB'000  RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMBO0O0  RMBO00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR AR%Tn AR®Tn AR¥Tr AR¥Tr ARETn ARETx
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-H 13,603 268,357 9,005 72,469 33,154 38,083 - 42,555) 392,166 56,991 449,157
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEHEAR - - - - - - - - - 336658 336658
Equity-settled share-based payment &b\ kA AEE
granted (Note 37(vi) RRUBRELEE)
(Hi 37 - - - 68136 - - - - 68136 - 66,136
Bxercise of share options (Note 35) 74¢ B (F5435) 104 11,993 - (2,957) - - - - 9,140 - 9,140
Lapse of share options (Note 37) B IE X (% 537) - - - (179 - - - 11793 - - -
Appropriations to statutory reserve & FABEER - - - - - - 2425 (2.425) - - -
Transactions with owners BEARS 104 11,993 - 53,386 - - 2425 9,368 77216 336,608 413,934
Profit for the year TEEET - - - - - - - 16084 116084 (25477) 90,607
Other comprehensive income for ~ AFE £ 2ENE:
the year:
Exchange differences on translation 3B B4 £REH
of financial statements of foreign ~ HEAZEHZE
operations - - (13,805) - - - - - (13,805) - (13,809)
Transfer of revaluation surplus BRINERENEVE
on disposals of investment AR
properties - - - - - (5,184) - 5184 - - -
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2AUREE
the year - - (18,809) - - (5,184) - 121,268 102,279 (25,417) 76,802
At 31 December 2016 and RZF-A%F
1 January 2017 TZA=T-BR
“Z-+%5-F-H 13,757 280,350 (4,800) 125,855 33,154 32,899 2,425 88,081 511,721 368,172 939,893
Equity-settled share-based payment 1% it JA i 3 & 2
granted (Note 37(vi) RRUBRELEE)
(Hi 37 = = = 448 = = = = 448 - 448
Bxercise of share options (Note 35) 174 B (F15135) 55 5,637 - (1,591) - - - - 4,101 - 4,101
Lapse of share options (Note 37) B IE X (% 537) - - - (85739 - - - 85,739 - - -
Appropriations to statutory reserve & FABEER = = = = = = 479 (479) = = =
Issue of shares: EGLOE
Share placing issue (Note 35) RARERT
(Hr3E30) 519 50,006 = = = = = - 50615 - 50,615
Transactions with owners EEARS 574 55733 - (86,882 = = 479 85,260 55,164 - 55,164
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - = - (222,649)  (222,649) (122,023  (344,672))
Other comprehensive income for ~ AEE R 2 AME:
the year:
Exchange differences on translation BIAEIMIE £HEH
of financial statements of forsign ~ HEZEZZR
operations = = 22,379 o = = = = 22,379 = 22,379
Transfer of revaluation surplus HERENFRERE
on disposals of investment L3
properties = = = = = (15,977) = 15,977 = = =
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2EUHLE
the year - - 2 - - (1597 - 0seT)  (200270) (122,023  (322,203)]
M 31 December 2017 RZE-1%
T-ZA=t-8 14,331 336,083 17,579 38,973 33,154 16,922 2,904 (33,331) 426,615 246,149 672,764
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZE—_ZE—+HF+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tE ZT—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBTR AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2RERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax Fris®ian(E5i8),/ & H (391,612) 62,795
Adjustments for: HE:
Amortisation for land use rights b (F AR 8 17 189 189
Amortisation for intangible assets B EEHE 18 60,617 59,889
Bank interest income RATH B KA 8 (2,814) (10,270)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 47 % F%&&ﬁ?ﬁ% 15 7,355 8,462
Gain on extension of convertible bonds ERMBBRES 2 WS 34 (11,655) -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  BAB% 17 & 25 % 5 2 (A B AR
EE)RX 37(vi) 448 68,136
Fair value changes in derivative financial assets TS BMEEATFEED 34 3,550 10,314
Fair value changes in investment properties ~ & MEAFEEH 16 (2,405) (19,741)
Finance costs & A 10 43,413 38,538
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant and HEW Y - BERRE
equipment CeId 3 9 (46) 921
(Gain)/loss on disposals of properties held HERELEME W),/
for sale B8 9 (529) 12,441
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEWRB QAW E 39 (197) -
Gain on bargain purchase EYEl-UNe - (254,040)
Impairment loss on amounts due from related & U% B8 28 5 2B R E B 18
parties 26 52,741 —
Impairment loss on intangible assets BRYAEREBER 18 123,624 -
Impairment loss on interests in associates L E & R R R R E E 22 1,483 —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERERERBE
investments 24 1,600 -
Impairment loss on goodwill 2 REE R 21 1,964 -
Loss on disposals of investment properties HEREYEBE 9 9,205 3,079
Recovery of doubtful accounts receivable U [e] e Wt R AR FRIB 25 - (1,043)
Reversal of provision for impairment loss H Al e W kI8 2 BB B 18
on other receivables BERD 9 (17,185) —
Share of losses of associates L N EE 22 659 312
Written off accounts receivable R0 FE Uk B 3R 9 7,121 —
Written off property, plant and equipment WORME - BB REE 15 1,675 -
Written off other receivables R E U 5RO 9 38,128 —
Written off prepayments WORTEAT BB 9 21,311 -
Operating loss before working capital changes 2 &4 ¢ Z B2 K2 H B (51,360) (20,018)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable, FEURBR R (38 00), R > - Ak
net of deferred income iR S (5,158) 4,526
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, H A U sRIE - BRFIE R
prepayments and deposits Zegm, md (3,181) 31,083
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from fE W B 5 B R L (35
related parties i) 37,391 (105,535)
Decrease in accounts payable JE 1 BR R A (8,371) (618)
Decrease in accruals and other payables EETEA R HEMERNFRIE
NN (146,384) (1,121,489)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEMBTETORD 21,267 5,017
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SRR ITEFEZTR D 7,447 203
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEEERD
— held on behalf of customers - REFEEA 142,747 951,886
Net cash used in operations KELBRACR S TR (5,602) (254,945)
Interest received BUF B 2,814 10,270
Income tax paid EFER (3,744) (4,590)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHAZESFHE (6,532) (249,265)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE - T—+F+_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
L ZEAF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 AR¥ETR AREFTT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising from the WENBARELE RS
acquisition of a subsidiary RN/ (L) 8 38 4,149 (79,522)
Net cash outflow arising from the disposal HEWNBAREE RS
of a subsidiary THFE 39 (116) —
Decrease in short term loan receivable WS EE FUR D - 72,300
Proceeds from disposals of properties held — HE&EHEHEY E RS HIE
for sale 2,388 191,133
Proceeds from disposals of investment HEREMEMEHIE
properties 30,620 14,752
Increase in available-for-sale investments AR EREEN - (250)
Decrease in prepayments for capital injection 4 8& /3% & 38 1+ 28 5 4 - 82,216
Additions to property, plant and equipment  AEWE BMEKRRE (742) (13,934)
Additions to intangible assets NEBWEE - (1,077)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEWE - BMERRES
equipment ;A 230 506
Increase in receipts in advance TE U I 12 (2,511) (47,740)
Net cash generated from investing RMETHELE RS FE
activities 34,018 218,384
Cash flows from financing activities METBZ2HRERE
New proceeds from borrowings EEMBRIESTE 41(b) 17,880 44,759
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 41(b) (39,767) (36,270)
Repayments of obligations under finance EERERERTER
leases 41(b) (1,623) (835)
Net proceeds from exercise of share options 17 i B A% 4 Ffr 15 70 78 3% 58 4,101 9,140
Proceeds from shares issued under share RERNTETRMME
placing ;A 35 50,615 -
Interest paid for convertible bonds BAOBRKREFEHNFE 41(b) (10,292) (10,847)
Interest paid 2R E (o) (12,930) (24,884)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEZBELE (A2
financing activities Be3E 7,984 (18,937)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HERBEEEEER 2 &M~
equivalents (R 4)# 8 35,470 (49,818)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, HEEXRZ B ¥ & FH
net 13,152 (7,862)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—F—BzHERRE
%£EEA 15,812 73,492
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+-HBZzEER
31 December Be%EER 64,434 15,812
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 10 March 2011. The
registered office of the Company is the office of Conyers
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since
6 January 2012.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 49 to the financial
statements. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group” hereafter. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Capital Gain Investments
Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”), a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 were approved by the board of directors on 26 March
2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

NEEHR

PERREMEEERAFA(ERA
AN E——F=ATHERHASE
SaAMA Iz EREEBREERA -
RNaE) 2 0 i EEE A Conyers Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited Z ## &
B& + b 3E & Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1—1111, Cayman lIslands ° AxA &]
ZBRHE_E——F—AAERE
B ARZFABRAR(BX A A
FR(RIZEMRD £ -

ARRZEBRBRIWEER - AR
AIfE AR 2 TR XBFBHNIH
R TE49 - NOT M EMB AT
THEIAEE]  ARAREEARS
ARRZREBRBR AR REEREE
BERARI(RE]) —HAREER
YRS (EBRELES)EMKLZ
BERATA -

HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILF
Bz BHRREBETEN_T N
FZRAZtRBEHETIE -

mBLE %
(a) &HREH

ReaMBRReKRRBREME
RZEAUBREEN BB
SR EARREBUATREIE
BUBHEREENDNEERF
Bl 2 R X MRS - =5 - B
MR B R P A R IRE 5
EARAMERNERRKE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
basis

(0

(i

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention, except
that investment properties and derivative financial
assets are stated at their fair values as explained
in the accounting policies set out in Note 5.5.
The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

The Group had incurred a loss for the year
of RMB344,672,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: profit for the year of
RMB90,607,000) and had net current liabilities
of RMB24,078,000 (2016: net current assets of
RMB9,373,000). In addition, the future liquidity
and performance of the Group depends on
the successful resumption of the spot trading
business of NCCE as assumed by the directors
of the Company. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty, which may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

B RS SRR B &

2. WEEE

(b)

(i
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A=+ —HLEFEHBSARYK
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq) 2. WEEEw

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

basis (continueq)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as
a going concern. Certain measures have been taken
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve its
financial position which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

(@ The Group is updating the trading rules and
trading systems of the spot trading business of
NCCE in accordance with CSRC’s requirements,
aiming to obtain approval from CSRC to resume
the spot trading business of NCCE in 2018; and

(o) The Company has obtained credit facility of
approximately RMB66,598,000 (equivalent to
HK$80,000,000) from a financial institution after
the year end date. The Company intends to apply
the credit facility for the general working capital
of the Group.

Taking into account of the above, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve
months from 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the
directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

(b) "I'EE’E&?—*M g&

EE

ERERER ARRESE
HEEZEREARNEE KRR B
REERHETARERIERE MU
FHAEERTHECHANBKE
BB ERE - ATRERRE
MR o R BE B RO B R
NERE - ERBFEETRRA
BT

@ AEELR/RREARXZMIR
RTBRBESBERLEHMR
ZRAURRHER B
ERTREEEN _FT—
NFERRBRSMRE
RPFES K

b) FLEFEHHZE XK
NABEE R —HE2 8
KEERREDAR
#66,598,0007T (Hf & ®
80,000,000/ 7T) ° A7
BEZERARNTERE—
REBEBES o

%Fﬂttﬁ% AAREER
BRAEBBERNEEETE
ﬁﬁﬂ E—tHF+-A=1—
B+ @A A2 BB %
,E At EERREETE
EERHGEAMBHRERR

By

I

&
mw

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group will be able to
successfully implement its plans and measures as
mentioned above. The appropriateness of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis depends on whether the Group would
be able to resume its spot trading business of NCCE
as assumed by the directors of the Company.

There is material uncertainty related to the outcomes
of the above events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and, therefore, the Group may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business. Should the
use of the going concern basis in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements be determined to be
not appropriate, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their realisable values, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

B RS SRR B &

MBEXE »)

) STEEERKGELE
EE

BEML BN EXEETTES
RINE M Ll st MR FEE X
THEEM - HFELEEERHLR
AU BHREROEEEBORNAEE R
BAENE BERREFMERRRE
HRBRGABRERHET

LR EHRERNGERFEE R
EN - AREeYE ERERELEDN
BENELEEXNESS  Hit - EEHE
AR A L BRETEREEEY
BITERME WEF - HERIEE

MBBRRSERATELEEERT
BTRE - RIZBFLRERLE &

EEENRAERCENZEREE"
PR EME—FRE JEELET
DREIEREEEMIERE BEER
DERRBEENRPARL - B
HENTERNARRES HPBRE

o

B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS

HKFRSs 2014-2016 12, Disclosure of
Cycle Interests in Other
Entities

BEGHERETR KBS
CHEN)

B Et RS2 HARERERER
gACHEN EXREEE

BEAMBREERN BANBREER
—E-MmER F125% (1BE]K)
“E-NERES  [BBEREME
ZEENHE BrER]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2017 (continueaq)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the notes to the cash
flow statement, note 41(b).

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.

B RS SRR B &

%= Al
D

[E—

7N\

3.1 “%%ﬁﬂ/%@ﬂ%ﬂ%
Bt 7 | —
H

BEREFENETR (BT E)
— REE

ZEBFISIA—HBEIINEE -
R ERES %’Juﬂamﬂ
BRMEAGENE
?%?WEZ%{ R B B R MR
BemaR 2
H41(b )) ﬁﬁ}_&‘lJ

RS ERE125 (BT F)
— RARBRBBEERIELHRE
BE

ZEERARAELERBEEE
B YR ETHEREEL
BE BREEEAERATYE
AENEHRTANEEREER
EMIE °

PP B B HERIRIE IR E B
W ERAREBEBERAEL
MIBEENTE 8 RNZ
%{ uTiTuA—rBﬁﬁ%#&%Iﬂ
2 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 % @
¢ €



s,
) i

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

effective 1 January 2017 (continueaq)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to clarify that
the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other than
the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity’s interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has
no impact on these financial statements as the latter
treatment is consistent with the manner in which the
Group has previously dealt with disclosures relating to
its interests in other entities classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS 5.

BERMBREEA - —NF
ECE-AEBHZFERE
— BERMBHRELEAFE25 (&
AR REREtER 2 EE

RIEFE R P BT ER]
HEF S M A ERIE D E R
HESNED  HBEFEY
1% 2 & A B 1255 (1B 5T A0 [#
BEREMER 2ES ] BIBE
BRTERBEVHERBRZ
2RI BAP B REERE
125% B BE R TE AR E A
ER(AMREREY T HREEL
FERIHHELENERBEE
RERIERERK] BREES
FIEHER D RIERLERHR
HipERE) 2 e o

F 7 & B B 1S e 2RI SE 1258
(BTN RERBENEME R
(B RIEE B M5 & LR FES
B ERBEARELERDK
IHREXRBMEMELR) 2
BTk - BLNER B A 1 BE I 74
FSHRANITE - BRM
BAEVBREERNF125(EFT
RHZERHHRRUELE -

/

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. ¥ ?W? 78 B 7% ¥R %: % A
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (&8 BEHRSER]
(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 32 CAEEMEIL EERN
issued but are not yet effective EZ %{?%Té Fg 1Ié]5 ST B
N | i /\I

AN LN b Eyc]

BB/ RETEEHB
WELRDERM - ELEE
MAREREBIIRFRS - K

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention

is to apply these changes on the date they become

& 12 B Al #E \M—r'ﬂ@biiﬁﬁ

effective. HEHENZEE
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, é‘?’iﬁﬂ%i&%i@” BRMBREES
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle First-time adoption of Hong —MFE EALACCHES)
Kong Financial Reporting ZE-AERAE [ERRMEER
Standards' JEEIE s A
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28, %%Eﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁ” BREHER
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle Investments in Associates —-mFE F85 (BET )
and Joint Ventures' “E-RERH [REERRRA
ZEEYE BROEIRE
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement ERMBREEN  HARNHAERZ
of Share-Based Payment FoR(BFTE) RERH2
Transactions' PERE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' EAMBREEL SRIA
FI%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EAMBREELN  EPAEORE
Customers' F155
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with FRUBREEN EPAOME
Customers (Clarifications to FR(BFTAE) (HEBRBERE
HKFRS 15) 28] $15%
fELAEE)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment B eER EERENE
Property’ FA0R (BT A)
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions EEERMERE NMERXSREBEN
and Advance Consideration’ REZEY) RE
- REE2R
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BREMBREEN AFAREMNREAN
Negative Compensation? FIR(BITAX) B
HKFRS 16 Leases? FRMBREEYN HE
F16%%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax FRERNBRE FEHEENIR
Treatments? REZEY) TE k2
- REEWNR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets EAMBREES Txﬁ%iﬁi,ﬁ\ﬂéﬁ NG
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F105 R Fok-UN=IPd
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B RS AR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective continuea)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019
8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early

application of the amendments continue to be permitted.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014—-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
removing transition provision exemptions relating to
accounting periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture
Capital organisation’s permissible election to measure
its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.
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B RS SRR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. FMEBMBEHREER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (BB BEREEDD
(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 32 CRMEMMEIL|MEN
issued but are not yet effective (continued) ZHE BRI E B
M HEER®)
Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement BB K REERE25E (55T
of Share-Based Payment Transactions ) —UBRGHBEBRBZMARR
BRZAERE
The amendments provide requirements on the FHABITIHTREBRIEFBEK
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting HEUARNABEENRUARE
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share- HEIFFEXEseKRE &
based payments; share-based payment transactions MBEAERFRAEERR
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax INBRNBEENRRS RS

obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL).
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B RS AR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. B AMKREER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ([& 78 B 15 3R & 2 Al )

(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective continuea)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.
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B RS SRR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. MW EBUBRBREED
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (EBEMHHEHREELDD
(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 32 CRMEMMEIL|MEN
issued but are not yet effective (continued) ZHE BRI E B
B 3% ¥ E 2Bl o)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers ERVBREEAELR — F

(Continued) Bk (&)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps BB EELEI55REK

approach to revenue recognition: VA T 8] 25 B 1 2R U 2

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a e F—H¥: FHAINEXRFH
customer a8

e Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in e FE-H: HBAASYTH
the contract BAOEE

e Step 3:  Determine the transaction price e ZE=I: #EZ%F

e  Step 41 Allocate the transaction price to each e ZENN: BRHEH
performance obligation EEERN ELE

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each e FhHH: RBENEE
performance obligation is satisfied T B B B SR UK

=

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular BEWBREERBISREE

revenue related topics that may change the current HEFRRBEESESENSER

approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also S5l ZEESINEERB A

significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative BHELERNREERFE  Z

disclosures related to revenue. ERITRERE R A MU 2= A8 Y

BCEEIEE -

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with BERAMBEHREERFGHEIEET
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15) X—EBEFEHRR(BEEBME

HEEAEGHE 2 EBF)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications H B % S AR SB1658 2 18
on identification of performance obligations; application FEREEEERBNER &
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual RAZFAARKIEA HBEET
property; and transition requirements. A REEFTE -
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B RS AR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. KMWEBUKER % % A
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ((ERABKEREFER]
(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 3.2 &4

issued but are not yet effective continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property — Transfers
of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will
occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to support
a transfer.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 — Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an exchange
rate to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency
and the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies that the
date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance consideration.
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B RS SRR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. KMWEBUKER % % A
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ((ERABKEREFER]
(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 3.2 &

issued but are not yet effective continuea)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “lLeases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of
the right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability,
and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also,
the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.
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B RS AR B &

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. KMWEBUKER % % A
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) ((ERABKEREFER]
(Continued) (%)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 32 ERME M

issued but are not yet effective continuea)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The
entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that
the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
then the entity should measure current and deferred
tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines it is
not probable, then the uncertainty in the determination
of tax is reflected using either the “most likely amount”
or the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

3.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective continuea)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, except for HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and HKFRS 16 Leases, the Group
considers that other new and revised HKFRSs may
result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely
to have material impact.

4. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of
the primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.
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B RS AR B &

5., FEFFTHE
51 iR %

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 51 e & EE »)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.2 Subsidiaries

5. FESFTHE®

52 BT

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the
Company has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee without holding the majority
of the voting rights. In determining whether de-facto
control exists the Company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances, including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both
the size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting
rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company
and other parties who hold voting rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and

Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)

5.3 Associates 5.3 B N\ T

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.3

5.4

Associates (continuea)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses,
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

if any. The results of associates

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on
the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (see Note 5.6), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

54

9.9

Goodwill (continuea)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
derivative financial asset at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability
or, in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

B RS SRR B &

5. FESFTHE®
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B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.5 Fair value measurement (continueq)

5. FESFTHE®

55 A EFTE#

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.5

5.6

Fair value measurement (continueq)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° intangible assets;

° interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

° investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.6

5.7

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or CGU
(see Note 5.4), discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TEFTTBER @

(Continued)

57 ¥  -BEERRXRE®

5.7 Property, plant and equipment continuea)

Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the
lease term whichever
is the shorter

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each
reporting period.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.7

5.8

Property, plant and equipment continuea)

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain
or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised and is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. These include land held for
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)

58 WEWMHE (=)

5.8 Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured
at their fair values using fair value model, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development
at reporting date and their fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

If investment properties become an item of property,
plant and equipment because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation,
the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

An investment property is de-recognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the investment property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the item is de-
recognised.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.9 Properties held for sale

5. FESFTHE®

59 FEHEWE

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of properties held for sale
is determined by an apportionment of total land and
building costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
estimated selling price of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred
in selling the properties.

5.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)
5.10 Leases (Continued) 5108 & #)
Assets acquired under finance leases REMEHNENSZEE

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease
payments are analysed between capital and interest.
Interest element is charged to profit or loss over
the period of the lease and is calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability.
The capital element reduces the balance owed to the
lessor.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments less
finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
SO as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss on straight-
line method over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.10 Leases (continued)

5. FESFTHE®

5108 & #)

Operating lease charges as the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
the lease except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

5.11 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)  Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.11 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets (Continued)

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line method
over their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses.

Business agreements 10 to 15 years

Trade name 20 years
Business license 20 years
Computer trading and 10 years

clearing system
— Hardware and software

Computer software 3 to 10 years

Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° it is technically feasible to develop the
product for it to be sold;

° adequate
complete the development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell
the product;

° the Group is able to sell the product;

o sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

resources are available to
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TEFTTBER @

(Continued)

5.11 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

511 & L & & (B B kR 5)

(Continued) (%)

(i) Internally generated intangible assets (research and iy ABELEFEEHR
development costs) (Continued) BRAR) (&)
Capitalised development costs are amortised BT AN K AR

over the periods the Group expects to benefit
from selling the products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase
of internal projects is recognised in profit or loss

REBEFARAREAFAEE
an B 35 5 R 2R B )

TRA LR
¥ RN EE TR R
B S A 7 AR B R R 26 O B

as incurred. R e
(i) Impairment (ii)y  RE
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for BEERGAFHNELE

impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 5.6.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the
extent of its revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
5.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
capital are deducted from capital (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extend they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

5.13 Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into loans and receivables, available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial assets.
Directors determine the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the end of reporting
period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised
on trade date.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the instruments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(i

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]

Financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These
are initially recognised at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets are reviewed to assess whether there is
objective evidence of impairment.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of
the loss is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

5. FESFTHE®

513€m T E %)

(i)

EWMEE (&)
B K MR R

ERLREEERSEEE
JE 3 AT BEE N R R B
M EREZIITES
BMEE - WEFERBNE A
NFEMEEERELERS
RATER - RIEABERF
R JT RN B 5H AR OBt AT
R EEIE)TE - #iH
D¥128- NS AR O
FomEE  BREEER
MEMZZHRA—ENDZ
2H -

NEREMK  SRERE
UG BERT
HEZEBRBR -

At ESREE

fid 2 (B T B 48 AR E B
EBEE  ANERBE
BB RIS E RN E

Ny

B

A EREBREM
5 WRRE 2 AT EE
RAUEEBIIFRERRE
BREZENHER - AR
EERBEEDEES -



Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(i

Financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity
any increase

investment,
in fair value subsequent to
loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

an impairment

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]

Financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on financial assets has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
and other payables, finance lease liabilities,
convertible bonds and other borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

All the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert
the bonds into equity, is included in convertible
bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to the retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised upon conversion
or expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the
period of the convertible bonds using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)

De-recognition

The Group de-recognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for de-recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

When the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and short
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

5.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

5.16 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.16 Income taxes (continued)

5. FESFTHE®

516 FT 8 % (=)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)

5.16 Income taxes (Continued) 516 FT 8 % (=)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

5.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@ income from handling charges of trades between
the participants in eligible commodities transacted
on Nanning (China-ASEAN) Commodity Exchange
Company Limited (“NCCE”) is recognised in full on
the trade day, upon acceptance of the trades;

(b)  income from initial listing fees for commodities are
recognised upon the listing of the commodities
on NCCE;
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B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.17 Revenue recognition continuea)

(©

income from financial guarantee (as the case
may be, including consultancy services related
to issuance of financial guarantee) is recognised
over the contract period on a time apportionment
basis;

income from development and sales of computer
application software systems is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion;

income from provision of maintenance services is
recognised on straight-line method over the terms
of the relevant maintenance service contracts;

income from membership fee is recognised over
the subscription period;

income from management fee is recognised when
services are rendered;

government grants are recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense; and

interest income is calculated on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)

5.18 Employee benefits 518 EE R

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the
“MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TEFTTBER @

(Continued)

5.19 Share-based payments 519 AR B E B 2 I ™
Where share options are awarded to employees and EMEBR L ERER - REH
others providing similar services, the fair value of the A EREATFTEDNEREE
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit HRBEREANER R ER
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding FREREREEMEESEE -
increase in share option reserve within equity. Non- FMZEBIRMEERAAREL
market vesting conditions are taken into account by BREREHREE 2ERT
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected BHEME USHEKRE
to vest at the end of each reporting period so that, FEHARER L AFHRELE
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the REEERBEZREREZEMm
vesting period is based on the number of options that HE-mEBEBEENEAM
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored KEREZATE - REFREA
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all Ha BB MEERK - BT Wm
other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made MBS EENTE
irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions FTRAX - RETFAX T &K
are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted BEKRTSEBEHMAE -

for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified WNEE R 2GR R IGEEHE
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the BRI ENR  EEEELE
options, measured immediately before and after the AT R iE 2 BB AR N FEIG IR
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over NerEHTHEEHERERE
the remaining vesting period. NHER °

Where equity instruments are granted to persons WiEm TAERTREENUINAL
other than employees and others providing similar NEMBEHREURE 2 AL
services, the fair value of goods or services received AlE WA @i RE 2 A FER
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods BEaER BRIEFFRIRBEE
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A BERERREE - Em2HEE
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For EMERER - AR SHEEMN
cash-settled share based payments, a liability is BhABERZNRME  AE
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services REeWEmnas Rz FER
received. o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TESFEE

(Continued)

5.19 Share-based payments (Continued) 519U AER 2R

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve and the proceeds
received net of directly attributable transaction costs up
to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as
share premium. When the share options are lapsed,
forfeited or still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

5.20 Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined and are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.20 Foreign currencies (Continued)

5. FESFTHE®

5.20 Jh & (1)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity.

5.21Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

e BEmEd  RUALKE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.21Related parties (continuea)

(o)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i

(vi)

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

B RS SRR B &

5. FESFTHE®
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.21Related parties (continuea)

5. FESFTHE®

5.21BE (%)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

5.22 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy on “Provisions and contingent liabilities”; and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policy on “Revenue Recognition”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5, TEFTTBER @

(Continued)

5.22 Financial guarantee contracts (continued) 5.2BEERES N @)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. Where the contracted fee is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, it is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
contracted fee is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of the corresponding liability.

5.23 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.24 Government grants

5. FESFTHE®

5.24 B fF 8 BY

These are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

5.25 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities to be affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is
based on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability
and ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables
and on directors’ judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the related parties. If the financial
conditions of the customers and other debtors of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional impairment
may be required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
asset. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use
of the CGU to which the asset is allocated. Estimating
value-in-use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate
applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits
on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful
life of the asset is made based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Depreciation charge is revised if the estimated
useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from the previous estimation. Estimated
useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each reporting
period, based on changes in circumstances.

6. FEETHERMATT @

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continueq)

(iv) Income taxes and deferred taxes

(v)

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of the related
payments. There are many transactions and calculation
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will have impact on the income tax and/or deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

B RS SRR B &

6. FESTHERMET @

(iv) P15 % & I it Bi 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

—  Provision of financial
services;

guarantee and consultancy

—  Provision of software development services; and

—  Provision of online trading platform services.

For the disclosure requirements under HKFRS 8, the Group
regards the PRC as its country of domicile. All the Group’s
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable
to the PRC, being the single geographical region.

Geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services are provided. All revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Reportable segments

Directors assess the performance of each operating
segment based on segment result which represents the
net of revenue, income, gains, costs and expenditures
directly attributable to each operating segment. Central
administrative costs are allocated to the operating segment
as they are not included in the measure of the segment
results that are used by the directors for assessment of
segment performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 7. 7EER®
Reportable segments (continued) REDE®
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and LWTAAFERAEESERE D EN
results by reporting segment for the year: Was REEDH:
Segment revenue and results PENERESR
2017 2016
“E-tE 3%
Financial Financial
guarantee Online Quarantee Onling
and  Software trading and  Software trading
consultancy development platform consultancy  development platform
services  services  services Total services services services Total
HERRR Bt BLR5 HEERR af B35
ZHEE  BRBE  TRER ai | #EkE REERE  TeRB &
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 | RMB000  RMBOO0 RMB'0000  RMB'000
AE®TT ARETR ARETR ARETR | ARETT ARETR ARETR AR%TR
Revenue s 10,438 674 5,238 16,350 14,446 3,550 658,127 676,123
Segment (loss)/profit HE(ER) /&7 (16,499)  (2,134)  (244,601) (263,324 33,957 (3133 189310 220,134
Corporate income — Others LEUA - £ m 2316
Central administrative and finance costs TR TH k@B EH & (78,123) (53,393)
Falr value changes in derivative finencial #T£ 4R EELATEES
assets (3,550) (10,314)
Share option expenses ERERY (448) (68,136)
(Loss)fprofit for the year KER(EE)/ BT (344,672) 90,607

Segment (loss)/profit represents (loss)/profit earned by each
segment without allocation of corporate income, share option
expenses, fair value changes in derivative financial assets
and central administrative and finance costs. This is the
information reported to directors for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) THER®
Reportable segments (continued) REDE#=
Segment assets PEEE

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets and liabilities are

as follows:

BENBZEERBEWT:

2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T AR T T
Provision of financial guarantee RHRERERLERRSE
and consultancy services 288,419 345,267
Provision of software development 2 £ 81 {4 5 2% iR 75
services 1,225 11,610
Provision of online trading platform 12 48 % 5 F & IR
services 924,975 1,361,121
Total segment assets DHEEEBAE 1,214,619 1,717,998
Unallocated KM 106,872 106,785
Consolidated assets mEEE 1,321,491 1,824,783
Segment liabilities SHEER/
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Provision of financial guarantee RHEREERIEERRSE
and consultancy services (81,817) (93,790)
Provision of software development 42 {1 {4 57 2% iR %5
services (4,161) (4,492)
Provision of online trading platform IR # 48 % 5 F 4 R#%
services (8352,795) (541,399)
Total segment liabilities NEBERE (438,773) (639,681)
Unallocated Pl (209,954) (245,209)
Consolidated liabilities o=} (648,727 (884,890)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. DEER@®
Reportable segments (continueq) REDTE
Other segment information Hitn EE R
Amounts included in the measure of segment (loss)/profit or HESHE(EBR), SHs HEER
segment assets: BENTRE:
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEE-ZF-tF+=-A=+—-HL
FE
Financial
guarantee Online
and Software trading
consultancy development platform
services services services Total
REERR Lo BEXZ
2 R MERE FaRH% &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR%¥Txn
Additions to property, plant and ~ AEDE BERRE
equipment 1,964 25 16 2,005
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - BERZEINE
equipment (2,834) (294) (2,767) (5,895)
Amortisation of prepaid lease BREERESH
payments (189) = = (189)
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EF & E# - (502) (60,115) (60,617)
Interest expenses FERX (50) - (1,123) (1,173)
Written off accounts receivable R B U BR B (7,121) - - (7,121)
Written off other receivables R0 L E MR R IR (6,578) (2,050) (29,500) (38,128)
Written off prepayment WOR T 3B - - (21,311) (21,311)
Written off property, plant and WRWE  BERSK
equipment = (1,675) = (1,675)
Reversal of impairment loss on other (3] £ b & U 7 78
receivables REBE = - 17,185 17,185
Impairment loss on intangible assets % 4 & (& 5 18 - - (123,624) (123,624)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale 7]t iH & #% & 2 il (& &5 18
investments = (1,000) (600) (1,600)
Impairment loss on goodwil HEZREER - - (1,964) (1,964)
Impairment loss on amounts due  JEURRIE H HERE
from related parties = = (52,741) (52,741)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE BEREZEZ
and equipment e 46 - - 46
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HERB LR KE - 197 - 197
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B RS AR B &

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 7. 7EER®
Reportable segments (continuea) wEDLHE 2
Other segment information (Continued) HthpEER (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-—ZE2—XR"E+=-A=+—H1t
FE
Financial
guarantee Online
and Software trading
consultancy  development platform
services services services Total
BEERR ]t BERS
MR % R TaR% A&t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRE AREKTE ARETR

Additions to property, plant and  HRENE  MELRE

equipment 5,195 7 7,098 12,300
Additions to intangible assets REBVEE - - 960,450 960,450
Depreciation of property, plant and 9% - BERRETE

equipment (2,572) (214) (4,412) (7,198)
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRNBERESEHE

payments (189) - - (189)
Amortisation of intangible assets & f&E B - (413) (59,476) (59,889)
Interest expenses FERX (32) - - (32)
Recovery of doubtful accounts Wi ] FE U R R

receivable 1,043 - - 1,043
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Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 8.

Revenue which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
income from online trading platform services, income from
provision of financial guarantee and consultancy services,
income from development and sales of computer application
software systems and provision of maintenance services.
Revenue and other income recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

B RS SRR B &

W s K E A U A

WEsTREI AR B 2 £ %5 - fapld8 b
RBF R - RHREERLER
AR - A2 RS & 8H & B K e A B
ARk R HEERBIBA - BEZ
E—+FRZB-RFTRA=+—
HIEFEE#R 2z Wam & H MU AR
T

2017 2016
—E—+tE ZTE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Revenue I =
Income from online trading BEXHFERB WA
platform services
— handling charges of trading - RHFESE 5,238 651,539
— initial listing fees of — EmBEXLETE
commodities = 6,588
Income from financial guarantee  REELE &R L ZEARE 2
and consultancy services A 10,438 14,446
Income from development and KB R &S E K e A
sales of computer application HRG AR 4 Z R 2 W
software systems and A
maintenance services 674 3,550
16,350 676,123
Other income b A
Bank interest income RATH B A 2,814 10,270
Sales of properties held for sale  HE#HEHEME
(Note 23(a)) (M 5E23(a)) 529 22,450
Government grants and sundry B/ 4 B N A TE IR A
income 51 847
Recovery of doubtful accounts Wz [B] & W R BR (B 5£25)
receivable (Note 25) - 1,043
Reversal of impairment loss on [l H th j& Ui 5% TE R E
other receivables &5 18 17,185 2,500
Membership fee income ZFEBWA - 14,648
Management fee income EEERA - 7,738
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BMEEREKEZ
plant and equipment W &= 46 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HENB AR 2 E
(Note 39) (P 5£39) 197 —
Rental income MEWA 434 12
21,256 59,508
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

9.

2L — Jl= A Y4
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 0. FiIEBA(E®/), %F
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ Frisfim(E8), Ja MRk, (Gt
(crediting): ANUTERREED:
2017 2016
—E—t& —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREFT
Auditor's remuneration % AN B & 1,625 1,286
Amortisation of land use rights T e g 189 189
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 60,617 59,889
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERSENE
equipment 7,355 8,462
Employee benefit expenses BERAHAY (BEESZME
(including directors’ remuneration (M &E11))
(Note 11))
Salaries and wages HehIE 15,633 18,386
Pension scheme contributions Eﬁiéﬁr Bt
- Defined contribution plans TR G2 2,244 2,177
Equity-settled share-based payments LA Hx{ﬁﬁ’j ERFOARELEE)
(Note 37 (vi) (B 5£37(v)) - 66,000
17,877 86,563
Equity-settled share-based paymentto  MEERBEEZEUNZEEBRA LY
eligible persons other than employees — FAR R BEEN TR (ARALE)
and directors (Note 37 (vi)) (WEW(N)) 448 2,136
(Gain)/losses on disposal of property & W% B EREE
plant and equipment (Wez),/ B8 (46) 921
Sales of properties held for sale uﬂ%ﬁf’ﬁﬁ’%%%
— Gain on disposals (Note 23(a)) — HE W = (P 7E23() (529) (22,450)
— Loss on disposals (Note 23(b)) — HEEEHE23() - 34,891
(Gain)/loss on disposals of properties ~ HERBIEHENE 2 (KF),/EiE
held for sale (529) 12,441
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Note 39) % Hi B 2 & 2 Ut & (K 5+39) (197) -
Impairment loss on intangible assets &2 & & R E E5 18 (4 7£18)
(Note 18) 123,624 -
Impairment loss on interests in EHREME AT ERNEER
associates (Note 22) (Kt 5E22) 1,483 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ~ A] 4t {11 & 4% & 5L {8 /&5 18 (P 7224)
investments (Note 24) 1,600 -
Impairment loss on amounts due from & Ut B 3& 75 238 U6l (B 5 18 (1 5526)
related parties (Note 26) 52,741 -
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 21) 782 & &5 18 (P 3£ 21) 1,964 -
Loss on disposals of investment REMEHERE
properties 9,205 3,079
Operating lease charges in respect of M EMBzEEHEER
properties 7,355 o7
Reversal of impairment loss on accounts & U 8% 7 B /&5 18 # [l
receivable = (1,043)
Reversal of impairment loss on other & [al H b & Ut 3% B R B &5 18
receivables (17,185) —
Written off accounts receivable R e U BR B 7,121 -
Written off other receivables R, EL A W 3R 38,128 -
Written off prepayments (Note 20) R 78 A 53R (Bt 52.20) 21,311 -
Written off property, plant and WORME - BB k& (H 15
equipment (Note 15) 1,675 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B4 & B A~

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—XF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Interest on other borrowings HiEEZF B 29,020 24,788
Interest on convertible bonds AIMlRES 2T B 14,254 13,654
Interest on finance leases BEREZFE 139 96
43,413 38,538
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE N EEMEREBRESFH
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES M A L
(a) Directors’ remuneration @ E=EM=
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2016: BHEF(ZE—R"F: 1082
10) directors were as follows: B EAMEET T
Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e
BER B
He ENF& TTEfR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRr AR%Tr AR%TR AR%Tx:
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=-Z—-+&
+=A=t-HiLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon ZXBEE(RRE)
(Mr. Pang’) - 1,953 16 1,969
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (‘Mr. Chang’) RelE &4 ((HREE])
(Resigned on 28 September (RZZ—+tF
2017) NAZHNREA) - 844 9 853
Mr. Chan Kim Leung RalREsE 104 104 5 213
Mr. Law Fei Shing BRERAE - 415 16 431
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu EESENBERALAE = = = =
104 3,316 46 3,466
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors:
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung ~ # k& %4 104 - - 104
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki REELE 104 - - 104
Mr. Chan Kai Wing RERLE 104 - - 104
312 = = 312
Total ait 416 3,316 46 3,778
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE N EEmMERIEEESH
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continuea) A 2
(@) Directors’ remuneration continveq) () EEME
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits ~ Share-based scheme
Fees in kind payment  contributions Total

¢ AR5 A
2HE EERR ERe
Bt  ERNE ARKEE)  HEMR At
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARET:R

Year ended 31 December BZ=-Z—Xf

2016 TZA=t-HL%E
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Pang yEE - 515 36,733 15 37,263
Mr. Chang R - 495 24,489 7 24,991
Mr. Chen Xiao Li (Resigned FR/)NI % 4

on 20 January 2016) (RZF—RF

—RZTRHEE) - 17 - - 17

Mr. Chan Kim Leung BRalREAE 103 100 - 5 208
Mr. Law Fei Shing BEMLE - 412 - 15 427

Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu SEESENMBEERRLE
(Appointed on 13 May (RZF—RF
2016) TA+=HEZH) - - 4,347 - 4,347

103 1,639 65,569 42 67,253

Non-executive director: HHTEE:
Mr. Chang Xi Min (resigned KA EE(R=F— X
on 20 January 2016) F—AZ+HFET 5 - - - 5

Independent non-executive BV HEHTEE

directors:
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu MKE % E
Cheung 103 - - - 103
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEELE 103 - - - 103
Mr. Chan Kai Wing RERLE 103 - - - 108
309 - - - 309
Total A 417 1,539 65,569 42 67,567
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 1
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continueq)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
three directors for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: four) whose emoluments are reflected in Note
11(a).

Emoluments of the remaining two highest paid
individual (2016: one) for the year ended 31 December
2017 is as follows:

L EEMEREREBEE
M AL

(b) EEESHMAL

HE_FT—+tHF+=RA=+—
BEFE AXEEBREZSH
MALHBRRE=2EF(ZF—
NEMNE) HMe 2 R
11(a) PR -

BE_T—t+tFt-HA=+—H
EE EHRMAREHEHA
T(CE-RF: —R)ZBaw

T
2017 2016
—EB—tH —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Salaries, allowances and e RREREYNG
benefits in kind 720 360
Equity-settled share-based VAR 19 B 2 A 3k (BA R AR
payments ©EH) - -
720 360
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE N EEMEREBRESFH
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continuea) M A+
(b) Five highest paid individuals continueq) b)) EEBRESHFMA L@
The number of non-director, highest paid individuals N N AT & B 2 &= &
whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as AT ZEZAHBBT:
follows:
No. of
highest paid individuals
BEFMALTAR
2017 2016
—E—+tE NS
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 T (HHE R
(approximately Nil to A R #864,5007T)
RMB864,500) 2 1
2 1
During the year, no director or any of the highest paid FRN - MEESIESFMAL
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments MEXREREEMHFHN(Z
(2016: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to —NFE) c AEEMERE
the directors or any of the highest paid individuals of EEREMNESTMHATIM
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining M ERIMAREEZRE
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2016: WEEBAE (T —RFEE)o
Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE NEEMEREIRRSH
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (coninued) At

b) EEESFMALE

ENSENERERABZH

(b) Five highest paid individuals continuea)

Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management were within the following bands: BHEBS a0 T -
No. of
senior management
EREBABAE
2017 2016
—E—+tE ZTE—RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ T (M EZE
(approximately Nil to A R #864,5007T)
RMB864,500) 12 10
12 10
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FiIgHER
2017 2016
—E—tF A3
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current tax — PRC BNEARE I —
— Enterprise Income Tax — DEFEH
(“EIT") ([E%EmEH) 2,913 7,383
— Land Appreciation Tax — TH I ER
(‘LAT?) (E=::5L-¢. %)) - 9,826
Deferred tax credit (Note 40) iE E 7 18 3K % (M 5E40) (49,853) (45,021)
(46,940) (27,812)

ﬂ China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continueq)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2016: Nil).

EIT arising from the PRC for the year ended 31 December
2017 was calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable
profits during the year (2016: 25%).

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries’ undistributed retained earnings, amounting to
approximately RMB87,562,000 (2016: RMB88,313,000). No
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to
control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding
income tax is levied on the foreign investor for the
dividends distributed out of the profits generated by the
foreign investment enterprises. No withholding income tax
was recognised during the year as there are no dividends
distributed by the PRC subsidiaries within the Group.

B RS SRR B &

12. Fi8BIK %2

AEBARERE /’*E‘i%i&ﬁﬁ\
AREEKBRRIEENEEMEE &
f 1 19 2 i ) B A fr FH

AARAEERFAALBEL RN EB
ZEHFEE%)%H&)\ - A B EE T
SRBEEB(CT—REF E) -

RBE_E—tF+_HA=+—HIt
FE RPEEECZCEMEHD
BRI F A FE BRI A 2 26% =15
(ZE—RF:125%) °

R-E—+F+-_A=+—H BEXK
SEFTBEMBARARDIKENAKE
EMARRELEHIBEAEGE 2 251Y
B = 245 ARS87,562,000T (=F
— N AR #88,313,0007T) ° A
AEBAEHZEWNBRAR 2K E
B BZEEBE T RA R KRR
Bl WEAZEEZHEARLETIER
&

RIEFELEMBHE - HINEKRE
ERRIRECEREE ZEND
k2B ERBMAEN - A
$’$ZEFIW% a3 £ 75 K A%

CRERIW BRI S R ERER -
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B RS AR B &

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss)/profit before income tax credit in the consolidated

12. TEHIE R

AEEREHRELEGE 2R E
RZBBRIAEEIE S (BR), & f

statement of comprehensive income as follows: HERT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTTT

(Loss)/profit before income tax FriS Al (E18), % (391,612) 62,795
Tax on (loss)/profit before REBERBEEER (B

taxation, calculated at the rates ~ 18) /& F| 2 i@ F Ft K

applicable to profits in the tax

jurisdictions concerned (97,903) 15,699
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEREE 2B

subsidiaries operating in other RAMETRBZHE

jurisdictions 4,703 11,939
Effect of non-taxable revenue mARDKE T E ) (89,630)
Effect of non tax-deductible AR 2T E

expenses 46,141 23,555
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTEBEB NG R

recognised 119 830
Tax effect of LAT T #h TE M2 MG E = 9,826
Tax effect of temporary difference KRB L =B 2 MGz £

not recognised = 31
Income tax credit FTisHiE & (46,940) (27,812)
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of R ARAETER BB &EFZRIR - I &

the unused tax losses amounting to RMB9,772,000 (2016:
RMB9,297,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

?fﬁk%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁéﬂ% AERH9,772,0007T

(=%
RELERBEE -
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B RS SRR B &

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SR (ER) BA
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share RAARBEBEABLHBREARE S
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the (E518) /B THAT 5 8% A H %
following data:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTTT
(Loss)/profit attributable to AAEHEB ARG (EER),
the owners of the Company ikl (222,649) 116,084
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Weighted average number of HESREAXN(ER), B2
ordinary shares for the purposes & 3 A% Hn#E F 15 &
of basic (loss)/earnings per
share 1,698,285,000 1,682,549,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary E#ERRBE LRI 2
shares: a -
— share options — MR - 34,077,000
Weighted average number of HESREE (BB BRIz
ordinary shares for the purposes & 3 % HN#E F 15 &x
of diluted (loss)/earnings per
share 1,698,285,000 1,716,626,000
2017 2016
—E—tE AN S
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BEN(EIE), BT
(RMB cents) (AR®EH) (13.11) 6.90
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share &A% # % (E548) /& F
(RMB cents) (AR® D) (13.11) 6.76
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B RS AR B &

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contined) 13. SR (&E) B =

Diluted loss per share are the same as basic loss per share HRMARBET 2 BEBRSLERY
for the year ended 31 December 2017 as the impact of the BE_Z—+tF+A=1T—HLH
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding has an anti- EvERERNGSEBEKREELE -
dilutive effect. MBE_Z—tF+_RA=+—H1t
FE - BRESEBEEEGRELER
_ﬁ °
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year FEHEE- R+ A=1+—H
ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the conversion EFEERESRNE - WERSK
of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds since their EIRARNRIMARITE 2T RRES -
exercise would result in an increase in earnings per share. HAITHEIEHREGRAFEM -
14. DIVIDEND 14. KRB
The board does not recommend payment of a dividend for BEEeTERRNEE_E—F+
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). —A=+— EIJtEEZEK,HHH B(=

T—RNEFE)
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B RS SRR B &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Computer  and office Motor Leasehold
Buildings equipment equipment  vehicles improvements Total
-
KER HE
BF EHRB BLERE RE NELE ait
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARETn AR%Tn AR®TR ARETn ARET:n
Cost: A
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A—H 10,320 - 5,106 11,275 4,366 31,067
Additions HE - 1,910 2197 3,414 8,239 15,760
Acquired through business
combinations BREXBANES - 1416 1628 301 - 3,345
Disposals & - - (1,585) - - (1,585)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-"4+-A=1-H
1 January 2017 k=E-t£-A-H 10,320 3,326 7,346 14,990 12,605 48,587
Additions HE = = 67 885 1,056 2,008
Acquired through business
combinations (Note 38) BREBLHES () - - 1,284 1,234 378 2,896
Written off R = - - - (2,047) (2,047)
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 39)  HEMB A A (M5+39) - - (28) - - (28)
Disposals & = - - (921) - (921)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t+F+ZA=1-H 10,320 3,326 8,669 16,188 11,992 50,495
Accumulated depreciation: 2HHE:
At 1 January 2016 RZE-R"F-A—-H 815 - 2,618 4,535 1,334 9,302
Charged for the year REENR 511 1,936 2,453 2423 1139 8,462
Disposals ik - - (158) - - (158)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-~E+-A=1-H
1 January 2017 R=F-t§-A-H 1,326 1,936 4,913 6,958 2,473 17,606
Charged for the year REEMR 582 1,079 382 2,385 2,927 7,355
Written off il = = = - (372) (372)
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 39)  HEMBEAE (H539) - - (8) - - (8
Disposals & - - - (737) - (737)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-ZA=1-H 1,908 3,015 5,287 8,606 5,028 23,844
Net carrying amount: RERE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=1-H 8,412 3 3,382 7,582 6,964 26,651
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+-A=1-H 8,994 1,390 2,433 8,032 10,132 30,981
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.

(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s buildings are situated in
the PRC with lease terms expiring in 2046 and 2059.

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment includes an amount of RMB4,411,000 (2016:
RMB3,520,000) in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

ME - BERRE®®

RZE—+F+-_A=+—8 K&
BrEFMRAFTE  HESRRZZ
MANEE_ZRNAEHRANEN -

AEEYE BRERZHBEZER
BY BERBREHERBEARYK
4411000 (ZF — RF-AR%
3,520,00070) 2 B E °

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWE
2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
At 1 January w—H—H 132,900 130,990
Disposals k= (39,825) (17,831)
Changes in fair value N {E & E) 2,405 19,741
At 31 December w+=—A=+—8H 95,480 132,900

Investment properties were valued at 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016 by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited (“LCH”), an independent and professional qualified
valuer who holds a recognised
qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates the highest
and best use.

relevant professional

AEENKREMEHBIZEESE
AL ERM A EITAEm AR AT (F
BOTDR-_ZE—+tF+=-HA=+—H
F—ZE—RNFt+-_A=1+—BETF
e BN AERINEBREZER
R ERENENUE RS HEE
BEmABRHKES HRMBREY
¥ HEgzAgH AR A&E
LR -

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

Fair value

The following table gives information about how the fair
value of investment property is determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

B RS SRR B &

16. REWXE 2

AV @

TREHRBEHEETREMELTFE
TEZER(ARMmMEREHEERT R
FAw AEE) URRAFENS
BWABEBEATERZEE  $2o¥E
AERBAZATESR(FIRESES
&) e

Significant Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable  unobservable unobservable Inputs
Properties hierarchy technique inputs inputs to fair value
EXTHBE TUBEGA FaBEREB &R
/S DYERE  RELE BAER ERNEE HAFENEER
Office units, commercial Level 3 Market approach  Price per square  RMB6,000- The higher the price,
units and car park meter RMB19,000 the higher the fair
spaces in the PRC value
REUE AR AEEA - B3R 5% BYRKRE® AR¥6000mtZE ERHS - ATEES
BEENUREEN AR 19,0007

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, and time of the
comparable transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on
characteristics of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/
increase in the premium on characteristics of the properties
would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in fair value
of the investment properties.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from
their actual use.

HEFMEFE BRAELERR
HZME K RER -

R/ ESSEC AL SUPN =R IAC:
D) SRR B 0w (B K e OBl
D) EEBIREMERT
(ERNEIG DV bl

REFAETA LAY EZ &S MK
REAEE RERAGER -
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B RS AR B &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 16.

17.

Fair value (Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3
fair value measurements are as follows:

KREYWE =
NFEEE)

ENESRATFEI B EHZEHM

2017 2016
—E—+tE ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring HA¥ 45 64 (B34 25 A F &)
fair value) 132,900 130,990
Disposals k= (39,825) (17,831)
Included in fair value recognised in FIAE REZFHERZ A FE
profit or loss 2,405 19,741
Closing balance (level 3 recurring Hi 7K 4 &k (B3R Rt A FE)
fair value) 95,480 132,900
LAND USE RIGHTS 17. L3 5 A 4
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 3,946 4135
Amortisation charge during FABIESHE
the year (189) (189)
At 31 December KR+—A=+—H 3,757 3,946

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s land use rights are
situated in the PRC.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 EBFEE

Computer
trading and
Business Trade  Business clearing  Computer
agreements name license system  software Total
EREZR
BEDHE B EXUR  ERRS  EREH4 ait
RMB'OO0O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000O  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETT ARETr ARETR AR¥TRn AR%Tn AR%T:n
Cost: RA:
At 1 January 2016 RZFE-R~F-A—-H 154,000 - - - 3,800 157,800
Acquired through business BREBANES
combinations - 77,000 880,000 2,313 - 959,373
Addition HE - - - 1,077 - 1,077
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RETZA=1-H
1 January 2017 R=Z-t5-A-H 154,000 77,000 880,000 3,450 3800 1,118,250
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 39) &N B2 A (M :£39) - - - - 20) 20)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=t-H 154,000 77,000 880,000 3,450 3780 1,118,230
Accumulated amortisation and Rt BEREE:
impairment:
At 1 January 2016 RZE-RE-FA—-H (7428) - - - (247) (7675)
Charge for the year TEREMKG (12,782) (3,699) (42,259) (738) @13 (59,889)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RETZA=t-H
1 January 2017 R=E-t5-f-H (20,210) (3,698) (42,258) (738) (660) (67,564)
Charge for the year REEANR (12,782) (3,759) (42,964) (610) (502) (60,617)
Impairment HE (121,008) - - - (2,616) (123,624)
Disposal of subsidiary (Note 39) I EHE 2 A (i5439) - - - - 4 4
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=+-H (154,000) (7457) (85,222) (1,348) (3774 (251,801)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=1-H - 69,543 794,778 2,102 6 866,429
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZA=T-H 133,790 73,302 837,742 2712 3140 1050686
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B RS AR B &

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continueq) 8 BN EE

Intangible assets comprised computer application software
systems, business agreements, trade name, business license
and computer trading and clearing systems.

Computer application software systems and business
agreements were acquired through the capital injection to
acquire 60% interest in Beijing Jin Dian Pai Technology
Limited (JDP”). The estimated useful lives are 3 to
10 years for computer software and 10 to 15 years
for business agreements and there are no residual
value at the end of the useful lives. Due to the policies
imposed by the PRC Government, impairment losses of
approximately RMB2,616,000 and RMB121,008,000 have
been recognised in administration and operating expenses
by the management on computer software and business
agreements in 2017 respectively, in accordance with the
significant accounting policies in Note 5.6.

Trade name, business license and computer trading and
clearing system were acquired through the capital injection
to acquire 52.63% interest in NCCE. For the purpose of
impairment test on the trade name and business license
which had been allocated to the cash generating unit
(*CGU”) of the online trading platform services segment,
the recoverable amounts were evaluated by an independent
professional valuer, Deloitte Touché Tohmatsu, by using the
Multi-period excess earnings method applied to business
license and Relief from royalty method applied to trade name,
covering a detailed 5-year budget plan plus an extrapolated
cash flow projections, provided by the management, by
applying a long term growth rate subsequent to this 5-year
plan, with an after-tax discount rate of 30%.

B EAEOREERERARERS &
%%f AW BERRLERES
/zﬁz/u"

FERITERBILRSHAESHM
BRAR ([t EEEHA])60%H =M
BEENEKERRHERR R ED
o BN EREMERANTERAIER
FHNTIE10F r MEEHBZAN
FA0E15%F + BRI A F B RE
YTEFHNGEE - ERPRBAE
HNBEE BEBR-_Z—LtFE2KR
W%Mﬁﬁ%éyaﬁﬁﬁ o B 5t

BERERATHEREERE  BHOAR
#2.616,0007T & A R e%121 OO8 000
L2 REEBEEERNITHR RS ER
io

B BEMRRERRIREERR

BBIETEWBRE RS 52, 63%%
HER -  RESEIINFERRHTFER
BoBzATELBEUNBRENEHE
EIREITRER S - R EIESRE
VEXRGEMEHHHERRERS
HEBRARAREBRERAENS
EIRAETRE  RERRFANS
FREFELHEEERHEEEN
ZOFFERERRPERREBR
RO EB0% [ HIHER RS RIBA -
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continueq)

The key assumptions used in the 5-year budget plan plus
and extrapolated cash flow projections are:

()  the estimated useful life of these intangible assets is
20.5 years and there are no residual value at the end
of the useful life;

(i) the weighted average cost of capital structure and risk
profile is determined by reference to similar industry in
the market;

(ily  cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated 1% growth rate; and

(iv) operating profit margin will be maintained within the
range from 52.70% to 56.22% throughout the 5-year
budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’s development. The discount rate used is
after-tax and reflect a similar risks relating to the relevant
business.

The directors of the Company concluded that the CGU
demonstrates sufficient cash flows that justify the net
carrying amount of these intangible assets and hence no
impairment is considered necessary as at 31 December
2017,

B RS SRR B &

8. BMILEE

SEREHEREER
BOEEBROT

e //lljE EU Pﬁfﬁ

() ZEBEEEEAEASGA
205%F - BN Fam BRI EE
B

i’ﬂfﬂi$%&%%m SRUTEE
T

(i) SFHBMIRSTFEHAET1%
BERHEE R

(iv) #EEERBRoFETEE T2 HR
N 52.70% E56.22% & [E 2
A o

AEBEEEEBMENIERR DR
BREXREMNEYMSRRBHE
E o P MR ALY RRER
HEAXBNEERR -

T_LiZE/T\ZEEEEi/mU\ RZEELE
EREFEASE  AMNR-ZT—+t
F+Z A=+ —HBYTRAEFTEEDR
AR o
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19.

20.

DEPOSITS PAID

The balance as at 31 December 2016 represents amounts
paid for acquisition of properties.

In September 2010, the Group entered into an agreement
with AL TR B FH ERZE AR AR (“HRIEE”) to acquire
a property for a consideration of RMB25,260,000. #75&
o5 was a related party to the Company in which ¥
gp’s shareholder was one of the Company’s directors
in 2016. According to the agreement, the property
would be transferred to the Group upon full settlement
of the consideration. The Group had made deposits of
approximately RMB23,500,000 to ¥75 5= and the remaining
balance of approximately RMB1,760,000 had been included
in the Group’s capital commitment (Note 42(b) as at
31 December 2016. On 21 December 2017, the Group had
agreed to terminate the agreement and thus the refund
of RMB13,610,000 has been collected by the Group on
27 December 2017 whereas the remaining deposits of
approximately RMB9,890,000 will be collected on or before
31 December 2018 and reallocated to other receivables
under current assets.

PREPAYMENTS

The balance as at 31 December 2016 represented amounts
paid for the acquisition of PT. Asia Pacific Commodity Market
(“APCM").

On 1 November 2015, NCCE and &I iR IKAR D B BRAR]
(YR JK”), an independent third party, entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which NCCE had agreed to assist
FYITERJK in establishing PT. Asia Pacific Commodity
Exchange (“APCX”) and obtaining all the operating licenses
and approvals from the relevant government authorities (both
China and Indonesia).

19.

20.

ENERE

R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—H2 &%
B EMEZENIRS -

RZZE—FFNA  NEEETILH
RO EMERBEBERAR(#HRIED
FIE— M HaE - A A R#25,260,000
TWIE—BEWE - IRTEAAREZ
BEALT  ARalHP—NEERZ
T-RERFTRITIBRE - BREZW
& RYEESREHINRERER
FAREHE - ARBEEMFTREZMHLY
AR #23,500,000t 2 &% - mE T
KR A R #1,760,000 E s AR E
BER=—T—RF+-A=+—HZE
A (M sE420) - RZT—EF+
ZAZt+—HB AEEBECERELKLR
Al AEEER=ZZT—tF+
— A=+t B IE A R#13,610,000
TCZRF - MERTHAK9,890,000
TZEEER-_E—N\E+-_A=+
—H®ZAER - W EHFHEER

&R H b FEUIFRIE R o

SRR

RZZE—ARF+-_A=+—HBZ&HT
AU EETEPT. Asia Pacific Commodity
Market ([52 X & & R 2 Fr)) T2 T 89

T e

RZE—RAF+—A—H REXH
Frea@my E= R RINTRIKBRNDE
RAEl(RYITRK DT L —IBRE
e - RBEZHE REXSHMAAE
% B Y1 T 8R JK AKX SZPT. Asia Pacific
Commodity Exchange ([Z8 K& @R
2 ) LA KBRS BB A8 B8 I AT 36 P
(P E RENE e fdn) mAas & 5T el kit
JE ©
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20. PREPAYMENTS (continueq)

On 2 May 2017, APCX has changed its registered name to
APCM and established a wholly owned subsidiary PT. Dian
Agritama Persada (together referred as to “APCM Group”).

On 9 October 2017, NCCE has successfully obtained all the
licenses and approvals for APCM Group. At the same time,
FIITER JK has also failed in repaying both the registered
capital and additional expenses incurred by NCCE in full and
therefore, the Company has decided to acquire the APCM
Group at a consideration of United Stated Dollar (“USD”)
2,520,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB16,473,000) on
30 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an amount of
approximately RMB21,311,000 was impaired and charged to
profit and loss by the directors due to the financial difficulty
of the counter-party.

B RS SRR B &

20. AR E#)

RZT—t&FAA=H ' APCXE
H ok it % 78 % R APCM I A 37 —
2 & A KB A RPT. Dian Agritama
Persada (£t 18 & [APCM Group)) °

R_ZE—tF+ANE RBEXHH
2 IH AAPCM Group ¥ 18 Ffr & #F 7]
Mt - B FYIHRIKELRE
BERAMEARBRERSEL
RIS Bt ARRRERZE
—+tF+=A=+H52520,0003 T
(ErxD(BFERK A E®16,473,000
7T) Z R AB Uk B APCM Group °

HE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—HBLHF
E- - BaREFHIABTMBERE DA
R #21,311,0007T 2 & BB E B E I A
ERBHAGAEZ -
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21. GOODWILL 21. B8
RMB’000
AR¥T
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 RZE—RE—H—H —ZE—X%F

and 1 January 2017 +ZA=+—BER=ZE—tF—H—H =
Acquired through business combinations i@ i@ % 7% & 6 U B8 (K 5:38)

(Note 38) 1,064
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-_A=+—H 1,964
Accumulated impairment losses Bt HESE:

At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 RZE—XRF—HA—H8 Z—~%F

and 1 January 2017 +-A=+-—BKk-_ZT—+tF—F—H -
Impairment losses recognised in the year AR R EEE 1,964
At 31 December 2017 R-EBE—+F+-A=+—H 1,964
Net carrying amount REFE:

At 31 December 2017 R-EBE—+F+-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—-—RF+ZA=+—H -
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated ARRE R M 2 5 B 23R E £ B
to the cash generating units (“CGU”) identified as follows: (REEEEBENDOEHERTOT:
RMB’000
AR¥T
Segment k|
Online Trading Platform Services BLEXHFE
— APCM Group — PAEMRIMEE 1,964
The directors considered that the revenue growth is not EERA/WEEIFFHHKRIER o
achieved as expected. Thus, the goodwill arising from the HRKWEBTEABmRXSMNEREEES
acquisition of APCM Group should be impaired. Since there BURZE—tEF T+ H=+—RHI
is no recoverable amount of the CGU of APCM Group as mANEESRE  BHEZT—tF1+=
at 31 December 2017, an impairment loss on the goodwill A=1+—HIEFE AR#1,964,0007T
of RMB1,964,000 was recognised in the consolidated ZEEBREBEBERGE2EKSE
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended RAER

31 December 2017.
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22 REBERNTINER

R-ZE—+HF+-_A=+—HZ&EH®
THE(EEEZE AR FEE (DT —NF
AR#2142,0007T) © BT :

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The balance as at 31 December 2017 represents share of
net assets on the associates (2016: RMB2,142,000), details
of which are as follows:

Form of business Place of Percentage of

Company name structure incorporation Principal activity profit share

NCE:E EBRBER o M A L 3t B TEXHR HENBED

BMmHEAEESREERAH Corporation PRC Online trading platform 40%

BMmBeMEEREERAR =B HE BLEXHTFA 40%

KEEERETARSREEMR AR Corporation PRC Online trading platform 40%

KBEERETARIRBEERAR EE HE BEXHTFA 40%

Pan-ASEAN Economic & Trade Corporation Hong Kong Trading 49%
Limited

RERBEEERAF =B £ =] 49%

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR AREF T

Share of net assets DIEEEFHE - 2,142

= 2,142

The below table reconciled the impairment loss of interests

TREINBE RPN ER ZRE

in associates: B8 2 ¥R
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBET T
At the beginning of the year NG - -
Impairment losses recognised B R R E K5 1B (1,483) —
(1,483) —

The Group recognised impairment losses based on the
accounting policy stated in Note 5.6.

255 B B0 B 51 5.6 57 # & 5t SR T

RBEEE o
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continueq)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses
of certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised share of
those associates, extracted from the relevant management
accounts of associates, both for the years and cumulatively,

are as follows:

2. RERERNTINER @

ﬁ‘ilaﬂtﬁﬁgﬁffﬁz;:?? it =

NAER - WREH

TN

EIERAE

ZAFER R REREEZZFH
BRBEEIIRMT

2017 2016
—E—tF NS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ETF T
Unrecognised share of losses of  FZNF [ K 1 58 FE (L 2 B &
associates for the year NAEE (516) -
Accumulated unrecognised share 2R & A 52 &1 2 B & Q7]
of losses of associates &5 18 (516) —

Summarised financial

information as per management

account in respect of the Group’s immaterial associates are

set out below:

RERNEERFFEARZARNERE
REMNPBERBEEHINNT

2017 2016
—E—-tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR T T
Year ended 31 December BZ+=-A=+—HLEE
Aggregate carrying amount FEVBREANERIZEEX
of individually immaterial BENFCRERE
associates in the consolidated
financial statements = 2,142
Aggregate amount of the Group’s ANEBEEEZEHE A7 2
share of those associates: HEm4RTE
— Losses from continuing — BFERKEEBIEBE
operations (659) (312)
Total comprehensive loss FHEIERE (659) (312)

China Assurance Finance Group

Limited F B R R € @& E AR R A
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23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23. HEHENE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

At 1 January n—H—H 1,859 42,723
Acquired through business FREBEHERS
combinations = 162,710

Disposals (Note a) & (Pt 5Ea) (1,859) (40,864)

Disposals (Note b) & (Bt aEb) - (162,710)

At 31 December N+=-—A=+—H - 1,859

Notes: P o -

(a) During the year, 1 unit (2016: 21 units) of the property and (@) RAEE - KRR A K 1,859,000
2 car park spaces (2016: 13 car park spaces) at the cost of TL(ZF "% : ARM40,864,0007T)
RMB1,859,000 (2016: RMB40,864,000) had been passed to the ZUE(ZT—RF  21E) MREL R
buyers upon transfer of property certificates. A gain on sales of 2MEE B (ZF—RF - 13EFER)
RMB529,000 (2016: RMB22,450,000) was recognised as other EEBREMEREZEERITES
income (Note 8). ﬁﬁ%”&é}\ﬁ%529,0007_ﬂ(::§ —~

F: ANR#22,450,0007T) EERHEH
b A (B 7E8)

(b) In 2016, land use right with a cost RMB162,710,000 and b RZFT-—RNF - RABARE
classified as property held for sale has been disposed. A loss 162,710,0007C B SR A B EHEM X
on disposal of RMB34,891,000 was recognised in administrative MTEREREHE - BE—T—
and operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016. NE+ZA=T—RLFE HEE

8 AR #34,891,0007t 2R A1TH
MiEaFEE -
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24,

FIFLEWR

2017 2016
—g—t5| =—z-x%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

Current Bl
Unlisted equity investment, at cost JEEFT AR E » KA
(Note a) (Fff 5Fa) = 600
Non-current Ik B H#A
Shenyang Rutal Integrated ES RIS ERE
Property Rights
Exchange Centre Company REGFRLERAR(EREG
Limited (“Shenyang BN DK FEDb)
Rutal”) (Note b) = 500
I REKZAREERAF IEREKRKBBEEERA
(“EHKBRIB") (Note b) Al ([ KR F]) (P 7Eb) — 500
= 1,000
Notes: B 5 -

(a) The balance represented the Group’s strategic 6.0% equity
investment interest in &R %42 M AR 2 F]. The balance is
measured at cost less impairment, if any, at the end of reporting
period because it does not have quoted market price in an active
market and the directors are of the opinion that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

(b) The balance represented the Group’s strategic 8.33% and 7.46%
equity investment interests in Shenyang Rutal and %7K 2 3.
The balance is measured at cost less impairment, if any, as at
31 December 2016 because it does not have quoted market
price in an active market and the directors are of the opinion
that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, RMB1,600,000 of
impairment on available-for-sale investments was charged to
profit or loss directly as the decline in value was considered
significant and prolonged (2016: Nil). No reclassification of
impairment loss from other comprehensive income to profit
or loss is presented as no such impairment was made in
previous years.

(@) HEMIEAEEREARLREHAR
NAIE6.0% Bl M AR B R o
WE R - R A BRIR AR R RURUE (10
B)itE REARZEHBNERTS
WHEMISHRE BESRAHEATE
EORRI SR E -

(o) ZEHREAEEREGENKEKR
FBH)8.33% [ 7.46% B BE I B AN 1% B #E
W RZE—XR"E+=ZA=1+—8"
FRERBRANFRRE(WMA)GE R
F 2z 4 PR BB T 35 I & T 55 3R
B BEFRAEQNFEEESE

=

= °

BHE-_ZT—+H&+-A=+—B8It&F
[ AT ERE A R1,600,0007T
ZREEETABDE  RER%ZEEH
TR EAEEARRR( T —K
Fo|m)  HRBEFELEELZR
B WEZhEbCEAKEHES
SHEIBENREESSE -

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

the receivables for development and sales of computer
application software systems and maintenance service fee
income.

The customers are obliged to settle the amounts according
to the payment terms as stipulated in the contracts, with
a grace period of up to 180 days (2016: 180 days). The
balances as at reporting dates are interest-free and due from
a large number of diversified customers and hence there
was no significant concentration of credit risk.

The directors consider that the fair values of accounts
receivable which are expected to be recovered within one
year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

25. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. E W BE R H b fE U
IR
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®EF T
Accounts receivable JrE I BR 3R 18,127 33,247
Less: Allowances for impairment & : J&i 1B /&5 18 5 &
loss = (8,457)
18,127 24,790
Prepayments AN 6,579 15,884
Deposits B& 2,223 2,368
Other receivables H 4th & W 3k 18 142,126 132,452
169,055 175,494
Accounts receivable represent the financial guarantee JE W AR R BN 45 B & R R R B AR 7%
and consultancy service fee income receivables and ERWRARBKREARAEREE

AAEBERYHRGEREEREE
YA R FRIA

o)

R EAKANE - EEARRE
KRR 2 (B R O - B
IR H & = A180H (=& — 73 F 1 180
B)  REERBEEHZ BB IR
BRRE—BETLES  LmEA
b (E AR -

¥

EERA HRNZRSFEHNEHAE
H - BEHRN —FRKE 2 &R R

=8
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(Continued)

Based on the transaction date, ageing analysis of the
Group’s accounts receivable (net of impairment loss) as at

25. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

FRIE )

25. EWERF KR HEMEWK

REXZEH AEER-_T—RF
RZZE—tF+_R=+—HZEK
BRI BR OB E B 1B) 2 Rk 2 A

T

2017 2016
—E—tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ETF T
0 to 30 days 0&E30H 353 1,360
31 to 90 days 31£290H 879 1,153
91 to 180 days 912180H 752 802
Over 180 days 180H KA E 16,143 21,475
18,127 24,790

Ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable that were 7R &R B R R B 3k BAE 2 e W AR

not individually nor collectively impaired is as follows: RZEREDTTMT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®EF T
Neither past due nor impaired R H R KR E 413 1,360
1 to 90 days past due #HI1Z90H 1,219 1,703
91 to 180 days past due # H91Z2=180H 1,148 552
Over 180 days past due %0 HA iR #5180 H 15,347 21,175
18,127 24,790
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable.

The Group’s other receivables mainly included receivables
from disposal of properties held for sale and other
receivables from third parties. Other classes within accounts
and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The below table reconciled impairment loss of accounts
receivable (recognised based on the accounting policy stated
in Note 5.13(i)) for the year:

B RS SRR B &

25. EWERFKREMEWK

FRIE )

B8 BB RR{E 2 FE W AR 315 B AN &
BEERUHEEEECH2TFPEH -
REBTER BRNEEERTE
BAEAEE  AEARKBERETE
BUE  REERREFUZEEH
TR AR E R -

AEBzEMEYRFBEI2EEEE
FEHEMRE LR IR K& IE
WHE=THHE M B FKIA - B
RN E A EUGRIR 2 AR T8
REREEE -

TREHNFAERHE5.13() TEi 2
S BRERZ EWERR 2 B EE
BHER:

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

At 1 January n—H—H 8,457 9,500
Less: Reversal of impairment loss & : Bl 8 & # 2 2 B (B & 18

previously recognised = (1,043)

Transfer to written off accounts &5 & 2 Hifi sk /& Uk BR 3k
receivable (8,457) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - 8,457
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B RS AR B &

25. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group holds collateral over all its accounts receivable
from financial guarantee services. In the event of default or
failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts by the
customers, the Group will proceed with sale of collaterals.
In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the
Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50%
to ensure the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee
amount (2016: 50%). At the reporting date, the fair value of
the pledged assets in respect of accounts receivable is as

25. EWERF KR HEMEWK

FRIE )

AEBHREREERRY < 2 80E
WHEREFHAEEMR - MEFPEOK
AEEBETMRENERE  ~&H
HHEEHm - BBFEEEERR
K ANEE 2 FHEREEEL R
MR B0% AT ARE IR R BT 2 R 58
Z AW EME (=T — N F 1 50%) ° 1
HBEAH - BERYRRZERERE
EZRFERT:

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARET T
Property, plant and equipment Y RENMEE 1,153,754 1,801,426
Inventories FE 991,769 1,635,761
Accounts receivable JiE I BR 3R 9,000 245,790
Bank deposits (Note 28) R 1715 (M 7E28) 2,500 4,200
2,157,023 3,687,177
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The amounts due from related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 26. FE N EAE 5 FIE

EUEE T REARER 28R
BRERE S -

2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
Name of related parties Relationships RMB’000 RMB’000
E=HEW B % AR¥ TR ARETF T
EREDPEMEMABRAA Non-controlling shareholder of NCCE - 22,831
RERGAIEERER
EEBHRESEERAR Non-controlling shareholder of NCCE - 28,901
REARXGAMFERRE
EEEHREFHBEERAA Related party of non-controlling
shareholder of NCCE = 21
REARGAMFEERBRRNEBES
ERBHETREEMEMER AT Related party of non-controlling
shareholder of NCCE = 2,058
REARGAMFEERBRRNEBES
ERBREKEEBRERERAR Company which has significant
influence by the director (Note) 29,013 51,724
EERBEARTENAR (M)
29,013 105,535

Note: Mr. Pang, a director of the Company, has significant influence in

EEBENKEZEZEREABR AT, In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, EE BB EEEFR AR is a related

party to the Group.

o 5

ARBEZZAEHEERENKE
XEREBRARNEEEATE - K
RAEERE ARAREEBRAE
KEEZRERATARAEENH
By e

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an amount of
RMB52,741,000 was impaired and charged to profit and loss
by the directors due to the financial difficulty of the counter-
parties.

HEe_Z—+F+-_A=+—HItHF
B BREFHIEEMGERE  —%
AR #52,741,0007C 2 & B E B E L
MESZTTAREZR °
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S

B RS AR B &

217.

28.

29.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

These have maturities of one year as at 31 December 2017
(2016: one year). Such deposits are pledged to certain banks
as securities for providing financial guarantee services to the
customers. Effective interest rates of these bank deposits as
at 31 December 2017 ranged from 0.29% to 5.93% (2016:
0.30% to 2.01%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, all pledged deposits were
denominated in RMB (2016: all). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

These bank deposits are kept in the PRC bank accounts
of the Group as collateral for financial guarantees (Note 45)
and related accounts receivable (Note 25). As these bank
deposits are restricted to the use by the Group, the balances
are not under cash management of the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group held customers’ monies in its normal course
of business. The Group has classified these balances
separately as cash and bank balances held on behalf of
customers in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The corresponding balances were recognised as other
payables for each individual customer.

27.

28.

29.

EEHRITER

R-E—+E+-_A=+—HE2HEH
RITERZIEEEAE —F( 2T —
RNE:—5F)  ZEGFHREERTET
HRIT - ERMEBEFPREREERRYE
ZIRE - RZE—LEFTHA=1T—
B ZSRIGERCEBNEREF
0.29E £593FE (= F— /4 : 0.30F
ZE201E) -

R-ZE—+E+_A=+—8 A
EEREFRUAAREHECZE—RN
F B ARETAEmERAH
MmER BFBRELNZEESRAXH
B BX AT B e 2 SN EE R I T AR BR ©

ZRFBITEK

ZERITERDERRAEERF
BZRITERFIERBMEER 2 EHm
(Pff &£ 45) b 48 B & Ui B K (P 5E£25) ©
HRZFERITEFRDREEREE
A BTBAKRBZREEE -

BeRkAESEEERE—
RKEREFHEH

AEBRIERLZXHHABTEETLK
B o REBERERA MR R P Z
ERHEBREASNRETFPFENE
ERREFEEE - HESEHRREA
8 7Y 2 P e 38 23 L FE AN R0 -
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B RS SRR B &

0. B RBEEEEER—

— iR iR

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GENERAL
ACCOUNTS

RN —+HF+—-A=+—Hst A&
B A A R#156,7137T Jh LA B TTEHE
(ZZE—7"F : AR#¥6,823,0007T) °
FTEEMEBRTIAAREE TR
RERTE - AR TR EmERAH
& BFEEXZSTESLATF
B BT B i 2 SMNEE R I BT AR IR o

Included in the balance of approximately RMB156,713 as at
31 December 2017 (2016: RMB6,823,000) was denominated
in HK$. All other balances were denominated in RMB and
were kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

BITHERZFETIREERERA
HAZ IHFRES - ROGRER
AT EBY R R R 2 EAR

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on the
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

FERTT ©
31. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. gg NERMRKHMEN
IR
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Accounts payable arising from the RIEH&XERMEN X FHF
ordinary course of business on BEEZEMER
online trading platform 26,796 35,167
Accruals and other payables FEFTE A R HE M ERKIE
(Note) (M 5E) 116,626 267,213
Receipts in advance T8 W IR 11,608 14,119
Deferred income from financial REMBERZELZEKRA
guarantee 2,808 5,404
Business and other tax payables J&E {2 % [ H b £ 18 14,903 13,192
172,741 335,095
Note: B 5 -

R-Z—+F+-_A=+—B2Z&EHBRE
JE &5 TR AN A R #52,010,0007T (ZF — X
F: AR¥3,669,0007) MREEFEHEAEHN
Be kRS EEE ARE10,739,0007T (=
T—XF : AR#153,486,0007T X M 5£29) °

The balance as at 31 December 2017 included accrued construction
cost of RMB2,010,000 (2016: RMBS3,669,000) and cash and cash
equivalent held on behalf of customers of RMB10,739,000 (2016:
RMB153,486,000) (Note 29).
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B RS AR B &

31. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable
presented based on the transaction date at the end of the
reporting period:

31.

EANERRREMES

FRIE ()

REMERKR  ERNIZEHE5/0E
AR Rl D AT LA

2017 2016
—g—t5| =—z-x%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBET T

0 to 30 days 0&30H = -
31 to 60 days 31£60H = —
61 to 90 days B61£90H = -
91 to 365 days 912 365H 321 35,167
More than 365 days 365H A 26,475 —

26,796 35,167

The average credit period on commission paid is 30 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

EfNH2HNFEEEHRI0B - AL
B bt 17 B 75 [ B & TR IR SR DA RE AR PR
BREFEREEHRRNEE
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32. OTHER BORROWINGS

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

32. EMEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Current Bl
Loan A (Note a) ERA (f7Ea) 20,974 26,857
Loan B (Note b) BB (M 7Eb) 4,228 —
Loan C (Note c) B G (M sEc) 5,877 7162
Loan D (Note d) E D (M 7Fd) = 19,695
Loan E (Note e) B RE (K iEe) 11,123 —
Loan G (Note g) BERG (Ktixg) 11,987 —
54,189 53,714
Non-current Ik B H#A
Loan F (Note f) B 3F (KT #ED) - 1,970
Loan G (Note g) MG (M) 66,598 71,618
66,598 73,588
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  The balance represented the principal of an unsecured short- @ HEHDEABILE=ZFHARE

20,811,0007T (18 % #25,000,0007%
T ZERBRBHERLHARE
163,0007T (F855 #195,0007% 7T) 2 &
MAE - REHBARREERBEES
THRERKREERER  REF15%:T
B BREBEREE - ZEZERINBK
o FERRARERIBHA=E—+
FAAZ+=HRBREETHBEX
MEER RZTE—\F-A=-++t

term loan from an independent third party of approximately
RMB20,811,000 (equivalent to HK$25,000,000) and interest
payable of approximately RMB163,000 (equivalent to
HK$195,000). The principal was guaranteed by Mr. Pang and Mr.
Chang, a director and a related party of the Company, interest-
bearing at a rate of 15% per annum and repayable on demand
as the loan contains clauses which give the lender the right at
its sole discretion to demand immediate payment upon its expiry
on 23 September 2017. On 27 February 2018, an extension
agreement was signed where the loan is now repayable on B EREBRHAER Y - ERBEA
2 January 2019 and subject to the interest rate of 15% per RZZE-—NF—AZHERE E8F
annum. 15%5T 8 °

) HBRDTRKEABILUE-ZFTHARE
4,065,0007T (18 % 7°4,883,000/% 7t.)
CEEBOCHERROARE
163,0007T (#8155 $#2196,0007% 7T) 2 &

(b) The balance represented the principal of an unsecured short-
term loan from an independent third party of approximately
RMB4,065,000 (equivalent to HK$4,883,000) and interest
payable of approximately RMB163,000 (equivalent to
HK$196,000). The principal was guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a NAB - AREHARREEZ AL
director of the Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 12% per BR EEF12%:1E BEERE
annum and repayable on demand. W2 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 % @
¢ €



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

32. OTHER BORROWINGS (continueaq)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

This is the principal of an unsecured short-term loan from
an independent third party of approximately RMB7,162,000
(equivalent to HK$8,000,000) and interest payable of
approximately RMB50,000 (equivalent to HK$60,000). The
principal was guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director of the
Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 20%
An amount of approximately RMB832,500 (equivalent to
HK$1,000,000) has been repaid during the year and the
remaining amount of approximately RMB5,827,000 (equivalent
to HK$7,000,000) is repayable on 31 January 2018. Since there
is no further extension agreement signed up until the reporting

per annum.

date, the loan has subsequently become repayable on demand
as confirmed by the lender.

This is an unsecured short-term loan from an independent
third party of approximately RMB19,695,000 (equivalent to
HK$22,000,000) which was guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director
of the Company, interest bearing at a rate of 1.6% per month.
The balance has been fully repaid on 14 December 2017.

The balance represented the principal of an unsecured short-
term loan from an independent third party of RMB10,000,000
and interest payable of RMB1,123,000. The principal was
interest-bearing at a rate of 12% per annum and repayable on
24 June 2018.

This is an unsecured short-term loan from an independent
third party of approximately RMB1,970,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,200,000) which was guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director
of the Company, interest-bearing at a rate of 33% per annum.
The balance has been fully repaid during the year.

The balance represented the principal of an unsecured long-term
loan from a related company, Excel Precise International Limited
of approximately RMB66,598,000 (equivalent to HK$80,000,000)
and interest payable of approximately RMB11,987,000 (equivalent
to HK$14,400,000). The principal was unsecured, interest-
bearing at a rate of 2% per month and repayable on 31 January
2019.

Mr. Law Fei Shing, a director of the Company, is the director
and shareholder of Excel Precise International Limited.

32. H g &)

fsE: (8)

©

hAEREBLE=ZFHARE
7,162,000t (18 % $28,000,0007% JT)
ZEEREHERZASROAR
#50,0007T (1855 7460,000/8 7T) 2 &
MABE - AEARARREFTEZLE
BR EEF20%E - —FEARE
832,500 (8 % 71,000,000 7T) 2
CHEORAFEEE  MBTHAR
5,827,000 (4948 % 747,000,000
TIZEERANZE—\F—A=+
—HEE -BHREEREAH L&
FEHE—INEREBHERE - WK
FHERBZEREREZREKIZEX

(ESEa

]

EAERKABBLE=ZTHARS
19,695,0007T (48 & 7£22,000,00078
Mz BEEREHENR AARRE
EYREER  REA16%IE &
HER-ZF-tFTZATHAZEK
1

B

i3

R ©

T

EHDDKEBEBILE=ZFARE
10,000,0007T 2 IR BIE & A
R#1,123,0007T Z FEfS I 8. - A%
BFE12% 8 ARZZ—N\FRA
—“t+INREE -

W AEKEBBILEZAHARE
1,970,000 (#8 & #2,200,0007% Jt.)
ZEBHREHENR HARREREY
EEER  HEFIBRAE - BHD
RARFERHEE -

HEHARE—BEEARBABREAE
R AR#ARK66,598,0007T (FHE R
80,000,000 7T) 2 MEH R HAE K
2% KA R H11,987,0007T (A%
714,400,000/ 70) Z FERFI B, K&
ThBEIEIT - BB A2%E - AR
T-hFE—A=t+—HEEZ-

AEEEEEBNEERBERERE
RARzEERER -
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33. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES B.EEHERE
(@  Total minimum lease payments are as follows: @ HmEEENKBELOT:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETTT

Due within one year —F R EH 1,476 948
Due in the second to fifth years 25 — % R F R F|H 1,983 2,013
3,459 2,961

Future finance charges on MEMEZRKUBEER
finance leases (355) (211)

Present value of finance lease REHEBERE

liabilities 3,104 2,750
(o) The present value of finance lease liabilities is as b)) HMEHSEBEREWT:
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+t& ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Due within one year, included HR—FREE @ FFA RS

under current liabilities afE 1,270 855
Due in the second to fifth years, ME = AFRNEIH - 5T A
included under non-current SEmBAG
liabilities 1,834 1,895
3,104 2750
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33.

34.

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (continueq)

The Group entered into certain finance leases for its motor
vehicles with remaining lease terms of two to four years
(2016: one to five years). Interest rates under the leases
are fixed at rates ranging from 3.82% to 16.3% per annum
(2016: 3.82% to 13% per annum). These leases do not have
options to renew or any contingent rental provisions. Under
the lease terms, the Group has the option to purchase the
leased assets at a price that is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair value of the leased asset at the end of
the leases.

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying assets
where the lessor has the rights to revert in event of default.
The carrying amounts of the finance lease liabilities are
denominated in RMB and approximate to their fair values.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 December 2015, the Company issued convertible
bonds (the “2015 CB”) with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$149,500,000. Interest is charged at a rate of 8% per
annum which is repayable semi-annually in arrears. The
bonds carry a right to convert the principal amount into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$1.15 per conversion share
during the period from 24 December 2016 to 24 December
2017. The Company may at any time before the maturity date
redeem the bonds at par (in whole or in part). Any amount
of the 2015 CB which remains outstanding on the maturity
date will be redeemed at their outstanding principal amount.

On initial recognition, the 2015 CB contain liability and equity
components. The equity component is presented within
convertible bonds equity reserve in equity (Note 47). The
effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 10.92% per annum.

33.

34.

mEEEEE®

AEBEHAEIVETHRTIHEBA
TENF(ZE—RF —ERF)2Z
HERE ZEHEZFNXERE
BN T382BE16.3EREF(ZE—X
F:EFEI82EEIE) - ZFHEHL
BmEMERERSEMSIAE K -
BIBHERR  ~EBEBENBHE
BREOEREBEEEERAFEZ
EBEREEHEEE -

MEMERBENAEBEEEFEER 1
HABREZELRNEMHRKRDEE

BIIR - RHAFEAE o
a2 IR S 2

RZE—RE+-A=-+WmA  &xA
BETABREKRES(ZE—RFTE
BRE%]) - A< 425 5149,500,0007%8
T ZERBREREF%IE  AE
EFELF—IK o EBHEMERER - KR
E-RF+-_A+WHEZ-Z—+
F+Z AT MBEHBZRSRRE
FRBIIRMDIASE T - B AE 5B E
BMABARRFRAFEFREEO.01E T
Z B o AR F AR EIHA B A BE R R
HEEBELNES(HH X2 —F—
AFARBRESFTREBARARKES
ZEMESHEBIRERHNAEEZAS
BT LARED -

VNEHERE  ZE_T-RFAHBRRK
BEHFBERBERERMEBD -
DRA MR ESEaFHET 25 (I
A7) - MYI B R B ELAR S MM
MEBRZBEHONERFNERS
10.92fF °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)

On 15 December 2017, the Company extended the maturity
date of the 2015 CB by one year, from 24 December
2017 to 24 December 2018; and deleted all references
to Mr. Chang Hoi Nam in the terms and conditions of
the convertible bonds in its entirety. All other terms and
conditions of the 2015 CB remain unchanged from the
original terms. The extended maturity date is not accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability of
2015 CB as the discounted present value of the cash flow of
the 2015 CB with extended maturity date is less than 10%
difference from the discounted present value of the cash
flow of the outstanding 2015 CB prior to the extension of
maturity date. As such, the amount of future cash flow of the
extended 2015 CB as at 24 December 2018 discounted by
the original effective interest rate amounted to approximately
RMB112,800,000 (equivalent to HK$135,500,000). The
difference between the carrying amount of extended 2015
CB and the amount of discounted future cash flow of
the extended 2015 CB of approximately RMB11,655,000
(equivalent to HK$14,000,000) has been recognised in other
income, gains or losses.

The decrease in fair value of the derivative financial assets
before the extension of maturity date of approximately
RMB4,518,000 (equivalent to HK$5,227,000) and the
increase in fair value of the derivative financial assets after
the extension of maturity date of approximately RMB968,000
(equivalent to HK$1,120,000) have been recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, none
of the 2015 CB was converted into ordinary share of the
Company.

B RS SRR B &

34. AR EF»)

W_BE—+F+=-A+HHE ARAA
BT —RAFABRRESHIEAS
—E—+E+_At+HWBEER—F
BT N\E+_A=-+WmAE ¥R
0 A 2 IR 1J 25 B 16 SR K2 16 44 A
BRI EIEENRL - — T —
RFEARREHFTE HMREER
RIGHRFAE - ARIHBAELTR
M- —RAFARREFNRS RN
WRRERPEECRAIMNKREE
TR -RFABMRESNRE S RO
RIMENEFELN10% - EERHE
HAY A EE—E—RAEaBRES
REcmBEEHE EHit  R=ZF
—\F+ZAZ+HmE -  BERMN=
T-RFRREFHORKRS M
CHERBEBRMNERREHNAAR
#112,800,0007T (48 % 72135,500,000
BT c BERW _-_ZE—HEAHRK
EHEMNEAMEEEERN T —AF
MR ESFNERTRRRKBSRED
R ERAN /A RK11,655,0007T
(#8 2 114,000,000 7T) » W 2 HER
REMBA - Rk EE -

ERIEBAARMMITESHEEN AT
B2 T4 A ANR45180007T (47
£ 105,227,000 L) - MEREHA
BOITESREEN QA FEENOA
AR #968,0007T (15 71,120,000/%
L) ESHEEREBEZZE—tF
T A=+ BLEFEERRER -

HU=—F - ~FR-F—t4+=A
=+-ALFE TH-F-AFT
MR E SRR ARDRANEBR -
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34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated

3. TTBRRES @

ROTERE RN EA PR

statement of financial position at initial recognition are as KEABMERESFRAT
follows:
RMB’000
ARBTT
Fair value of the 2015 CB at —E-AFUBKREFR_ZT—0F
24 December 2015 T AZTMBZAFE 125,161
Equity component (Note 36(b)) 1 2= 2B 7 (I 5£36(0)) (33,154)
Derivative financial assets — company PTEsmMEE
redemption options on convertible bonds — RAIEME 26,277
Liability component on initial recognition MPERAKz BB 118,284

The movements of the liability component of the 2015 CB

for the year are set out below:

—ERETHRBESHREBHR
AEEZ BHRIIMT

2017 2016

—E—+tF NS

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR®ET T

At 1 January n—HA—H 130,156 118,530

Effective interest expense ERFERX 14,254 13,654

Interest paid 2 F B (10,292) (10,847)
Gain on extension of convertible I & A # i% (& 5 B BR =~ I 25

bonds (11,655) —

Exchange realignment M H, 7 2 (9,271) 8,819

At 31 December W+—A=+—8H 113,192 130,156
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3. TTBRRES @

—E - HE TR ES SR E R
AEEZBHESIMT -

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The movements of the derivative financial assets of the 2015
CB for the year are set out below:

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR®ETF T

At 1 January n—H—H 14,741 23,856
Changes in fair value recognised RFERNERRIBTHAFE

in profit or loss during the year & &) (3,550) (10,314)

Exchange realignment M X, 38 & (901) 1,199

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 10,290 14,741

The fair value of the conversion option was determined using
binomial option pricing model, and the inputs into the model

AR R 2 A ER A E
EERAEE ZEARBREERZ

at the relevant dates were as follows: BWABERIT:
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
Conversion price HimRE HK$1.15 HK$1.15
Share price & B HK$1.01 HK$1.04
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18 40.67% 46.21%
Remaining life T #4 7] 55 FA F A 0.98 year & 0.98 yearF
Risk-free rate i a1 By ) =K 1.06% 0.85%
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. IR A&
Number of
shares Amount
RAEE 28
Notes '000 HK$'000 RMB'000
M & i TEx AR%Tn
Issued and fully paid: BRTREHHR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01leach & R%0.01E T 2 L@ %
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R~E—A—H 1,679,560 16,796 13,653
Issue of ordinary shares upon — RA{T{EERERET 2 TER
exercise of share options 37 12,000 120 104

At 31 December 2016 and at R ZZE—RFE+-_A=+—HK
1 January 2017 “E—+%F—H—H 1,691,560 16,916 13,757

Issue of ordinary shares upon ~ RTEBRERZET EBR

exercise of share options 37 6,250 62 55
Issue and allotment of placing 1Tk EEERH (F )

shares (Note) 60,000 600 519
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=t—H 1,757,810 17,578 14,331
Note: H 2 -
Pursuant to a placing agreement entered by the Company with a BIBEARNTHE-—ERERBER_T—tF+
placing agent on 21 November 2017 in relation to the placing of —AZ+— AR ARAR AERI1.00E TTHE
60,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$1.00 per share 1% B2 % 60,000,000 0% A% 1 i &1 37 &9 B & 13 3%
(the “Placing”), the Placing was completed on 14 December 2017 and (BREWwE]) BEER_Z—+tF+=A
60,000,000 shares were issued and allotted to six placees, raising +POASER - #£E7760,000,000 8% f% 17 & 15
proceeds, net of direct expenses, totalling approximately RMB50.62 HERER R EARA - FIERELEGIR
million (equivalent to HK$58.55 million). BEERIB)NAARKES2EETTES

M58.55EH & L) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36. RESERVES

Details of movements on the Group’s reserve are as set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(@)

Share premium of the Company represents the excess
of the proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued.

Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the
amounts of proceeds on issue of convertible bonds
relating to the equity component (i.e. option to convert
the debt into share capital).

Property revaluation reserve comprised the revaluation
surplus arising from the transfer of owner-occupied
properties to investment properties at the date of
change in use.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Articles of Association of the PRC
subsidiaries, it is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual net profits of the PRC subsidiaries, after
offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined
under the relevant PRC accounting standards, to
their respective statutory reserves before distributing
any net profit. When the balances of the statutory
reserves reach 50% of their respective registered
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between
the net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
restructuring exercise.

B RS SRR B &

36. & &

AREREEDHEBERR GO M S
BHF -

(@ ARFZBMEEIEMRER
BHRARREZETRMEE
Z Bk -

b) ABRBREFERFEEDERT
R Ely HE R AT A (E 5 2
P15 SRR (B8 & 75 8 R A AL AR
ZEBIE) -

© MEELRFEERXIEAY
XA EERMERERE
MEMELTNEGBAR ©

(o) RFEEEFBDERFIER P
[ Bt BB/ ) 0 4 Bk = A2 AR B AR
EoREBEHRERBETFEES

EJ”*MEHE&iF%E

%+ BB 0 K AT 7] 45 7 A 5

A EIR B A TiE%ﬂE’HO%

%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ ° fid A&

ERES %$ﬁﬁ Kﬁﬁ

ﬁ§$WW%'EHE*iW

BRTIARREIBERE °

NN

© EHEBKEMUBHEARZ
BEEFEEBREBESEHDHITIEF
RRBZARARBBEARNZEEZ
FZE% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 1 December 2011 for the purpose
of providing incentive or rewards to any employee of the
Company or any member of the Group, or any other eligible
persons (the “Eligible Persons”) for their contribution to the
Group. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the Company’s prospectus dated 29 December 2011.

Details of share options granted or
outstanding

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December

37. UM AEESRCAR
LE)

mE

RRRRZTE——F+A—BER#H
R E ((BRESTE ] UpR
RNEIHANEBERIKE AR ZEME
B EMEEBRAT(EERA
T B AREEFTEE BRI B ok 82
B - BREEIFBENAANLAT A
BRE——F T AT NHZHK

ﬁ*\:l °

g

e R AT 2 BB R

wa L
1A%
T

a8 M s AR 1T 6 A B AR A A AL
E-FT—+HF+-A=+—HIFE

2017 were as follows: ZEEREEHMT
2017 Price of
Number of share options shares
ZB-tF
BREHA RE
Balance Balance Exercise
as at Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled as at Date of Exercisable price
Name and category 1 January during during during during 31 December grant of periods of  per share
of participant 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017 share option share options option
R=B-t% RZ2-t%
-B-H rEE rEE KEE REE tZAZT-H BRE BRE BRE
SEAZRERAN &8 2EL Bk BA% BEH &8 RHAS RS BROKE
(Note 35) HKS
(Fi ££35) En
Director
gz
Mr. Pang 140,000,000 - - - — 140,000,000 21 January 2016 21 January 2016 0.852
TRk to 20 January 2021
ZE-nE-Azt-B ZE-RE-A=t-H
E-BR-¥-AZTH
Mr. Chang (resigned on 100,000,000 - - (100,000,000) - - 21 January 2016 21 January 2016 0.852
28 September 2017) to 20 January 2021
RRER-E—tF “E-AF-ACt-B ZE-RE-ACt-H
NAZTNRE) BZEC-F-f=t1H
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000 13 May 2016 13 May 2016 1.02
SESENLERARL to 12 May 2019
ZE-nE-Azt-B ZZ-RERAT=H
FE-NERATCA
Mr. Law Fei Shing (Mr. Law) 15,000,000 - - (15,000,000) - - 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1.03
BREAE(ELE] to 11 November 2017
“E-Rf+-B+Z8 ZE-RET-AtCR
EIE-tET-AT-H
Sub-total Vi 270,000,000 - — (115,000,000 - 155,000,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37.

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding

B RS SRR B &

LU fn B B E SR (AR
=)

Hjﬁ‘ﬁfc‘ufkﬁﬁz,ﬂﬁﬂﬁ

(Continued)
Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options LR B R ARTT A B AR RN L
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December ZE_FE—+HF+TA=1T—HILFE
2017 were as follows: (Continued) ZHBEREESHHOT: (&)
2017 Price of
Number of share options shares
“E-tF
BREYA RE
Balance Balance Exercise
as at Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled as at Date of Exercisable price
Name and category 1 January during during during during 31 December grant of periods of  per share
of participant 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017 share option share options option
RZZB-tE R-2-t%
-B-8 rEE KEE KEE REE t-A=t-A BRE BRiE BRE
SEAZEERAR b 13 BRH B BA% GRS &8 REAH ZORA SROEE
(Note 35) HKS
(Pi3+35) AT
Consultants 21,000,000 - - (21,000,000) - - 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2582
B to 24 June 2017
“E-RERBZtRER  ZZ-RERA-TERA
FIR-tERAZTEA
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) - - 25 June 2015 25 June 2016 2582
to 24 June 2017
ZE-R%~AZtER ZE-AEAA-TEA
FIR-tERAZTRA
2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2017 2582
to 24 June 2018
“E-RENBCHRER CE-HERACTER
223\~ AZTER
70,000,000 - = (70,000,000) - - 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1.03
to 11 November 2017
“F-R%t-F+-R  —E-REt+-AtzA
o e g
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 097
to 16 December 2018
“E-RET-AtER ZE-RET-At4R
ZE-\FTZA17A
Sub-total /& 98,000,000 - — (93,500,000 - 4500,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37.

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding

LU fn B B E SR (AR
=)

Hjﬁ‘ﬁfc‘ufkﬁﬁz,ﬂﬁﬂﬁ

(Continued)
Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options LR B R ARTT A B AR RN L
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December ZEFE—+HF+A=1T—HILFE
2017 were as follows: (Continued) ZHBEREESHHOT: (&)
2017 Price of
Number of share options shares
“E-tF
BREYA RE
Balance Balance Exercise
as at Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled as at Date of Exercisable price
Name and category 1 January during during during during 31 December grant of periods of  per share
of participant 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017 share option share options option
RZZB-tE R-2-t%
-B-8 rEE KEE KEE REE t-A=t-A BRE BRiE BRE
SRAZHERAT b 13 BRH B BA% GRS &8 REAH ZORA SROEE
(Note 35) HKS$
(Pi3+35) AT
Employees 37,070,000 - - (37,070,000) - - 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2.582
k& to 24 June 2017
ZE-R%~A-tER ZE-AE~A-tEA
BIE-+FAAZTRA
51,000,000 - (6,250,000)  (44,750,000) - - 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1.03
11 November 2017
“5-7%t+-F+-R —F-R%t+-AtzA
EIE-tET-AT-H
100,000 - - (100,000) - - 17 December 2015 17 December 2016 0.97
to 16 December 2017
“E-RE+ZAtHR  ZE-AETZATER
EIE-rETZATAR
Sub-total /& 88,170,000 - (6250000)  (81,920,000) - -
Total & 456,170,000 - (6,250,000)  (290,420,000) - 159,500,000
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37.

(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR B &

Details of share options granted or outstanding

(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December

L

N
=

i

n

H
18 (4

B M
o

bl

ﬁ M,
B)w)

o RATE 2 B

E)

it

2 AR

)

Hat 815 W 8 A 1T 60 A BE AR R AL
EZE-RE+-_A=t+—RHILEE

2016 were as follows: ZEBRESHIMT
2016 Price of
Number of share options shares
ZEB-RE
BREYA RE
Balance Balance Exercise
as at Granted Exercise  Lapsed Cancelled as at Date of Exercisable price
Name and category 1 January during during during during 31 December grant of periods of  per share
of participant 2016 the year the year  the year  the year 2016 share option share options option
RoZ-RE RZB-RFE
-B-8 rEE REE  KEE KEE tZB=t-H BRE BRiE BRE
SEAZEERAR &8 BRH B BA¥W  EH# &8 REAH ZORA SROEE
(Note 35) HKS
(Rit5r3s) AT
Director
gz
Mr. Pang — 150,000,000  (10,000,000) - - 140,000,000 21 January 2016 21 January 2016 0.852
YhE (Note i) to 20 January 2021
(Fi3H) “F-RE-f-t-B -E-RE-f-t-H
2-E--F-A=1H
Mr. Chang (resigned on — 100,000,000 - - — 100,000,000 21 January 2016 21 January 2016 0.852
28 September 2017) (Note i) to 20 January 2021
FEE(RZZ—tE
MEZHNBEE
(B 350) ZE-xE-A=t-B ZE-~E-A=t-H
E-Z--A-A-1A
Dato’ Sri Hah Tiing Siu — 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 13 May 2016 13 May 2016 1.02
SRSENRERALL (Note il to 12 May 2019
(i3 “E-RERATZA ZE-A€RATZA
EZE-NFRATCA
Mr. Law 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1.03
i to 11 November 2017
“5-7%t+-F+-R —Z-Rn%t+-AtzA
FIE—tFT-AT-H
Sub-total )\ 15,000,000 265,000,000  (10,000,000) - - 270,000,000
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B RS AR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. L

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding

(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December

2016 were as follows: (Continued)

N

e

i

n

e
(-

%

7

WO H
W

bl

)%

E)

it

ZHERZBNT : ()

gmgﬁﬁ?\k(uﬂﬁ

&)

o RATE 2B R

Hat 815 W 8 A 1T 60 A BE AR R L
EE-RE+-_A=+—RHILEE

2016 Price of
Number of share options shares
o
BREYA RE
Balance Balance Exercise
asat Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled as at Date of Exercisable price
Name and category 1 January during during during during 31 December grant of periods of  per share
of participant 2016  the year the year the year  the year 2016 share option share options option
RoB2-RE RZB-RFE
-B-8  AEE  AEE REE  REE tA=t-A BRE BRiE BRE
SEAZEERAR &% B2RY  BAE BAM  BHE#H &R REAH 2OEH BROEE
(Note 35) HKS
(Ritr30) R
Consultants 2,000,000 - = (2,000,000) - - 21 May 2013 1 May 2015 119
B to 30 April 2016
“Z-ZFRA-1-H “Z-RFRR-RHE
ZE-75mA=1A
5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - - 20 November 2013 1 November 2015 1.63
to 31 October 2016
“Z-F+-f-tE8 -E-nf+-fA-BE
ZE-R"ETA=t-H
21,000,000 - - - - 21,000,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2.582
to 24 June 2017
ZZ-7%~A-tRA ZE-R%F~A-tRAZ
ZZ-tE/AZTHA
2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2016 2.582
to 24 June 2017
“Z-REXBZtRER ZE-AERA-THAER
ZE-tEXAZTEA
2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2017 2.582
to 24 June 2018
“E-REARZtREA ZE-tERACZTRRZE
ZE-\ERAZTEA
70,000,000 - - - - 70,000,000 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1.03
to 11 November 2017
“F-7%t+-B+-R —F-1ft+-AtzAZE
ZE-tE+-At-A
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 0.97
to 16 December 2018
ZE-R%ftZAttR ZE-Rft-AttRZ
ZZ-\E+ZAtRE
Sub-total /& 105,000,000 - - (7,000,000 - 98,000,000
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37.

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding
(Continued)

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme for the year ended 31 December
2016 were as follows: (Continued)

B

e

i

n

e
(-

%

7

PN
[
¥

o

bl

Hat 815 W 8 A 1T 60 A BE AR R AL
EZE-RE+-_A=t+—RHILEE

&)

E)

it

o RATE 2 B
)

ZHERZBNT : ()

T AEEESREAR
)

2016 Price of
Number of share options shares
ZE-RE
BREHE RE
Balance Balance Exercise
asat  Granted Exercise  Lapsed Cancelled as at Date of Exercisable price
Name and category 1 January during during during during 31 December grant of periods of  per share
of participant 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016 share option share options option
RZB-RE RZB-xE
-B-8  AEE rEE  AFE  AFE tZAZT-H BRE BRE BRE
SEAZEERAR 2&%  BEE B BA¥W  EH# &t REAH 2OEH SROEE
(Note 35) HKS
(Fitr3s) BT
Employees 18,500,000 - — (18,500,000 - - 20 November 2013 1 November 2015 1.63
3| to 31 October 2016
SF-IEt-AztR ZF-EET-A-RE
I
37,070,000 - - - - 37,070,000 25 June 2015 25 June 2015 2.582
to 24 June 2017
“E-REXA-tRB ZE-REE5AC-tERE
ZE-tEXAZTEA
150,000 - - (150,000) - - 25 June 2015 25 June 2016 2.582
to 24 June 2017
“Z-REXRZ+ER ZE-AEAAZTRAZE
ZE-tERAZTER
150,000 - - (150,000 - - 25 June 2015 25 June 2017 2.582
to 24 June 2018
ZE-TEXBZTRA ZE-+EXA-TEAZE
ZE-\ERAZTHA
53,000,000 = (2,000,000 - - 51,000,000 12 November 2015 12 November 2015 1,03
to 11 November 2017
“E-R%E+-F+=B —E-REt+-At+-BZE
“E-tEt-At-8
200,000 - - (200,000) - - 17 December 2015 17 December 2015 0.97
to 16 December 2016
“E-RETCATER ZE-RET-ATAR
E-E-RETZATAA
200,000 - = (100,000) - 100,000 17 December 2015 17 December 2016 0.97
to 16 December 2017
ZE-REtZAtER ZE-AETZAtEA
BEIE-LEFZATAA
Sub-total /)\&F 109,270,000 - (2,000,000) (19,100,000) - 88,170,000
Total A3 229,270,000 265,000,000 (12,000,000 (26,100,000) - 456,170,000
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B RS AR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. l«lﬂifﬁ%gﬁﬁ?\i(b}\ﬂﬁ

(Continued)

The annualised volatility used in the valuation model of
the share options granted, as set out below, is based on
the historical volatility of the Company’s share price and
by reference to other similar industry as listed in the PRC,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted based on management’s
best estimate. The fair values for all share options were
determined by LCH, an independent valuer.

Notes:

(i) On 21 January 2016, the Company granted 250,000,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$0.852 per share of the
Company to the Eligible Persons. The remaining 140,000,000
share options are exercisable from 21 January 2016 to
20 January 2021 without vesting conditions. Equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately RMB61,222,000 has
been charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2016. The fair value for these share options was determined with
certain key inputs as described below:

Grant date BB
Option pricing model used FrAERETEERR

Weighted average exercise price NI F 717 (&

Annualised volatility F[Z O g R

Risk-free interest rate #2532

Total indicated option value (HK$) BERREREIZAEEGE T)
Expected life of the option A8 I #E B0 78 HA 45 R

REH)

T XAt B 5% B A 2 (B E R P
A2 S AR T AR R BB 2 R
SEMIEARELE - WS EHE EHEM
FIRTTE - WIRRFAE R AR KK IE
ZERMBEREBMAE - EAFAAE
HEHOREEBREM TIAH
o 2uEREZAHEHRBYGE
Bb A SR 1T REE ©

(%)

i :

() RZZE—ARF—AZ+—H  ARAEM
A &% AL H250,000,00017 8 i%
- TEERERRME2E T -
H #2140,000,0007 B izt AJ A —F —
NEFE—RZ+—HBEZZT=-—%—A
ZHHERETE B EBBEG
ARG 1D B 2 N R CARALEZE) A
R#61,222,000tEREBE=-ZT— X
F+- A=+ BHLEFEZEDZHX
B o ZEHEBREZRNFETYIZ T
MzEBEFTEEHABIEET:

21 January 2016
—E-RF-RZ+—H
Binomial option pricing model
IR EEER
HK$0.852
0.852/% 7T
69%

1.56%
71,400,000
5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i) On 13 May 2016, the Company granted 15,000,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$1.02 per share of the
Company to the Eligible Persons. The 15,000,000 share options
are exercisable from 13 May 2016 to 12 May 2019 without
vesting conditions. Equity-settled share-based payment of
approximately RMB4,347,000 has been charged to profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. The fair value for
these share options was determined with certain key inputs as
described below:

Grant date # i B B
FrAEREEERR

Option pricing model used

Weighted average exercise price I F 17 &

Annualised volatility F 2R g R
Risk-free interest rate 2 3 b FI &

Total indicated option value (HK$) BAxiE+EZ A EE (B T)
Expected life of the option A I fE B 78 HA 45 R

B RS SRR B &

37. Liﬂgﬁ%gﬁﬁfk(wﬁ

REH)

(%)

e ()

(i

RZE—RFERA+=8 AQ7A
M & & A L #% 115,000,000 &
Mt (TEERASRIE T -
15,000,000 BRI =T — N F
AAT=HRE=ZZ—hFAA+=H
HIRITE B EBBIEME - UR
MAEENRUUARALEE) AR
4,347,000t EREE T —RF+=
A=+—BRLFEZEBZTRIH - %
EEREZ A TFEDNE T ZE
FTEEHABEET:

13 May 2016
—E-R"FRA+=H

Binomial option pricing model

ZIEAEEERE
HK$1.02
1.02/8 7T

64%
0.66%
5,070,000
3 years®F

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 % @
[ ]



. ’
4' /
¥

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii) On 25 June 2015, the Company granted 82,300,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$2.582 per share of the
Company to the Eligible Persons. On 14 September 2015,
18,930,000 share options out of 82,300,000 were cancelled as
the total number of share options granted would be in aggregate
exceed 10% mandate limit of the shares in issue of the Company.
The remaining 2,500,000 vested share options as at year end are
exercisable from 25 June 2017 to 24 June 2018. Equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately RMB1,590,000 has been
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The fair value for these share options was determined with
certain key inputs as described below:

37. Liﬂgﬁ%gﬁﬁfk(wﬁ

REH)

(%)

e ()

(i)

Tranche 1

F—#t

RZZE—RFNAZ+HA  AA7A
& &% A T H82,300,00017 i %
- ITEEABR2582F L c K=
T—REANA+TEE » 82,300,0000%
AR #918,930,00017 8 AR 7 187 51 85 -
BHOBEREASAXBBAERAR
BEITIRMMI0% EERE - HEF
K H #2,500,0000% 7] ¥ & &% A% 4 7]
RZE—tFANAZ+HRAE=Z—
NERNAZTOBEEBTE - KRG
ABEEFRTUABRALEE HARE
1,590,000 LEREBEZZT— R F+=
A=+ —RLFEZBHERIH - %
LHEBREZANFER Tl ZE
FEEHABEE T

Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4

gt E=H#t F it

Grant date BB
Option pricing model used FrAERETERER

Weighted average exercise price I F 117 (&

Annualised volatility FEREE

Risk-free interest rate 1 3, b 1| 2

Total indicated option value (HK$) BEREIEZHEEET)
Expected life of the option AR M TE BT H

25 June 2015
—E-RFANAZ+EA

Binomial option pricing model

56%
0.36%
1,940,000
2 years4E

“EHEEERL
HK$2.582
2.582/8 7T
56% 56% 59%
0.36% 0.36% 0.58%

41,040,000 1,740,000 2,280,000
2 years® 2 years® 3 years®F
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

On 17 December 2015, the Company granted 2,400,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$0.97 per share of the
Company to the Eligible Persons. The remaining 2,000,000
share options are exercisable from 17 December 2015 to
16 December 2018. Equity-settled share-based payment of
approximately RMB55,000 was charged to profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The fair value for these share
options was determined with certain key inputs as described
below:

B RS SRR B &

37. LR AR ENREAR
REH )

t: ()

vy ZZT—REF+ZA+tH ARAMH
BB ALET2,400,00010 B8 B4 -
TEEAETREMOITE L - Hif
2,000,0001p FE R ERT N —Z—AF+
—At+tHEZZE—N\F+=A+~
BHIRATEE AR B E &MU
IR 4 &) #9 A R 55,0000 B R
E_E-XNE+-_A=t—HILEE
ZEEPRHE ZEEREZATE
DETNFzETEEHASIEE

E

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
it EHt £=i#t

Grant date B =R -t

Option pricing model used

Weighted average exercise price EFHITEE
Annualised volatility FEEFEE

Risk-free interest rate 1 3 B ) 3
Total indicated option value (HK$)

Expected life of the option i e ke ) 78 HR 6 BR

P PR B i 1 T (B AR S

BhEEReEEaEcEr)

17 December 2015
—E-RF+=ZA++tH

Binomial option pricing model

“IHEREEERR
HK$0.97
0.97% 7T
65.21% 93.61% 71.74%
0.57% 0.10% 0.40%
624,000 61,000 72,000
3vyears® 1 yearF 2 yearsf
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B RS AR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(v) On 12 November 2015, the Company granted 138,000,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$1.03 per share of the
Company to the Eligible Persons. 22,000,000 share options
are exercisable from 12 November 2015 to 11 November 2017
upon completion of the capital injection into NCCE, completion
of NCCE’s relevant registration procedures with the local
administration authority and completion of the Group’s holding
of 52.63% equity interest of NCCE. The remaining 116,000,000
share options are exercisable from 12 November 2015 to
11 November 2017 without vesting conditions. Equity-settled
share-based payment of approximately RMB448,000 (2016:
RMB702,000) has been charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The fair value for these share options
was determined with certain key inputs as described below:

37. UBOBEENSREAR
REE ) w

e ()

vy RZZE—RAF+—A+=H £A2Q7A
M & &% A L # 11138,000,00015 i
B TEEAEERANEKK1.03
BIL o RZTE—AF+—A+=HZE
—E—+tF+—A+—HIEHHE -
22,000,00017 i A% # ] /R SEAK R 3R BB
RGIEEBRITE - A E 77 B
B EBERXSMEREMETF R
TERAEEBTBRERZSF52.63%
B o E£2116,000,00010 B R HERT 1A =
T—FHF+—A+-HE_ZT—+F
+—A+—BHHETE BYERB
I - AR BEEM R AR AL
H)HAREEA448,0007 (ZZ—NF ¢
ARM702,000) EREE=ZZT—+
F+ZA=Z+HALEFEZBZEFX
o RSB ZAFAETIR T
MZzETEZMARBEET

o

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4

it ot B ki

Grant date BB
Option pricing model used FrAERETEERR

Weighted average exercise price NI F 1517 &

Annualised volatility F[Z O g R

Risk-free interest rate 2 3 B ) 2

Total indicated option value (HK$) BB EREIZAEEGE T)
Expected life of the option A5 I 1 &) 78 HA 45 R

12 November 2015
—Z-—hE+—-A+=H
Binomial option pricing model
IR EEER
HK$1.03
1.037 7T
71.57%
0.41%
21,394,000 5,718,000 1,640,000 14,823,000
2 years® 1.8 years®F 1.8 years® 2 years®F
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B RS SRR B &

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. LXH%@%E%’H?J’\(U\HQ

(Continued) KEH )
Notes: (Continued) sk (88)
(viy  Equity-settled share-based payment expenses comprise: vi) URNDAEENFUARKESR) ZH
X EIE
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFIT
Equity-settled schemes to employees [A] {2 B 32 1 2 LA B HE 45 E 51 &) - 66,000
Equity-settled schemes to eligble MAEEBRESZUIIZAERAL
persons other than employees and RHUARELEHETE
directors 448 2,136
448 68,136
(vi)  Share options outstanding and weighted average exercise prices (Vi)  FRBRITE Z BIRAE RN TH1T
during the year are as follows: FEEZ20T:
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—XEF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
in & F 15 hniE T
#E TEE # A TEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BHERITE 456,170,000 0.88 | 229,270,000 116
Granted during the year REEBEEE - — | 265,000,000 0.86
Exercised during the year REFEBITHE (6,250,000) 1.03 (12,000,000) 0.88
Lapsed during the year AEFD KR (290,420,000) 1.29 | (26,100,000) 1.60
Outstanding at 31 December M+Z=A=+—H#E*
171 159,500,000 0.90 456,170,000 0.88
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B RS AR B &

37.

38.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(viij  (Continued)
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of
options exercised during the year was HK$0.9 (2016: HK$1.19).

Out of the total number of share options outstanding as at
31 December 2017, 159,500,000 (2016: 453,670,000) had been
vested and were exercisable at the end of the year.

(viii)  The exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year
ranged between HK$0.852 and HK$2.582 (2016: HK$0.852 and
HK$2.582) and their weighted average remaining contractual life

was 34 months (2016: 31 months).

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 30 December 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of APCM Group pursuant to debt
conversion of USD2,520,000 (equivalent to RMB16,473,000).
APCM Group is principally engaged in the provision of
electronic market platform for trading commodities including
non-ferrous metal, ferrous metal, agricultural products,
energy products, chemical materials, machineries and
equipment.

37.

38.

ABRPBREENTRAR

REEE) )
MisE: (&)
(vii) (&)

FRITEBBREE B2 NEFHRE
BB T (ZE—RF 1198 7L) ©

Mo —+F+-A=+—HBHKTT
i 7 B IR 48 2+ 159,500,00017
(ZZ—7X 4 1 453,670,0001)) & A% 42
EREBIAIRERITE -

RER - MRITEZEBRETEER
0.852/8 T E 2.582/8 70 (Z T — /N4
0.8528 L £2.582/ L) * MER .2 N
EFHANFHAMEA(ZT—X
F:31 @A)

Wy 58 B B 2

RZEBE—+EFE+-A=+80 K"&EF
RIE 2,520,000 ETL(HEERARE
16,473,00070) 2 B EH 2 B W
APCM Group ) 2 8 1T 2 < APCM
GroupE ZRBEEFMHF A UEST

(vill)

BmEs ZSEmBREAesE -
RETE REEM BREM 1L

S - AR -
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B RS SRR B &

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued) 38. Uk B Bt BB A B )

BRzZEEFERKBERAMZA

The fair values of net assets acquired at the date of

completion of the acquisition are as follows: FEMAT:
RMB’000
AR®EF T
Net assets acquired BECEEFHE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) M - B & (M EE15) 2,896
Deferred tax assets (Note 40) i E B 18 & 2= (B 7F40) 40
Other receivables H b fE W R 1E 8,613
Prepayments and deposits ENRIERES 142
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEEHR 4,149
Accruals and other payables FEFTE R R EMENRIE (551)
Business tax and other tax payables EEN R H M EMNBIE (69)
Finance lease liabilities MmEHERE (711)
Net assets attributable to the Group rEBEGLHEEFE 14,509
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHBEL ZHE:
Consideration transferred Frég &R E 16,473
Less: Net assets acquired WBECEEFE (14,509
Goodwill kS 1,964
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Net cash inflow on acquisition KWENRESERAFE
Cash consideration payment (Note) e REN KT -
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired  Ji:BEZHRS MRS SEHEIAER (4,149)
Net cash inflow on acquisition WHEEA 2R e RAFE (4,149
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B RS AR B &

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Note: As detailed in Note 20, the balance as at 31 December 2016
represented amounts prepaid for the acquisition of APCM Group.

In 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of APCM
Group and thus the prepayment was treated as the consideration
paid for the acquisition.

Since its acquisition, APCM Group did not contribute
any revenue and net loss to the Group for the period
from 30 December 2017 to 31 December 2017. Had the
acquisition taken place on 1 January 2017, contribution
of revenue and the net loss before income tax expense
of the APCM Group to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 would have been zero balances. This pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor intended
to be a projection of future results.

38. WEEMT B B &)

BIaE: fBT sE20F &l - R —RF+=
A=T—B&## R REFKEAPCM
Group R ZFTE B & & ©

MZZT—+F - KN&EEWKEAPCM
Group100% &t + E LTS RIBE AR
BREISHORE -

BHUE LA - APCM GroupR — =&
—tF+A=tTHE=-ZT—LF+
AT —BRUYERAEEETR TR
WARFEE BRaHBEER=Z
—+%—H—H ' APCM Group& &
—ET—+F+-_A=+—HLEFEZ
Woes REBRFTIS B ANF BB A1 & 4
BR o ILEEERHEMEEA - T TAREK
AHWBEBR-_ZT—+F—F—HTKX
AEEEBRIUER 2K RLE:
MR MIEEARRER 2TEA -
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into agreement with It REZEHE XLERBR A
Al and BMNEEHEEZREABR AT, independent third
parties, to dispose of 60% equity interest in K/ BEZIRE R
AR BRIEARAE], which is engaged in provision of online
trading platform services in the PRC, at zero consideration.
The disposal was completed on 10 May 2017 and the Group
recognised a gain on disposal of subsidiary of approximately
RMB197,000.

The fair values of net liabilities at the date of completion of
the disposal are as follows:

B RS SRR B &

39. HEKHEB QT

BE_ZT—tFt-_A=t—HILF
B AEEEIERZESELER
BERAGLRENEEXREEXRER
BRAR (G RBILE=T7)RI L -
NEREHERKEBEREREETAX
SRBAER AR (—ERHBERE S
FESFEREHIRT])60% 2 °
ZHERER-_ZT—LtFRAATHE
B ANEE B BB AR R A
R #197,0007T 2 # 5 ©

BEFERTNEERRZAFER
T

RMB’000

AR®EF T

Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ¥ % - B = K& 3% & (M 5T 15) 20
Intangible assets (Note 18) EmH A E (M E18) 16
Accounts receivable JE U BR K 2,104
Other receivables H b fE W 5K 18 659
Cash and cash equivalents ReHRSEBEIEE 116
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K H h fE < 5RIB (3,112)
(197)

Less: Fair value of consideration in cash & : (B2 AFEUAERE 275) —
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEH B AR WS (197)
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B RS AR B &

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (continued) 39 HEWEB 2R »
An analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMBAAMREMEREEREEE
respect of the disposal of subsidiary is as follows: BEEEFEIOMEOT:
RMB’000
AR®EF T
Cash consideration RERE -
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of i : D HER S KB L ZEIER (116)
Net cash outflow of cash and cash HEMBARMALINRE R
equivalents in respect of disposal of ReSEEEFHE
subsidiary (116)
After completion of the disposal, 2k /B EZKE EA X H R TREER  KEEEREFTARS
% AR AT became an associate of the Group with 24% REERATKBSAEENEE A
effective interests held by the Group. A WHAEEFBUNRE RS -
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B RS SRR B &

40. DEFERRED TAX 40. iE % B 18

TREIAF B RE S BTN

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes: EET IR AR
2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETF T
Deferred tax assets BEEHRIBEE 40 —
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE (227,083) (276,936)
(227,043) (276,936)
Movements of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AFEECHACELEREELEE, (8
during the year are as follows: BIZEBHWT:
Revaluation  Revaluation
Revaluation  Revaluation  of property, of properties
of intangible of investment  plant and held Deferred
assets  properties  equipment for sale  tax assets Total
EffNE EffRE  BERA
EffBVEE EMRENE HERRE  HENE gE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETRT ARET:R
At 1 January 2016 RZB-xE-A-H (36,643) (12,694) - - - (49,337)
Acquired through business BAXHAEE (W)
combinations (239,075) - 402) (33,143) - (272,620)
Credit/charge) to profit or loss for ~ RERRERTH /(1K)
the year 14,683 (3,207) 402 33,143 - 45,021
At 31 December 2016 and }?’\‘Z -~"E+ZF ‘i‘ A
1 January 2017 k=8-t&-A (261,035) (15,901) = = = (276,936)
Acquired through business BAXBAMES ()
combinations (Note 38) - - - - 40 40
Credit to profit or loss for the year ~ RERR B E X 8 45129 4724 - - - 49853
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZR=1-H (215,906) (1,177) = = 40 (227,04)
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B RS AR B &

41. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW N BERERZHE
STATEMENT
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ HREFRSEEEBEEMRTARIER
TR -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EF T
Cash available on demand REEZERHEZRE
Cash and cash equivalents — R2 KRR S EHEEHEE —
general accounts —MRER P 64,434 15,812
64,434 15,812
Significant non-cash BEAFEESRZWMT:
transactions are as
follows:
Financing activities & T E
Assets acquired under finance RIBERMEREMEZEE
leases 1,266 1,826
Lapse of share options i R HE R A 85,739 11,793
Prepayment for acquisition of U & APCM Group 2 T8 1
APCM Group RIE 16,473 -
103,478 13,619
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B RS SRR B &

41. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW N BERERZHFE @
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BEEBSABGEZHEREOT:
activities:
Finance
Other  Convertible lease Share Share
borrowings bonds liabilities option capital Share
(note 32) (note 34) (note 33) reserve (note 35) premium
BE
Hibfem  TRRER HEEE B&

(W3E32) (H&E34) (Wi33) BRERRE (H&£35) Bt E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETRT AR%TR

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t+t%—-A—-H 127,302 130,156 2,750 125,855 13,757 280,350
Changes from cash flows: Reng

Proceeds from new borrowings HERBRE 17,880 - - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEER (39,767) - - - - -

Capital element of finance lease rentals BRI BEREZEATH

paid = = (1,348) = = =
Interest element of finance lease rentals B RERE 2 55

paid = - (275) - - -
Proceeds from exercise of share TEEREMGE

options = = = (1,591) 55 5,637
Proceeds from shares issued under R & EMETRN

share placing ME3E = = - - 519 50,096
Interest paid BFE (12,791) (10,292) (139) - - -

Total changes from financing cash BRERER 2HEE

flows: (34,678) (10,292) (1,762) (1,501) 574 55,733
Changes from investing cash flows RERER = = M - - -
Exchange adjustments: AR (857) (9,21) - - - -
Non-cash transactions: *¥ReR5:

Assets acquired under finance leases REBEHERGZEE = = 1,266 - - -
Lapse of share options BREXK = = = (85,739) - -
Other changes: Hit25:

Interest expenses HERAX 29,020 14,254 139 - - -
Equity-share share-based payment URHBEENKAZ

expenses (AR LEE) = = = 448 - -
Gain on extension of convertible bonds I £ 7] 4 ik (& % 2 W % = (11,655) = = = =
Total other changes Hw2eag 28,163 (6,672) 2,116 (85,291) = =
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-+&+-A=1+-H 120,787 113,192 3,104 38,973 14,331 336,083
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42. COMMITMENTS 42, EE
(a) KEHEFRE

KEHE —HE

(@) Operating lease commitments
Operating leases — lessee

R+—RA=+—H " REXEE
EBVE N2 HEEE
HERBFZRRREEMNE

Future minimum rental payables under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of buildings
with independent third parties as at 31 December are

as follows: ST
2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Within one year —FK 7,090 7,156
Within two to five years “ERFNR 13,403 18,637
Later than five years HFEU E - 2,279
20,493 28,072

The Group leases certain properties under operating AEERBEKLHEEERET
leases. These leases run for an initial period of one MEk - -HENTRE—E=F
to three years (2016: one to nine years), with options (ZE-—RF:—ENF) A&
e NNl R N R iz)
XXHiAtE 2 BEER - ¥
BEHEHEREEMIAESE -

to renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at
days as mutually agreed between the Group and the
respective landlords. None of these leases includes any
contingent rentals.
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42. COMMITMENTS (continuea) 42. EIE =)
(a) Operating lease commitments (continueq) (a) KEHEAE®
Operating leases — lessor KEFE —HBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R|ERR AEEHEBARE
contracted with tenants for the following future EA TR RARMEENR K

minimum lease payments:

2017 2016
—e—+t5| =z-x%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Within one year —F A 1,316 5
Within two to five years ZERAFA 2,095 -
3,411 5
The Group has properties leased to tenants for rental. AEBEHALETHRNEE
The lease terms and rentals are fixed at one to three M- -HEERESER—E=
years (2016: less than one year). F(ZE-—RF IR —F)o
(b) Capital commitments () EAREAE
The Group had the following capital commitments as R—E—+tF+-_A=+—8"
at 31 December 2017 REBHATEREALRE:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARMETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: 2 &I 4 - 1B KRB
Land and buildings — related +tiRIEF — BFES

parties (Note 19) (FF5E19) - 1,760

Capital injection for acquisiton — FLU B —fEH L AREE
of associate (Note) (B 5E) 3,500 3,500
Intangible assets BEEE 940 250
4,440 5,510
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42. COMMITMENTS (continueq)
(b) Capital commitments continueq)

Note: On 7 July 2015,
agreement, pursuant to which the Group will inject
capital of RMB3,500,000 in it RAK& TR AR AR
(“7R& FT”) for acquiring 35% equity interests. Upon
completion, K< fT will become an associate of the
Group. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, no payment was made by the Group.

43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Balances and transactions
Other than the related party balances and transactions

disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material

the Group entered into an

42. RIE#)

(b) EAXREIE 2

GES

RZE—HF+EAERA K
SEEI L —DHE - BIEA
ESE RSB N S5
BRAT(AREEDEEA
R #3,500,0007T © W E B
35% Mt - RTHK & - K&
FI R AAREEZEE R
Ale RZT—tEF+_A=
+—AER=ZTE—X"F+=A
=+—H XEBWRZN
A FKIE ©

43. BE RIS
(a) E8rRRSF

BN AT RREME D P
BEZBETEHREZHI
REBRFABIATEKREE

transactions with related parties during the year: ARG :
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Rental expenses paid to related B RE S E M
parties (Note i) = 69
Interest expenses paid to a ENEESFEREZ
related party (Note ii) 16,598 18,351
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continueq)

@)

(b)

Balances and transactions (continued)
Notes:

(i) The Group entered into one year lease in respect of
certain leasehold properties from related parties. With
reference to the terms negotiated between the related
parties, the Group paid rental expenses for office
premises to Ms. Ma Lee Kwan, mother of Mr. Chang,
and certain related companies, of which the Company’s
shareholders are also the major shareholders of these
related companies.

(i) As disclosed in Note 32(g), Mr. Law Fei Shing, a director
of the Company, is the director and shareholder of Excel
Precise International Limited.

(ifi) As disclosed in Note 32, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang,
a director and a related party of the Company, have
provided personal guarantee to the Company for obtaining
other borrowings.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of directors who are also identified
as members of key management of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are set
out in Note 11(a).

B RS SRR B &

3. BELTHRE =
@ EREXRF @)
B 5 -

() AEERBESTETHEDE
RIN—FZHE - K2RERE
EITRER MR N E L
REPERASMELL(RE
EZBR) RETHERRXN
HeMX ARAZBRERTR
ZEMEBERRZEZHR -

(ii) AN K FE32(g) Fram it - AEE
EEEEBRLEBBAEERA
RABIZEEFRBE -

(i) BAAMIES2FT Rl - A RRIE
ETRERREERISEM
BERAQBIRELAER -

) TEEBAEZFHMH

EEWRAREERFTEEEREN
NEFT-A=+—RALFEZH
Bl 4 51 B S Bl 35 11(a)
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. €@ T E(RER)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RZE—+FRZFT—AF+ZA=
instruments as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as +—H  FERemITAEZREEN
follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

Financial assets cREE
Loans and receivables & FE R =X
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 1,600
Accounts receivable JrE I BR 3R 18,127 24,790
Other receivables and deposits EmERZERENEZS 144,349 134,820
Amounts due from related parties & Ug 78 i3 75 218 29,013 105,535
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITHER 33,853 55,120
Restricted bank deposits SRRFIERITIER 11,750 19,197
Cash and cash equivalents — HekHeEEEE- XX

held on behalf of customers FEA 10,739 153,486
Cash and cash equivalents — ReEBREEBEEE— —KE

general accounts I= 64,434 15,812

312,265 510,360

Fair value through profit or BAFEFABER

loss
Derivative financial assets TESmEE 10,290 14,741
Financial liabilities REBHENXIIER2EREE
Financial liabilities at PE ot AR R I H At FE {3 FK 1B

amortised costs
Accounts and other payables JE <1 BR 3R K2 HLAth FE < 3R IB 143,422 302,380
Other borrowings EmEE 120,787 127,302
Finance lease liabilities mELREEE 3,104 2,750
Convertible bonds Al IR fE 5 113,192 130,156

380,505 562,588
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

financial
other

The Group’s principal instruments comprise
accounts receivable, receivables and deposits,
derivative financial assets, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents — held on behalf of customers, cash and
cash equivalents — general accounts, accounts and other
payables, other borrowings, finance lease liabilities and
convertible bonds. These financial instruments mainly arise
from its operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximate to their fair values as at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value estimates are made at a specific
point in time and are based on relevant market information
about the financial instruments.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept
to a minimum level, the Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of the directors of the Company
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and these are summarised below.

45.
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B RS AR B &

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
or future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments
will result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market
interest rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest
bearing bank balances and other borrowings with fixed
interest rates which are all short-term in nature. The Group
currently has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate but may enter into interest rate
hedging instruments in the future to hedge any significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates in PRC. The functional currency of the Group is
mainly RMB with certain of their business transactions (e.g.
sales and purchases) being settled in other currencies. The
Group is exposed to currency risk arising from fluctuations
on foreign currencies, primarily HK$, against the functional
currency of the Group.

5. EMREEEE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. i B R EE B E R K

AND POLICIES (continued) Ko
Foreign currency risk (continvea) ShEE R B )
Foreign currency risk exposure ShEE R B
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEFEZINEEemABERRER
denominated financial liabilities at the reporting dates are as BZEREEBERT:
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tE NS
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Current and non-current REBRERBERE
liabilities
Other borrowings

LA &5 109,664 127,302

\|
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B RS AR B &

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (continuea)
Foreign currency risk exposure (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
other borrowings in regards to a 1% appreciation/
(depreciation) in the Group’s functional currency against
HK$. The rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates. There is no impact on other
components of combined equity in response to the general
fluctuation in the following foreign currency rates.

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting period has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning of
the financial periods with all other variables held constant
throughout the period.

45. BB EREEERERK

R
I & 3 B 42
s LB ()

TREIAEEEMIEEH AEED
RREEBEBELAE,(ZE) 1%
RE - W IMEREEABAR RS
SMNERBR T E M2 BURE LR - WK
REEBHEXRTEES 2 &KER
e BMEXEENPDESHFER
ZHMHB W EZE -

A g [ 0 4R 45 18 B9 2 1 I L W 0
5 mﬁﬁﬂme@WMﬁ%ﬁm
BAREHLED  MAALBEE
F%ﬁﬂ%h?mo

For the year ended
31 December 2017
Bz-%-t%
TZA=t-BLEFE
Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after

in foreign tax and
exchange retained
rates earnings
HEHE

ExtH BRIRRE
/(TH) BRz¥g

For the year ended
31 December 2016
HE-_Z—~F

TZA=T—BILEE
Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and
exchange retained
rates eamings
BB

ExER  ENRRE
/(TH) BIzZPE

HK$ HKS

AR TR ARETTL

HK$ BT 1% (1,097) 1% (1,273)
HK$ BT (1%) 1,097 (1%) 1,273
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
obtain financial guarantee from the Group are subject
to management review. The Group entered into financial
guarantee contracts in which it has guaranteed the bank the
repayment of the loan by customers of the Group. The Group
has the obligation to compensate the bank for the loss it
would suffer in the event of default by the customers. The
Group’s maximum exposure under the financial guarantee
contracts is disclosed in “liquidity risk” below. To mitigate
such risk, the Group requests its customers to provide
collaterals as appropriate. In the event of default or failure to
repay any outstanding guarantee amounts by the customers,
the Group will proceed with the sale of collaterals. In order
to maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the Group’s
average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to ensure
the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount. As at
31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s exposures under
unexpired financial guarantee contracts were secured by the
pledged assets of the customers as follows:

45,

B RS SRR B &

BHREAREERRRK

(%)
FEEE

AEBZBRELAERANEEE
BREERZEFHOGHREERESR
8 NREBEERIERMEEREN - &
AREEREEFPARTEEZE
FIEHER - AKREREETHERTF X
BEZHBERTER ZBX - A%H
MEERAGHETZHRRNAREE
RIXIRBE SRR ] - HREEKZE
@ AREZREPRERMES KM
fn o MEP R A REEETMRE
NERE  AKE/EEEAR -7
HRIEREERBKE  NEEZF
BERIEHELRERFNE0%AT
ARER ARE R ERRE 2 AT EE © R
“EEERTFE-RET A=
—B AEERIMBELEFRAOH
EPUATZEEREEFER:

2017 2016

—E—+tE NS

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®ET T

Property, plant and equipment M - WEKEE 679,153 1,398,773
Inventories FE 824,519 1,069,319
Accounts receivable JrE I BR 3R 30,638 254,263
Bank deposits (Note 28) $R171F (M 7 28) 9,750 19,197
1,544,060 2,741,552
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
Group holds collaterals to cover its risks associated with
accounts receivable. Accounts receivable arising from the
financial guarantee contracts were secured by certain assets
of the customers. The fair value of the pledged assets, which
are also pledged to secure the Group’s exposure under
unexpired financial guarantee contracts as mentioned above,
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

45. BB EREEERERK

()
EERM®

EWERAERTHBER  MASK
EERERITTEKN - AEBIFE
ERR AN BEARBRER 2 AR -
BEERRENELERBERUARRZ
ETEEERE HRZT—+FR=
T—-XRNE+-A=+—H BERE
ERARRAEERIBERERLRSE
Az B kiR R (0 £ X)) 2
NEEWAT:

2017 2016

—E—+F ZET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment Y BENMEE 515,731 708,013
Inventories rE 577,535 572,699
Accounts receivable JFE U BR 3R 29,085 100,946
Bank deposits (Note 28) 1717 R (K 5E28) 3,700 2,700
1,126,051 1,384,358

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise of other receivables and deposits, amounts
due from related parties, pledged bank deposits, restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents — held on behalf
of customers and cash and cash equivalents — general
accounts, arises from potential default of the counter-party,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments. Credit risk in pledged and restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents is mitigated
as cash is deposited in the banks of high credit rating.

AEEHMbeREE(TZBEEM
FEMRIA MRS - RUBEET 508
BEEMBITER - XBRHVITFRL
AekReFEER — RREFPF
ENRBReRREeFEER — — K
RPIZEERBRIREH FIIAEE
MZBR  EEARBRESNZET
HzEmEE FAREDERRSE
B2 RT  CEMRZRBIRT
FREBRELRECEEREZEER
@ R MR e
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. i B R EE B E R K

AND POLICIES (continued) Ko
Liquidity risk RBEESRRE
Management of the Group monitors current and expected AEEEEEERBANATERREE
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group maintains ER BRAEEHFREE M
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements B UENEHRAEREERDESE
in the short and long term. 3K o
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based TR M A EBRIR S LRI R
on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: ZEMBEZIHBER:
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within One year Repayable
amount cash flows 1 year or above on demand
ENARERS

REE REAE R-%R -FfiL RERXRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  AREBTRT  AR®TR  ARET:

2017 “E-tf

Accounts and other payables  [EBR 70 K At BT 5008 143,422 143,422 143,422 - -

Other borrowings EfEE 120,787 138,854 45,722 67,930 25,202

Convertible bonds ThRES 113,192 134,519 134,519 - -

Finance lease liabilities BEHERE 3,104 3,459 1,476 1,983 -
380,505 420,254 325,139 69,913 25,202

Financial guarantees issued C&TREER

Maximum amount guaranteed EER&ATE 284,600 284,600 - - 284,600

2016 ZE-RE

Accounts and other payables ESBR F R E b B F B 302,380 302,380 302,380 - -

Other borrowings EEE 127,302 129,372 26,975 74,293 28,104

Convertible bonds ThRES 130,156 144,490 144,490 - -

Finance lease liabilties BEMERE 2,750 2,961 948 2,013 -
562,588 579,203 474793 76,306 28104

Financial guarantees issued C % TR EER

Maximum amount guaranteed E&R&EAZE 548,250 548,250 - - 548,250
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Fair values

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using information from
observable current market transactions, categorised into
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair Value Measurement.

45.

HEREEEERERK

(%)
AT

EREENGEEUBINKPRES
B REERE1R A FEFE ]
REZAFEERZEAFESE - &
FEERDBHERE A EFTEM
EEBERZEREGABHERE -

AEBEREEZAFEDIRER
REBRE - ENEARAAHEE
RIS RSN EMETHNRRRESR
DMERE D BERBEVEREER
F1RRIATFEFEIRAEHATES
MEB=1R -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 ot E= &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFRT ARETR
2017 —E—tE
Financial asset at fair value ERBRERAVEHER
through profit or loss CHEE
Derivative financial assets TESBEE - - 10,290 10,290
2016 —E-RE
Financial asset at fair value EREGRATEFER
through profit or loss tRMEE
Derivative financial assets TEEREE - - 14,744 14,744
During the year, there were no transfers between instruments RAFEE  F—RRE-RTEZH

in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

WHEEE  TEERARBELTE =
Ao REENBR 2N HEEERNR
EHERERRAFESFR2HNE
% o
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. i B EEEBER K
AND POLICIES (continued) K@)

NFEEE)

REZAFEZEREERETREA
BRENEANABERGAERY

Fair values (continuea)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input(s) to
the valuation of financial asset and financial liability measure

at Level 3: HEnR
Relationship of
unobservable
Valuation technique(s) Significant inputs to fair
Financial asset/liability Fair value and key input(s) unobservable inputs  value
FABRBAER
SREE/GE YR HEFERIERAEN EATUBEBAEN HAVENER

Financial assets at fair value Derivative financial

through profit or loss assets — company

The fair value of company  The fair value is based on  The higher the call
redemption options is call premium premium, the lower
FREREATEAZEL redemption options  calculated using the AFEDEAREEER  the far value
TREE on convertible Binomial Option Pricing g KERESS A
bonds Model TEWE
TheREE — A LABREERELATER
RkEHcAREE  BA-RHETEENHE
EER
Key input:
— Risk-free rate;
— Stock price;
— Credit spread;
— Volatility; and
— Dividend vyield.
FEHAEH:
- EERAE:
- RipER:
- FERE:
- RBE: R
- REREEX

5B E £ FH10% i H fib B 235 = &
B TESREAE(RAELEEE)
RZE—+tF+_A=+—8B2KnA
B #51% hn 49 A R #3,847,000L (=&
—NF 8 AR %6,443,0007T) © B

If the volatility is 10% higher while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of the derivative financial
assets (Company redemption options), would increase by
approximately RMB3,847,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: approximately RMB6,443,000). If the volatility is

10% lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the derivative financial assets
(Company redemption options), would decrease by
approximately RMB4,253,000 as at 31 December 2017
(2016: approximately RMB2,294,000).

B @R A 10% M B fth  H EES)
PTESMEE(AREREEE) N
T—+t&F+-_A=+—BZEEEH
AN RE4,253,00070 (ZF— X
F ) AR¥2,294,0007T) °
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts divided by total equity.

45. BB EREEERERK

(#)
N

AEBEAERZ T ZARA/RER
SEARNRFBEREELELEER
BEFRFEZEARLER  UXEREER
HRIIRSRREE -

REBERBEEIRE 2 &1 KR
BEZEARBHEEEEERNGEREL
MARE - BRFIAEERNERE -
REEAEEHERNTHRRZEKE
ARREDERKETHR - RNF
N AREEEAZBR BRI

AEEFERBELX(ANAGBRRR
R BB REREN -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (continuea)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s strategy
was to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level
in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies
adopted by the Group include, without limitation, reviewing
future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet debt
repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure
that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support

B RS SRR B &

45. BB EREEERERK

()
BEAXERE

REBRERR - AEE 2K HEFR
REZBELE  UXFHEERK - K
SERDNZIEZRBEBEEIRR
EHAKRBESREZRE ZMEIHE
BN RIFAIRRITREEAE
IR B R E R & MR E A& (1
F2) UERAEEHBESEKFZ
CRNCESEE 3

its business.
The gearing ratios are as follows: BELENT:
2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARMEF T
Other borrowings and total debt Hb{EE K BEFEAK 237,083 260,208
Equity attributable to the owner of ZANA &) A A FEAG # 25
the Company 426,615 571,721
Gearing ratio BERLE 0.56 0.46
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. &7 T Bf ¥ ik i &

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 |  RMB'000
=2 ARETT | AREFTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRERE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRARIEE 80,823 51,110
Current assets REBEE
Accounts and other receivables JE UK BR 3 N EoAth FE UK
B Q] 12,070 13,743
Amounts due from subsidiaries & BT B R B 5 423,582 423,053
Derivative financial assets MESMEE 10,290 14,741
Cash and cash equivalents HekAeEEER 101 6,580
446,043 458117
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and other payables F’?fﬁ AR B R B FE A
A 3,003 3,576
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT B /B8 1 B R IR 26,939 —
Other borrowings HEEE 17,864 26,857
Convertible bonds A RES 113,192 130,156
160,998 160,589
Net current assets REBEEFRE 285,045 297,528
Total assets less current HWEERRBAR
liabilities 365,868 348,638
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other borrowings HmEE 66,598 71,619
Net assets EEFH 299,270 277,019
EQUITY =
Share capital & 7 35 14,331 13,757
Reserves & 47 284,939 263,262
Total equity EEHAE 299,270 277,019
On behalf of the Board On behalf of the Board
REREES REXESFE
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon Mr. Chan Kim Leung
ENBEE FR&| R EE
Director Director
o BE
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B RS SRR B &

— = — I\ =
RESERVES COMPANY 47. # & PN/
Convertible
Contributed Share Share bonds
surplus premium Exchange option equity  Accumulated
(Note 36e) (Note 36a) reserve reserve reserve losses Total
B4R B EE TRRES
(M= 36e) (M= 36a) EfifiE BRERE BHffk 2B &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT  ARBTT ARETT AREBTT ARETR AREFT  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 WZE-7"5-F-8 51,110 268,357 494 72,469 33,154 (123,184) 302,400
Equity-settled share options granted RENRAEEORRE
(Note 37) (Msxa7) - - - 68,136 - - 68,136
Exercise of share option (Note 35) 17158 B AR 42 (11 3535) - 11,993 - (2,957) - - 9,036
Lapse of share option BERERK - - - (11,793) - 11,793 -
Transaction with owners BBEARS - 11,993 - 53,386 - 11,793 77172
Loss for the year AEERE - - - - - (124,687) (124,687)
Other comprehensive income for the year A4 Eft 2 E U # - - 8,377 - - - 8,377
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2ENHLAE - - 8,377 - - (124,687) (116,310)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January ~ RZZ—AF+-A=+-H
2017 k=%-+t5-8-H 51,110 280,350 8,871 125,855 33,154 (236,078) 263,262
Equity-settled share options granted RUARAE SR ERE
(Note 37) (W337) - - - 448 - - 448
Exercise of share option (Note 35) TR e (W 3t3s) = 5,637 = (1,591) = - 4,046
Lapse of share option BREXM = = = (85,739) - 85,739 -
Issue of shares: BFRA
Share placing issue (Note 35) B B 9 28 (Bi13535) - 50,096 - - - - 50,096
Transaction with owners BEARS - 55,733 - (86,882) - 85,739 54,590
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (38,337) (38,337)
Other comprehensive income for the year A% £ft 2 E M - - 5424 - - - 5,424
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2HENHAE - - 5424 - - (38,337) (32,913
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1+-H 51,110 336,083 14,295 38,973 33,154 (188,676) 284,939
32
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 48. IF = B FE =

Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited (“Hebei Da
Sheng”), a 95% owned subsidiary of the Company, Beijing
Jin Dian Pai Information Technology Limited (‘JDP Group”),
a 60% owned subsidiary of the Company and NCCE, a
52.63% owned subsidiary of the Company, have material
non-controlling interesting (“NCI”). The NCI of all other
subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the group are
considered to be immaterial.

AL RBEITERBR AR (b K8 )
(RREHEBBSREEZHBAR) -
EREHHRELEFMERAR (TR
SHAEE AR A HEBC0%IE 2
MEBARIRRARSGH(ARRES
52.63%RIEZMBAR)) FEEK
et (R ER] - TBEHE
b B A F 2 JETE IR M 25 W IE AR AR
SEHEB100%ME - HRABILTE
j( o
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48. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq) 48. FE = IR HE == ()

Summarised financial information in relation to NCI of Hebei BRI RRE ZIEERERNIMEE
Da Sheng, before intra-group eliminations, is presented BHE(GEEANBLEHEA)HIMAT
below:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —TE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

For the year ended BE+=-A=+t—HBLEE
31 December

Revenue W & 10,095 13,927
(Loss)/profit and total AEE (BB, MEEE
comprehensive income for Wk B8
the year (7,772) 5,240
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI MR ES BN (EBB),/
i ) (389) 262

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from &2 FFH2E LR A CRit)

operating activities F R 2,242 (1,393)
Net cash inflows from investing R EEBZR SR A FE

activities 230 —
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BeRACRE) F58 2,472 (1,393)
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Current assets mBE E 160,877 132,962
Non-current assets FEMBEE 60,613 84,507
Current liabilities nBEaE (71,750) (59,957)
Net assets BEFE 149,740 157,512
Accumulated NCI Rt TR ER 7,487 7,876
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48. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq) 48.

Summarised financial information in relation to NCI of JDP
Group, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

B RS SRR B &

FERER

FRILRSHMER 2 FERER
MM E R E (S EAE L HAT) 3

ZIanE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
For the year ended BE+=-A=+t—HLEE
31 December
Revenue W & 2,013 5,793
Loss and total comprehensive AFEEEBHELRZAKSEE
income for the year (112,178) (13,291)
Loss allocated to NCI FEERER D ENEE (44,871) (5,316)
Net cash inflows from operating &2 FEH2RER A GRE)
activities FEE 252 445
Net cash outflows used in "EEES RS ML FRE
investing activities (716) (1,038)
Net cash outflows Re R #F5 (464) (593)
As at 31 December R+=—B=+-—H
Current assets mBEE 4,113 8,801
Non-current assets EMEEE 427 142,333
Current liabilities mEaE (12,558) (13,526)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE - (33,448)
Net (liabilities)/assets (Bl EEFE (8,018) 104,160
Accumulated NCI Rt TR ER (3,207) 41,664
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48. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continueq) 48. FE = IR HE == ()

Summarised financial information in relation to NCI of NCCE, EARBARGMzEERER M
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: BERBE (SEAEBE HAT) S50
T
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBET T

For the year ended BE+=-A=+t—HBLEE

31 December
Revenue Ug #& 3,899 655,884
(Loss)/profit and total AFEEEBEREIHEKW =B

comprehensive income

for the year (158,140) 192,468
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI MIEERESE SN EIE (74,911) 91,172

Net cash inflows/(outflows) used in &£2 58 2H LR A CRit)

operating activities HRE 21,790 (380,961)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) used in & EEFHZHEELHRA (Rt

investing activities FEE 376 (7,077)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from B & EE 2] R, HA

financing activities F R (27,418) 94,676
Net cash outflows e ML FEE (5,252) (293,362)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8
Current assets MO E E 42,496 269,008
Non-current assets IEmBEE 868,271 956,261
Current liabilities mEEE (190,847) (335,178)
Non-current liabilities EMBAE (215,906) (227,937)
Net assets BEFE 504,014 662,154
Accumulated NCI RETFEERER 238,751 313,662
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49. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 49. IAMIB A R FE &=
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and B ARG AEET 2B NEZE
repayable on demand. KEE -

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are as follows:

R-E—+E+-_A=+—BKBA
B Z BT

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued and Effective Principal
establishment and kind fully paid up interest held by activities and place
Company name of legal entity share capital the Company of operation
HW/ R EREARBERA AARAERER
ARER REBRERZER ZFfE Z2BE FTEEBREEHEY
Interests held directly
EERARS
Hero Praise Limited Incorporated in the British Ordinary share of United Stated 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
REBRAF Virgin Islands, limited liability Dollar 1 (‘USD’) RERR BB
company REEIET(ER]) 2Bk
REBRELHESHMRL
BEREARE

PT. Asia Pacific Commodity ~ Incorporated in Indonesia, limited ~ Ordinary shares of Indonesian

Market liability company Rupiah 100,050,000,000
HEYNELEE REVERE R ML (“IDR")
BERELRF 1A% E{E100,050,000,000E0E &
wHREL) EER

100%  Provision of online trading platform
services in Indonesia
REERRHTERE -
HERAD
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Company name

GEEE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity
TR
REBRERZER

49. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

Particulars of issued and

fully paid up
share capital
EREARBERA
ZFEfE

49. RMEB AR #E =)

Effective
interest held by
the Company
AARAERER
2R

Principal
activities and place
of operation

TEEXBREBHE

Interests held indirectly

BEREER

Aurora Logistics Capital
Assurance Limited

BRBERRERAT

Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty
Company Limited
(‘Hebei Da Sheng’)

AERETERERRA
(DT KR &17))

Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty
Company Limited
(‘Xiamen Da Sheng’)

AET(EM)ERERAR
((EMART)

Guangzhou Jun Yan
Enterprise Management
Limited

BHTRECXERERAA

China Assets Group
Management Limited

TRERREEEARAA

Emerge FinTech Group
Limited
BREBMEEEERAR]

Incorporated in Hong Kong,
limited liability company

WEBZMKL FREEAR

Incorporated in the PRC, a Sino-

foreign joint venture

NP BEEMKL - PHAERE

Incorporated in the PRC, a Sino-

foreign joint venture

WP BEEMKL - PHAERE

Incorporated in the PRC, limited
liability company
RHBEEMRY FREEAA

Incorporated in Hong Kong,
limited liability company

REBEMKL FREEAR

Incorporated in Hong Kong,
limited liability company

REBEMAL BREERT

Ordinary shares of HK$200
EE200% T 2 E# R

USD13,800,000

13,800,000 7

RMB110,000,000
A& %110,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,0007C

Ordinary shares of HK$100
EE100# T2 E AR

Ordinary shares of HK$100
EE100B T AR

100%

95%

97.55%

97.55%

100%

60%

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]

Investment holding in Hong Kong
REEKR B

Provision of financial guarantee

service and consultancy service in

the PRC
RESRERRBARERRE
TE

Provision of financial guarantee

service and consultancy service in

the PRC
RESRERRBARERRS
TE

Investment holding in the PRC
RERR  RE

Investment holding in Hong Kong

RAZKR BE

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REZR &E
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49. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 49. R B AR &= )
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued and Effective Principal
establishment and kind of fully paid up interest held by activities and place
Company name legal entity share capital the Company of operation
HW/ R EREARBERA AARAERER
ARER REBRERZER ZFEfE Z2BE FTEEBREEHEY
China Assets Group Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Investment Limited limited liability company H{E10078 T 2 & i@ % RELRE B

PEEREBRAARARN REBEMAL AREELA

Nanning (China-ASEAN) Incorporated in the PRC, limited ~ RMB211,111,000 52.63%  Provision of online trading platform
Commodity Exchange liability company AR 211,111,000 services in the PRC
Company Limited RABEMRAY BRETLRR RERLXFFERE  wE

BEWE - RE)ERRS
ERAR

Dong Xing Zhong Yong Incorporated in the PRC, limited ~ RMBO (Note 1) 94%  Trading businesses in the PRC
Bao Cross-border Trade liability company ARBOT (B 551) BHEK F
Services Limited REERRY EREE AR

REFRREREIIIRE
BRAE

ASEAN Economic Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary shares of HK$100 51%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Development & Trade (HK) limited liability company EEI00E T EBR REER BH
Limited WEBZMKL FREEAF

REKE(FB)ERAA

Rentop Limited Incorporated in Hong Kong, Ordinary share of HK$1 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong

BEBERAF limited liability company AEIBTZEBR REER B

REBEMAL BREERT

Beijing Jin Dian Pai Incorporated in the PRC, limited ~ RMB20,000,000 60%  Provision of software development
Information Technology liability company AR #20,000,0007C services in the PRC
Limited RABEMRY EREEAH RESRGRERYE - E

EReHBESRMERAT

ERMFELEREFRAE  Incorporated in the PRC, limited ~ RMB800,000 30% Provision of retail business in the
tRNZe X tERERAA liability company AR %800,0007T (Note 2) PRC
RAEEERKY - BREFAF RUTERY &
PT. Dian Agritama Persada Incorporated in Indonesia, limited  1DR1,250,000,000 100% Trading business in Indonesia
PT. Dian Agritama Persada liability company 1,250,000,000E0E & Z5%% HE
ROERAGRIRRYL  BRE
f£A7
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49,

50.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

Note 1:  On 15 March 2017, the Group entered into an agreement,

pursuant to which the Group will inject capital of
RMB47,000,000 in RERRREZEFTESTHRBBR QA
for acquiring 94% equity interests. As at 31 December 2017,
no payment was made by the Group.

Note 2: dbRuNSEX{LERER AR is 50% held by Beijing Jin Dian

Pai Information Technology Limited and it has control of it
RINE & X{t#EEAF R R A’s board of directors. Beijing Jin
Dian Pai Information Technology Limited is 60% held by the
Group. Therefore, it is classified as a subsidiary of the Group
and the effective shareholding is 30%.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been examined by BDO
Limited for the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 February 2018, the Group has established a subsidiary
which was called “Assurance Satellite Technology Investment
Limited” (“Assurance Satellite”). On 11 February 2018,
Assurance Satellite entered into a capital increase agreement
with China RS (Shenzhen) Statellite Application Innovation
Institute Company Limited and a third party natural person,
pursuant to which Assurance Satellite will inject capital of
RMB3,000,000 in Zhong Ke (Shenzhen) Satellite Commercial
Application Company Limited (“ZK (Shenzhen) Satellite”)
for acquiring 25% equity interests. Upon completion, ZK
(Shenzhen) Satellite will become an associate of the Group.

49,

50.

RB AT R
Mzl RZZE—tF=ZA+HH A&EE
N iE Bt AEEHRE
HARREEEIRIREER
NELTE A RBE47,000,0007T LA
WEEE 4% fEHE - R —tF+
“A=t+—H AEEWEELN
oo

It SE X CERAR AT AL
REHAEERMERRARFE
50% - It REFHIAELSKMAER
RAIMAEEFEE60% - AUt - %
NCTL- iﬁﬁzﬁ’il,\ﬁﬁ%—rﬂwo%
Colipl=PN

ot FE2:

MBAREBE_ZT—tF+_HA=1
*Eiifzﬁﬁ?‘#ﬁéaﬁ«ﬁﬂ%%_L
ERREFMEEMBRAFTZE
MR EAEE 2 A BE®REK

BERRBRESE

AEBR-_ZE—N\F_ARHKI—
MFARIBABRRGEERMERRE
EERAG(HMEREE) R=T—
NEZA+—H BREZHEPRHE
BRORINBEEERRABIFHEARA
ARE=ZFABAAGLEEERG
CE BUREEBRSEICRID
@&(Wﬂ(iﬁ?ﬂll)ﬁij)ﬁﬁ}\ﬁﬁ%
3,000,0007T + LA & HR25% A% # ° 5T
k1% - EPﬂ(iWH)?%TEH%BU%ZK%

R RN

China Assurance Finance Group Limited ¥ B &R & &b 5 B A R A 7]



x ¥ x
*C.A.F
X

1?‘\

B RS E AR A

China Assurance Finance Group Limited

-



	Cover
	Characteristics of the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Summary
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Back Cover

